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DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

BERRAER

‘Adoption Date”

[ R4 B

"AGM"
[ERBFAE]

"Articles of Association”

[MAERAA

"Audit Committee”

[BZEEE]

"Auditor”
K3 Gill

“Authorized Representative'

[EERE]

“Board”

=3

“BVI"
[RBERRES]

"CG Code”
[{EEEARFA ]

"Chief Executive Officer”

[{TBARE ]

“Companies Act”

[RENE]

“Companies Ordinance”

NS

December 6, 2019, being the date on which the Share Option Scheme was
conditionally approved and adopted by a resolution of the shareholders of the
Company;

201912 H6 B > BNARR RIBREURZ R A IR AE R R AE S B0 B AR

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on June 6, 2025;

AARER2025F6 A6 BRITHRRBEFEAE :

the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time;

AABEEERMA EIEERT)

the audit committee of the Company;

NCIESPE -

KPMG, the auditor of the Company;
EEEEFANERAT - NARZEED

the authorized representative of the Company under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules;

ETRAFEI0S A T ARBRERE

the board of Directors;

Exg:

the British Virgin Islands;
RBHEBRES

the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules;

LRAIERC B B EVRSFAI

the chief executive officer of the Company;

RRRITHAREL ;

the Companies Act (As Revised), Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961) of the Cayman Islands, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time;
FMEMSEEE2RERANE (1961 FEIFEN - LIEF]) - KBIRIEFT » Ik
Hp A ek

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time;

EREDIF622F R RS (ETRERT ~ MFTSRIAEMIT S EH)

2 © JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED NENEFRERBR AR



“Company”, “our Company”

or “the Company”

[ A7)

“Deed of Non-competition”

[ T35 RIE

"Director(s)”

[E=%]

"Fresh Wood"
YN

“Global Offering”
[ 23RS |

"ou

“Group”, "our Group”,

", nou

we”, “our” or “us”

(SR 5 [ 3]

DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

BERARER

Jiumaojiu International Holdings Limited (JLEJLEFRIZR AR A F]), an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on February 1, 2019;
NENEGFZERERAR - R2019F2 A1 AEFEHE MR LNEREBRA
Al

the deed of non-competition dated December 6, 2019 and entered into by the
controlling shareholders of the Company with and in favor of our Company (for
ourselves and as trustee for each of our subsidiaries), details of which are set out
in “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — Deed of Non-competition” in the
Prospectus;

RRTHERRRERARDLARLE (REEF RESRMEMBRRNZEA)
RRXAAR2019F12A6 BTN TR RIE - AUFBHRNBRER [ EERR
ROBGFR — THFRE]

the director(s) of the Company;

KRAEE

our Fresh Wood Beef Hot Pot (B & 15 R4 A #8) brand;
BB S ARG N SRR

the Hong Kong public offering and the international offering of the Shares;
BRI EBRREE REREE

our Company and our subsidiaries or, where the context so requires, in respect of the
period before our Company became the holding company of our present subsidiaries,
the business operated by such subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be);
RARRFEMHONE QRS (HXEBME) RARAKAE BB AR NERA
Al ATEARZ S M B A A s K BT S A B % 7 (RIE R E) 5

—Z U FHR ANNUAL REPORT 2024 © 3



DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

BERRAER

“Guangzhou Jiumaojiu”

[EMNEN]

“Guan Family Trust”

[E KRS

"GYH BVI”

[GYH BVI]

“GYH LIMITED”

[GYH LIMITED ]

"HKD", "HKS$" or "Hong Kong
Dollars”

[t

“Hong Kong”
(&%

“IFRS”

[ B B 75 i 5 2 R

‘independent third party(ies)”

Guangzhou Jiumaojiu Catering Chain Co., Ltd. (BINNFENEFEHEER AR, a
company established in the PRC with limited liability on August 30, 2005 and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company;

BMNENESBEHEEGR AT - 7200568 A30 BEFBEK AR EERF LA
ARWEZEEEMBE AR

the discretionary trust established by Mr. Guan Yihong as the settlor on August 30,
2021;
ERRIEEEAEZTAR2021F8A30ARILMBIRIET

GYH J Limited, an exempted company incorporated in the BVI on December 7, 2018
with limited liability, which is owned as to 1% voting shares by Mr. Guan Yihong and
as to 99% non-voting shares by GYH LIMITED, and a controlling shareholder of our
Company;

GYH J Limited * R20185F 12 A7 B ERBHEB R SEMBINERCBERETI R
Bl BEREEEREB 1EFRENRD RBGYH LIMITEDHEH 99% T AR R HEH
B&tn - WAARDRIEIERR

GYH LIMITED, a company incorporated under the laws of Bahamas and wholly-owned
by MT.B.;
GYH LIMITED » IRIFEMEEZTMKIM DA - BEMTBR2EHE :

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong;

EREEER BT

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC;
HEEEFRITHE ;

International Accounting Standards (“IAS"), International Financial Reporting Standards,
amendments and the related interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB");

BERgs R (AR ERESEE ) HRe RS £8) ([BEBEstE
Bl - BRI BEmELER - BRI R RIARRE

person(s) or company(ies) who/which, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, is/are not our connected

persons;

REFEL YR EEREAA - AR EALIFRMNBEEALHALHAT

4 o JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED A ENEFrIZERBR A A



“International Underwriting

Agreement”

[ BIFR B 3K e

“J.P. Morgan”

[J.P. Morgan |

“Jiu Mao Jiu”

[NWEN]

“Joint Global Coordinators”

[ E 2R A

“Lai Mei Li"
EEES

“Latest Practicable Date”

[RI&A 1T HH

“Listing”
[ k]

“Listing Date”

[EmEH]

“Listing Rules”

[ EmRA

DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

BERARER

the international underwriting agreement relating to the international offering, which
was entered into by, among others, the Joint Global Coordinators, the international
underwriters and our Company on January 8, 2020;

B (EPERE) BERRBAA  BERBHEEEARQFN2020F1 AsEREEKEE
I VBB HE B

J.P. Morgan Trust Company (Bahamas) Limited, a company incorporated under the
laws of Bahamas and the trustee of the Guan Family Trust;

JP. Morgan Trust Company (Bahamas) Limited * —ERIEE e BIARFMA LA
A RERFKEEANZFEA

our Jiu Mao Jiu (LFE) brand;
BMONENLGDE

CMB International Capital Limited and China International Capital Corporation Hong
Kong Securities Limited;

RREERERR AR T EBERCRELEESBRAR

our Lai Mei Li Grilled Fish (FEERELE &) brand;
KPIMBERBE AME

April 20, 2025, being the latest practicable date prior to the bulk printing and
publication of this annual report;

20254 H208 - BIAFERNEIR AHATHREBEERAIITAL

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on January 15, 2020;
MARFR20206F1 A 15 BAEBE AR AT E MR =70

the date, being January 15, 2020, on which the Shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange and from which dealings in the Shares are permitted to commence on the

Stock Exchange;
RAR TR B2 P 7 R IR0 R I E B SX PR E B R B - B120209F1 158

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, as amended or supplemented from time to time;

EEBMARIMBERARES LTRA - EAEHETHAEF

—Z U FHR ANNUAL REPORT 2024 © 5



DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

BERRAER

“Main Board”

[ i
"Model Code”

[1Z4EsrHl i
“M.T.B."

[M.TB.] 15
“MT BVI"

[MT BVI] 15
“MX BVI"

[ MX BVI i1

“Nomination Committee”
[REZEg ] i1

“Over-allotment Option”

[ B R A R | b

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock Exchange
which is independent from and operated in parallel with GEM of the Stock Exchange;
B PTEIERRE 5T i5 (T RIEEETIS) - BB R PIGEM » I EEGEMIF 1T
EE

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules;
ETRBIMERCIAEN LR ETAZERTETESFRZNEET]

M.T.B. CLIENTS NOMINEES LIMITED, a company incorporated under the laws of the BVI
and a nominee shareholder appointed by J.P. Morgan (in its capacity as the trustee of
the Guan Family Trust);

M.T.B. CLIENTS NOMINEES LIMITED » —FHIRBEEBHER RE S ZETMKIHA
8] » /)P Morgan (AEMERERFRIGELNZIASH) TENBERR

MT J Limited, an exempted company incorporated in the BVI on December 7, 2018
with limited liability and our Shareholder, which is wholly-owned by 27 individuals,
who are our employees or former employees;

MT J Limited * 20185 12 A7 A ERBEBARBFSEMAINERRBERETA
AW ARMHRER - HR27EBEA (REMESLFES) 2E%HE

MX J Limited, an exempted company incorporated in the BVI on December 7, 2018
with limited liability and our Shareholder, which is wholly-owned by 33 individuals,
who are our employees, former employees and one independent third party external
investor;

MX J Limited - 7220185 12 A7 HERBHB RS MK ZNERREREEA
AT AR AFIRRER - ER33EEAN (REFMEES - AIEER—EBIE=T7IMNFKR
BE)2EHER

the nomination committee of the Company;

ARAREERE :

the option granted to the international underwriters pursuant to the International
Underwriting Agreement, exercisable by the Joint Global Coordinators (on behalf
of the international underwriters), pursuant to which our Company was required to
allot and issue an aggregate of 50,010,000 Offer Shares, representing in aggregate
15% of the initial size of the Global Offering at HK$6.60 to cover over-allocations in
the international offering as further described in the section headed “Structure of the
Global Offering”in the Prospectus;

IR BIFR B 8 X T BIFR B R 30 7] B 2 IR G A (RREIFR B 8HR) 176
EVERRE - R - AR RIZER6.608 T ER AL R R BT $£50,010,000 % 3 & i
BFMEEREIREENHRREN15%) - U BEREENBESE - BEE—F
HBENBRER 2 IREENERE ]

6 © JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED NENEFRERBR AR



“Pandemic”

(&)

“PRC”
[ B

“Prospectus”

[HBRE?E ]

“Remuneration Committee”

EaiE3

“Reorganization”

(&4

“RMB”" or “Renminbi”
[AR® ]

"SEQ”

[ & 77 R AR RD]]

“Shanwaimian”

[LoNE

“Shareholder(s)”
A& ]

“Share Option Scheme”

[ RT3

“Share(s)”

[ Bzt ]

“Song Hot Pot”
[ N 80 ]

DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

BERARER

the outbreak of the novel coronavirus pneumonia (COVID-19) globally and in the PRC
since early 2020;
P20 FNHEZREPREENFRTERHBZIA (20198RBEZH)

the People’s Republic of China, and “Chinese” shall be construed accordingly;

REARAME - [HEH | EERERE

the prospectus of the Company dated December 30, 2019;
ANABIAEA2019%12 A30 AWIBRER ¢

the remuneration committee of the Company;

ARAHHEES

the reorganization of the Group in preparation of the Listing, details of which are set

out in "History, Reorganization and Corporate Structure”in the Prospectus;

AEBRBHELTETNER  FHEEARBRER(EL  EARARRRE]

the lawful currency of the PRC;
PEDEEES

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as

amended or supplemented from time to time;

BFEEDE S E(EZ RMBIGD) - B TIRERTHMET

our Shandeshanwaimian Suantang Hot Pot (LU &1L 4MNETES 5 X 88) brand;
BB L SNE RS A SR G g

holder(s) of Share(s);
S SvES Y= DN

our share option scheme conditionally adopted pursuant to the written resolutions
passed by our Shareholders on December 6, 2019, the principal terms of which are set
out in “Statutory and General Information — D. Share Incentive Schemes — Share Option
Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus;

RIBRERN2019F 12 A6 H BB EMARR B R RANBIRESSE - X EK
FEPAR BRI DEE R —RER — DA BB T8 — AR S

shares in the capital of our Company with nominal value of US$0.0000001 each;

RN RS AN AR B AR E {E0.0000001 £ TTHI AR (D

our Song Hot Pot (% /A 3#) brand;
AR N SRR

—Z U FHR ANNUAL REPORT 2024 o 7



DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION
BENAFEHN

“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;

[ B 22 P | B BAEBEXZMAERRAR

“Tai Er" our Tai Er (KX =) brand;

(K= B HMARZ—mE

“Tai Er Catering” Guangzhou Tai Er Catering Chain Co., Ltd. (BN K Z&#EHEER A F]), a company

established in the PRC with limited liability and an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, which is owned as to 91.24% by Tai Er Investment and
8.76% by Guangzhou Chunsi Business Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership) (&
N BEGHAEREEERER);

[KZE#] B BMAZEFEHEBRAR > —HRPENZNEREELFRARRAMEEFE
2EMBAR  HARBMAREREBENABEBHARAGREE (BARER)#EA
91.24% 1% 8.76% %

“Tai Er Investment” Tai Er (Guangzhou) Investment Co., Ltd. (K= (BEIM)HEBR2AF]), a company
established in the PRC with limited liability on June 28, 2020 and an indirect wholly —
owned subsidiary of the Company;

[RZKE ] B ARZ(BM)REBRADAE » —KMR2020F6 A28 HERBEKIHAEREE LT -
RARNTRNEEZEMB AR ;

“Uncle Chef” our Uncle Chef (BBAR KRR ABT) brand;

[ BEARARZ AR | B BB RAREAEDE

“United States” the United States of America, its territories, its possessions and all areas subject to its
jurisdiction;

[ B EINREFE - BREHEEL  BHERIHDEBEENMEHE

“USD" or "USS”" United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States;

[T B EEEEEY®  ET

“%" per cent.

(%] ## Ak

In this annual report, the terms ‘associate”, ‘close associate”, ‘connected REFEZA  BRIHXESEHIE  GRIHE
person’, ‘connected transaction’, ‘continuing connected transaction”, ‘core Al [BEZHBEA ] [BEAL] [FEX
connected person’, ‘controlling shareholder’, “subsidiary” and “substantial 51 [RFEHEXZ ] [BOBFEAL) [
shareholder”shall have the meanings given to such terms in the Listing Rules, BRRE | [FHBLR I R[EBRE | EaEAR
unless the context otherwise requires. B_ETARRIE T 3% 5 il 6 %% o

8 e JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED NENEFRERABR AR



DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION
BENARER

REGISTERED OFFICE

Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS

Unit 202

Building 2, Jiucheng Technology Innovation Center
4 Zhujiang East Road, Zhujiang Street

Nansha District Guangzhou, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Level 17

Tower |, Grand Century Place
193 Prince Edward Road West
Mongkok, Kowloon

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

WWW jiumaojiu.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive directors

Mr. GUAN Yihong (Chairman)

Mr. HE Chengxiao (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. CUI Longyu

Mr. SU Danman

Independent non-executive directors

Ms. TANG Zhihui
Ms. ZHU Rui

GRS

Walkers Corporate Limited

190 Elgin Avenue, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands

mE

FEEMNTEDE
BT ABRT R 455
FREHEIH 028
2028 7T

ERTELEME
BB

BERE A
KFiEF1935%

it A2 S —H
1718

NGIE

WWW jiumaojiu.com

B8

HITES

ERELE (EF)
IR (7T BARRL)
EFFLL

RO ok
BUFHNITES
EEELT

REXT

BE S A4 (FA2024 %6 A6 BiRIE)
FEEE L+ (R2024F6 A6 HEEL(T)

Mr. DENG Tao (retired on June 6, 2024)
Ms. WANG Xiaomei (appointed on June 6, 2024)

— 2 UFF#R ANNUAL REPORT 2024 9



DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

BERRAER

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. SU Danman

Mr. Matthew Mo Kan TSUI (resigned on July 5, 2024)

Ms. LEUNG Kwan Wai (appointed on July 5, 2024)

(an associate of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. SU Danman

Mr. Matthew Mo Kan TSUI (resigned on July 5, 2024)

Ms. LEUNG Kwan Wai (appointed on July 5, 2024)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. DENG Tao (Chairman) (retired on June 6, 2024)
Ms. WANG Xiaomei (Chairman) (appointed on June 6, 2024)

Ms. TANG Zhihui
Ms. ZHU Rui

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. TANG Zhihui (Chairman)

Mr. SU Danman

Mr. DENG Tao (retired on June 6, 2024)

Ms. WANG Xiaomei (appointed on June 6, 2024)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. GUAN Yihong (Chairman)

Ms. ZHU Rui

Mr. DENG Tao (retired on June 6, 2024)

Ms. WANG Xiaomei (appointed on June 6, 2024)

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISER

Han Kun Law Offices LLP

Rooms 4301-10, 43/F

Gloucester Tower, The Landmark
15 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

10 e JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED NENEFrZERBR A A

Bt D RIWE

BRI S

BEEELE (5202457 A5 BET)
REZL L (R2024F7 AsBERT)
(BBRBDEENEE L)

RERE

AT AE

BEE LA (7A2024F7 A5 BEHE)
PEET+ (20247 A5 BEET)

BEREES

B d (/) (R2024F6 A6 ARE)
FrEtgZ L (/) (R2024% 6 Ao AERT)
JE 5 0% 27+

KELL

FMEE®

EEELL (EEF)

BT E

=t 4 (FA2024%F 6 A6 BiRIE)
FrEE L+ (R2024F6 A6 HEET)

REZE®

ERRIE ()

KELZL

BOE S (10202456 A6 BiR(E)
T L+ (R2024F6 A6 HEER(T)

BEREEERM
EMEMEBEREEREEER
B

ERRERI55
BMESSETITRE
431£4301-10F



DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with
the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Ordinance

8th Floor

Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

THE CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

MUFG Corporate Markets Pty Limited
Suite 1601, 16/F., Central Tower
28 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANK

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Guangzhou Dongfeng Sub-branch

First Floor, Jin'an Building

300 Dongfeng Middle Road, Yuexiu District
Guangzhou, PRC

BERARER

B A

EEEG A EBA

EE Syl

RCEET R K ERBIRO) T 8955 M 2R Fllas
BEREZHE

B

IR

HITIE 1058

RFRE

81g

MEHSTERVBFELTE

Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands

EERDBFERE
MUFG Corporate Markets Pty Limited
i

ERREF 285
HIERE161E1601F

T EARERT
BERITRHERAT
B BT

R E M
LTS SRR A B 30097
SLEARNEEE

—Z - FF 5 ANNUAL REPORT 2024 o 11



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HFEIBEEE

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FHAFEZERER

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
20245 20234 20224 20214 20204
RMB'000
ARBETFTT
Revenue ON 6,073,644 5985850  4,005722 4,179,704 2,714,830
Profit before taxation o 25 Al s ) 74,008 636,384 94,331 505,920 176,608
Profit for the year FEH M 44,800 479,998 55,610 372,153 138,006
Total comprehensive income for FE2EWZRBE
the year 104,787 504,335 142,461 425,154 5,858
Non-IFRS measures!": R B IS RIGE D
Store level operating profit? EHEmSETE 748,320 1,076,967 516,578 809,297 404,602
Core operating profit® 2T Ee 252,272 632,077 148,982 462,237 156,094
Notes: M

Q)

@

See "Management Discussion and Analysis — Non-IFRS Measures” in this annual
report.

The Group defines store level operating profit as revenue for the year deducting
the following expenses at store level: (i) raw materials and consumables used, (ii)
staff costs, (iii) depreciation of right-of-use assets, (iv) other rentals and related
expenses, (v) depreciation and amortization of other assets, (vi) utility expenses,
(vii) advertising and promotion expenses and (viii) other expenses, excluding
unallocated headquarter expenses.

The Group defines core operating profit as profit for the year excluding the
following: income from value-added tax super deduction and exemption,
government grants, share of (losses)/profits of associates, impairment losses of
property, plant and equipment, other net (losses)/income, income tax expense,
listing expenses, and interest income on subscription monies received from the
initial public offering.

12 © JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED NENEFrZERBR A A

AARFERIEBENREDN — FERPBHRS
ZEAEtE ] & -

AEEREHERLSERNBRTAFEERAIR
LARESEmAS ()T REMAREM - ()8
TR : (i EREEERE : (vEMES KRB
B - (EMEERTERBE 0 (viiKERX
ViNEEREERY  RViEMEX (TEEXR
ADEBEHFAL) °

AEEBZLEENBERERHREATHENF
BB - BEBNE R R R WA - BF#
By - R E AR (B1R), 8RN  UE  BE
RARERERE - Ei (BR)/RAFE - 5
B - LXK ERAFHEEREIRER
FRHF) SUA



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
T F AL E

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

AR S MR &

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
20245 20234 20224 20214 20204
RMB'000
ARBTTT

Assets HE
Non-current assets FRBEE 4,179,369 3,714,972 2,821,841 2575666 1,944,741
Current assets MENVEE 2,309,254 2,805,907 2585231 2559430 2,861,710
Total assets wEE 6,488,623 6520879 5407072 5135096 4,806,451
Equity and liabilities BnRkEE
Equity attributable to the equity AAREREAA

owners of the Company FE(LRER 3,151,686 35335535  3,174282 3,082,574 3,016,555
Total equity “arERs 3,151,152 3,357,016 3,199,132 3,137,596 3,060,402
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 1,744,735 1,761,287 1,252,982 1,192,955 997,104
Current liabilities nRBBE 1,592,736 1,402,576 954,958 804,545 748,945
Total liabilities FES=N 3,337,471 3,163,863 2,207,940 1,997,500 1,746,049
Total equity and liabilities riEmMEE 6,488,623 6520879  5407,072 5135096 4,806,451

T pFF R ANNUAL REPORT 2024 © 13



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERERE

Dear Shareholders, FRIREER -

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual report of the AAERRESEMAREAEEHZ2024F

Group for the year ended December 31, 2024. NANBLEFENFERS -
KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS FENBEZH

For the year ended December 31,
BZE12A3MHLEE

2024 2023
20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R ARBET T

Revenue WA

Store level operating profit® JEAEEAEREO

Profit before taxation BR A% A& A

Profit for the year F A

Profit for the year attributable to equity RN TR R
Shareholders of the Company R FEERF

Core operating profit? RO N

Final dividend proposed after the end of the year FEEREEZROKRIRE
Special dividend proposed after the end of the year FREBREEZNFRRE

6,073,644 5,985,850
748,320 1,076,967
74,008 636,384
44,800 479,998
55,807 453,462
252,272 632,077
25,813 195,600
25,813 =

Notes: 5T

(1) The Group defines store level operating profit as revenue for the year deducting 1)
the following expenses at store level: (i) raw materials and consumables used, (ii)
staff costs, (iii) depreciation of right-of-use assets, (iv) other rentals and related
expenses, (v) depreciation and amortization of other assets, (vi) utility expenses,
(vii) advertising and promotion expenses and (viii) other expenses, excluding
unallocated headquarter expenses.

(2) The Group defines core operating profit as profit for the year excluding the )
following: income from value-added tax super deduction and exemption,
government grants, share of losses of associates, impairment losses of property,
plant and equipment, other net losses, and income tax expense.
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KEY OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

EEHE

As of/for the year ended
December 31,

#BZ12A318 7
BZ12AALEE
2024 2023

20244 20234
Number of restaurants" ZEHE" 807 726
Seat turnover rate®? BExe
Tai Er (self-operated) AKZ(BE) 2.5 3.0
Song Hot Pot % K5 2.0 28
Jiu Mao Jiu (self-operated) NENEE 1.7 18
Table turnover rate® }ERe
Tai Er (self-operated) AK=Z(5E) 3.5 4.1
Song Hot Pot S 2.9 38
Jiu Mao Jiu (self-operated) NEN(EE) 2.7 29
Average spending per customer (RMB)® BEANGEEB (ARKT)®
Tai Er (self-operated) A= (B&) 71 75
Song Hot Pot % N5 103 13
Jiu Mao Jiu (self-operated) NEN(AZ) 55 58
Same store sales (RMB’000)® RIEHE (AR¥EFT)®
Tai Er (self-operated) AZ(BE) 3,308,988 4,076,736
Song Hot Pot %K 5 348,447 509,233
Jiu Mao Jiu (self-operated) NEN(EE) 452,549 520,438
Same store sales growth (%) EIEHEE R (%)
Tai Er (self-operated) A= (BZ) (18.8)
Song Hot Pot 7N 8 (31.6)
Jiu Mao Jiu (self-operated) NEA(EE) (13.0)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERERE

Notes:

) As of December 31, 2024, the Group had 779 self-operated restaurants and 28
franchised/cooperative model restaurants.

(2) Calculated by dividing total customer traffic by the product of total restaurant
operation days and average seat count during the year.

(3) Calculated by dividing total tables served by the product of total restaurant
operation days and average table count during the year.

(4) Calculated by dividing revenue generated from the restaurant operations for the
year by total customer traffic for the year.

(5) Same store sales for the year refers to the revenue of all restaurants that qualified
as same stores during that year. The Group defines its same store base to be those
restaurants that opened for at least 300 days in both 2023 and 2024.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Overview

In the year of 2024, the Group continued to adhere to its multi-brand and
multi-concept strategy and explored new business opportunities, aiming
to further expand its market share and maintain its market position as a
leading Chinese cuisine restaurant brand manager and operator in the PRC.
Facing the ever-changing and challenging external environment in the
post-pandemic era, the Group actively adjusted its business strategies and
further expanded its restaurant network in 2024. The Group continued to
optimize its portfolio of restaurant brands and focus on brands with greater
growth potential. In 2024, the Group has taken a relatively prudent approach
on the restaurant network expansion of Tai Er brand and Song Hot Pot brand.
The Group also introduced the new Shanwaimian brand in February 2024 and
disposed Uncle Chef restaurant and three Lai Mei Li restaurants in mainland
China in the first half of 2024 and July 2024, respectively. Additionally, the
Group introduced the franchise model for Tai Er brand and Jiu Mao Jiu brand
and the cooperative model for Shanwaimian brand in certain designated

shopping malls and transportation hubs in China.

As of December 31, 2024, the Group had 779 self-operated restaurants and
28 franchised/cooperative model restaurants, covering 141 cities in the PRC,
Singapore, two cities in Canada, one city in Malaysia, one city in Thailand, two

cities in the United States and one city in Indonesia.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

The Group recorded revenue of RMB6,073.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2024, representing an increase of 1.5% compared with revenue
of RMB5,985.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2023. Profit for the
year of the Group decreased by 90.7% from RMB480.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2023 to RMB44.8 million for the year ended December
31,2024.

The Board is committed to increasing returns for the Shareholders. For the
year ended December 31, 2024, apart from utilizing approximately HKD138.6
million for share repurchases on market, the Board also proposes to distribute
a final dividend of HKDO0.02 per ordinary share (totalling approximately
HKD28.0 million). In addition, in celebration of the Group’s 30th anniversary,
the Board proposes to distribute a special dividend of HKD0.02 per ordinary
share (totalling approximately HKD28.0 million). In total, the distribution of
final dividend and special dividend represent a payout ratio of approximately

92.5% of profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders.

Going forward, after a thorough reevaluation of the Group's financial
performance, financial position, and strategic development plans for the
future, the Board intends to maintain a dividend payout ratio of no less than

40% of profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders.

2024 Business and Financial Performance Review
Restaurant network

In 2024, the Group opened 150 new restaurants, which comprises 95 Tai Er
restaurants (including 11 franchised restaurants), 28 Song Hot Pot restaurants,
20 Shanwaimian restaurants (including 16 cooperative model restaurants)
and seven Jiu Mao Jiu restaurants (including one franchised restaurant). In
addition, one self-operated Tai Er restaurant converted into a franchised
restaurant. Among restaurants of the Group, 69" restaurants were closed in
2024 primarily due to (i) the termination of the relevant lease agreements
upon expiry, (i) underperformance of certain restaurants, and (iii) the disposal

of Uncle Chef and Lai Mei Li restaurants to independent third parties.

EEHE

AEBREZE2024F 12 A31HIEFEHEFWA
AR#6,073.6 BETT  REZE2023F12A31H
IEFEHRAARES,985.9F BT HN1.5% °
REEMFE EMNAEE2023F12A31HILEF
EMARE48008 &R 90.7% EH E 20245
12ANBIEFENARK48EET -

EERNAREE DR - H#E2024F12 A
3TELIEFE  BREBAI1386EEBTLAME L
BRIRMIN EFGNERRERARSER
EmA%0.027 T (ARTHI280 B EEIL) © ok -
ABEGAEBRY-THEF EFELEBNRE
FERIRR BT AR L AR 0.028 7T (AT #2808 B
BIL) o RERERERIREDRAREERE K
R R IR R A E a F 9 92.5% o

REARR  £2EENFEAEENMBX
B WHERARRARBEERTEER  EFS
BRAE R D O 2 AR SR B A A JREA M 40% BO R 2.

2024 F MK I R IR EIRE
BERE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

EEHE

The table below sets forth a breakdown of restaurants of the Group by brand

TRIFEEEMTAMRNEBERDEE D NE

as of the dates indicated: EER9RRA -
As of December 31,
HZE12H318
2024 2023
2024 % 20234
Number of restaurants E2EZE
Tai Er K= 6342 578
~ Mainland China — FEY A 6047 560
- Others — A 30 18
Song Hot Pot S 80 62
Jiu Mao Jiu NER 718 77
Shanwaimian I SNE 209 -
Fresh Wood B ERR 1 1
Lai Mei Li WERE 1 7
Uncle Chef [ NP = 1
Total “ast 807 726
Notes: MEE

(1) Decrease in self-operated restaurants due to the conversion to franchised
restaurants is not restaurant closure.

(2) Including 11 Tai Er franchised restaurants.
(3) Including one Jiu Mao Jiu franchised restaurant.

(4) Including 16 Shanwaimian cooperative model restaurants.
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Restaurant performance

The table below sets forth the key performance indicators of self-operated

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERRE

BEEXRE

restaurants of the Group by brand for the years indicated: BEEMNEEZRTIBE

TRIBEA IR FERmES DR EE G S

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31ALEE

2024 2023
2024 % 20234
Revenue (RMB’000) WA (ARB¥FT)
Tai Er K= 4,408,770 4,469,217
Song Hot Pot Y 894,264 805,206
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 545,507 628,372
Uncle Chef AR AR K BT 1,555 10,765
Lai Mei Li FEERE 27,348 47,647
Fresh Wood EEPIAR 15,300 7,170
Shanwaimian LN 29,427 =
Seat turnover rate BEEm
Tai Er A= 2.5 3.0
- Mainland China — A 2.5 30
— Others — A 3.2 3.9
Song Hot Pot e N 5 2.0 28
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 1.7 18
Uncle Chef bl N PN} 0.8 13
Lai Mei Li FEERE 2.2 33
Fresh Wood BEEEA 1.3 13
Shanwaimian L ANE 2.9 =
Table turnover rate @ BMERe
Tai Er x= 3.5 4.1
— Mainland China — BB A 3.5 4.1
- Others —Hf 4.4 55
Song Hot Pot 7R 2.9 3.8
Jiu Mao Jiu AEN 2.7 2.9
Uncle Chef AR AR KE 1.0 17
Lai Mei Li FEEE 2.8 41
Fresh Wood N 1.6 16
Shanwaimian L HNE 4.3 =
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERERE

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31ALEE

2024 2023
2024 % 20234
Average spending per customer ® (RMB) BEAHEY (AR¥T)

Tai Er p - 71 75
— Mainland China — A A 65 72
- Others — A 158 172
Song Hot Pot 7K 58 103 13
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 55 58
Uncle Chef AR AR AR 144 151
Lai Mei Li ¥R 101 80
Fresh Wood HEHR 546 587
Shanwaimian LN 87 -

Notes: B -

(1) Calculated by dividing total customer traffic by the product of total restaurant
operation days and average seat count during the year.

(2) Calculated by dividing total tables served by the product of total restaurant
operation days and average table count during the year.

(3) Calculated by dividing revenue generated from restaurant operations for the year
by total customer traffic for the year.

The decline in the Group's restaurant performance in terms of seat/table
turnover rates and average spending per customer in 2024 was primarily due
to the changes in the external environment and the intensified competition

in the catering market in the year.
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Same store sales

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERRE

BEHE

The table below sets forth details of the Group's same store sales by brand TRINERIRFEERBEE DN AEERE

for the years indicated.

SRS

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31ALEE

2024 2023 2023 2022
20245 20234 20234 20224F
Number of same store(#) BEZB M ()
Tai Er K= 448 313
Song Hot Pot X 58 25 6
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 62 68
Same store sales® (RMB’000) RIEHEY (AR T T)
Tai Er K= 3,308,988 4,076,736 3,042,873 2,571,804
Song Hot Pot %N 348,447 509,233 156,897 141,883
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 452,549 520,438 572,898 533,440
Same store sales growth (%) EEHEL R (%)
Tai Er = (18.8) 183
Song Hot Pot Y (31.6) 106
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN (13.0) 74
Notes: MaE
(1) The Group defines its same store base to be those restaurants that opened for at (1) AEBEBREEEETEANR2022F K2023F AR

least 300 days in both 2022 and 2023, and in both 2023 and 2024.

2023F R2024FEFEE D0 KM BEE ©

(2)  Same store sales for the year refer to the revenue of all restaurants that qualified Q2 FAREHEEEZXFEFTARIEERNEE

as same stores during that year.

B A -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERERE

Outlook for 2025

The Group remains fully devoted to providing ultimate dining experience to
customers through delicious dishes, high-quality services and unique dining
ambience, and with a view to maintaining a strong market position and
enhancing its competitiveness, it will continue to implement the following

growth strategies:

Optimizing restaurant network and focusing on excellence. The
Group has been closely monitoring the external environment and
adjusting its expansion plan of restaurant network under different
brands as and when appropriate. Taking into account the changes in
the external environment, the Group's restaurant opening has been
slowed down in 2024 as compared to previous years. By adopting a
more prudent restaurant opening strategy, decisively closing the under-
performing restaurants and focusing its resources on core high-quality
restaurants, the Group strived to build a more prosperous business for
a longer period of time. In 2025, the Group has no target for opening
restaurants, and will dynamically adjust the specific number of new
openings according to the changes in the market environment to ensure

“100% success rate for each restaurant (ffi—fk —
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Providing customers with delicious, affordable and safe dining
experiences. The Group regards product quality as its lifeline, especially
focusing on core dishes to achieve ultimate perfection. The Group pays
special attention to the key factors that affect taste to ensure that every
dish is met to a high standard. And through sincere service, it commits
to making every customer who walks into the Group's restaurants feel its
dedication and sincerity. To better adapt to market changes, the Group's
brands are continuously exploring the upgrading and iteration of
existing restaurant models. By optimizing product offerings, enhancing
customer experience, and improving service quality, the Group aims to
further strengthen the appeal and competitiveness of its brands. In the
future, the Group will refine the operational model of the new restaurant
format based on pilot data and customer feedback, ensuring every detail

aligns precisely with consumer needs.

Continuing to strengthen the Group’s supply chain and support
capabilities. The Group continued to advance the construction of the
supply chain centers. Among them, the Guangzhou Nansha Supply
Chain Center is expected to be put into use by the end of 2025. The new
facility will cover the primary processing of ingredients for the Group's
core brands and the production of products for external sales, which will
effectively reduce the capacity pressure on the Group's existing supply
chain, ensuring a stable supply of key ingredients and better minimizing
food safety risks. In addition, supply chain centers have established
supermarket sales business and online retail business in 2024, and will
expand sales channels in the external market while ensuring the high-

quality supply of the Group's catering brands in the future.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERERE

Making digital and intelligent transformation the core driving
force for future development. The Group is committed to achieving
the goal of “providing customers with delicious, affordable, and safe
dining experiences” through digital and intelligent empowerment. On
the supply chain side, the Group utilizes digital and intelligent systems
to meticulously plan and schedule every aspect of the supply chain
process, improving supply chain turnover speed, reducing inventory
levels, lowering food material loss rates, while ensuring the freshness
of ingredients. At the restaurant level, the Group delves into existing
data to imbue the operational system with a smart brain, enhancing
restaurant management efficiency and better responding to customer

needs.

Expanding into global markets to gain international market share.
The Group currently operates Tai Er restaurants in countries such as
Singapore, Malaysia, Canada, the United States, Thailand and Indonesia,
as well as a Lai Mei Li Restaurant in Singapore. The Group will continue
to prudently evaluate and select suitable locations for its expansion to
gain international market share. In the future expansion of the Group,
priority will be given to countries and cities with a large number of
Chinese, such as North America, Southeast Asia, Oceania and other

overseas Chinese communities.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to express its sincere gratitude to the shareholders,
suppliers and customers of the Company for their continued support and
trust. The Board would also like to thank all the employees and management
team for executing the Group's strategies with professionalism, integrity and

dedication.

GUAN Yihong
Chairman

Hong Kong

March 28, 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVENUE

Revenue increased slightly by 1.5% from RMB5,985.9 million in 2023 to
RMB6,073.6 million in 2024.

Revenue by segment

The Group generate revenue from four segments, including the operation of
Tai Er, Song Hot Pot, Jiu Mao Jiu and others (including the operation of other
brands such as Fresh Wood and Shanwaimian, as well as the operation of all
other businesses of the Group). The following table sets forth a breakdown of

the Group's revenue by segment for the years indicated:

SPEdER )

A
U A 2023 1) A R #5,985.9 8 & 7T RS (L N

i —

15%E2024FHARK6,073.6 BETT ©

B & D R A

i)
REBENBAKRELES S BELER-
BN - NEAREM (BREELEERHEARL
SNEFHMMME  AREEREBEABEEME
1) o TRINBRATRFEAREEIZD #BE 5 1
WA BRAR

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A3ALEE

2024 2023
20244 20234F
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
AR¥ET T % ARBTIT %
Tai Er = 4,412,813 72.7 4,476,906 74.8
Song Hot Pot Y] 894,973 14.7 806,512 135
Jiu Mao Jiu E! 546,183 9.0 629,550 10.5
Others™ Hfpo 219,675 3.6 72,882 1.2
Total et 6,073,644 100.0 5,985,850 100.0
Note: 5T -
(1) Revenue from others mainly included the operation of other brands such as Fresh (1 HRAEMBHKRATFESELCLERHUARILUINE

Wood and Shanwaimian, as well as the operation of all other business of the

Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B wmEE DT

Revenue from Tai Er decreased slightly by 1.4% from RMB4,476.9 million
in 2023 to RMB4,412.8 million in 2024, primarily due to the decreases in
same store sales of the Group's Tai Er restaurants mainly attributable to the
changes in the external environment and the intensified competition in the
catering market in the year. Revenue from Tai Er as a percentage of total
revenue decreased from 74.8% in 2023 to 72.7% in 2024.

Revenue from Song Hot Pot increased by 11.0% from RMB806.5 million in
2023 to RMB895.0 million in 2024, primarily due to its expanded restaurant
network from 62 as of December 31, 2023 to 80 as of December 31, 2024,
partially offset by the decreases in same store sales. As a result, revenue from
Song Hot Pot as a percentage of total revenue increased slightly from 13.5%
in 2023 to 14.7% in 2024.

Revenue from Jiu Mao Jiu decreased by 13.2% from RMB629.6 million in 2023
to RMB546.2 million in 2024, primarily due to the decrease in the number
of Jiu Mao Jiu self-operated restaurants from 77 as of December 31, 2023 to
70 as of December 31, 2024 as well as the decrease in the average spending
per customer. Revenue from Jiu Mao Jiu as a percentage of total revenue
decreased from 10.5% in 2023 to 9.0% in 2024, primarily due to the increased

revenue contribution from Song Hot Pot and other brands.

Revenue from others increased significantly by 201.4% from RMB72.9 million
in 2023 to RMB219.7 million in 2024 primarily due to (i) revenue contribution
of Fresh Wood and Shanwaimian, which were introduced in the second half
of 2023 and the first half of 2024, respectively, and (ii) the increase in revenue
generated from selling goods to third parties. Revenue from others as a

percentage of total revenue increased from 1.2% in 2023 to 3.6% in 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue by service line

Services provided by the Group or activities it engages in currently comprise
(i) restaurant operations, (ii) delivery business, (iii) sales of goods, and (iv)
others, mainly including franchised and cooperative model revenue. The
following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's revenue from each

service line for the years indicated:

SPEdER )

RS E B Sl BV A

AEERHOBREXNEENZTBEFIRENE
R (NINEET - (NEmHEE - Riv)EM
(FEZRFEMBREEERKA) o TRIER
SERFIRFERESRIEIEB YA

For the year ended December 31,
BZ12A3MHLEE

2024 2023
202445 20234

RMB’000 % RMB'000 %

ARBT % AREFT %

Restaurant operations BRKE 4,880,419 80.4 5,066,466 84.6

Delivery business INEE TS 1,043,415 17.2 901,219 15.1

Sales of goods" EmiHE" 139,399 2.3 17,017 0.2

Others? Hme 10,411 0.1 1,148 0.1

Total 15 6,073,644 100.0 5,985,850 100.0
Notes: 5T -

(1) Revenue from sales of goods was included in revenue from others in prior
years. Revenue from others for the year ended December 31, 2023 is updated to
conform to current presentation.

(2)  Revenue from others mainly include franchised and cooperative model revenue.
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F2023F 12 A3 BIEFEMNEMPPA B LE A

BREERZEY -

Q EHMPRATEEEMBERAEEIXKA -

T pFF R ANNUAL REPORT 2024 o 27



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B wmEE DT

Revenue from restaurant operations decreased by 3.7% from RMB5,066.5
million in 2023 to RMB4,880.4 million in 2024, primarily due to the decrease
in same store sales of the Group’s restaurants mainly attributable to the
changes in the external environment and the intensified competition in
the catering market in the year. Revenue from restaurant operations as a

percentage of total revenue decreased from 84.6% in 2023 to 80.4% in 2024.

Revenue from delivery business increased by 15.8% from RMB901.2 million
in 2023 to RMB1,043.4 million in 2024, primarily due to an increase in the
number of restaurants that offer delivery services along with the Group's
restaurant network expansion and the introduction of satellite store model
for its delivery services. Revenue from delivery business as a percentage of
total revenue increased from 15.1% in 2023 to 17.2% in 2024.

Revenue from sales of goods increased significantly by 720.0% from RMB17.0
million in 2023 to RMB139.4 million in 2024, primarily due to the increase in
revenue generated from selling goods to third parties. As a result, revenue
from sales of goods as a percentage of total revenue increased from 0.2% in
2023 to 2.3% in 2024.

Revenue from others increased significantly by 845.5% from RMB1.1 million
in 2023 to RMB10.4 million in 2024, primarily due to revenue from franchise/
cooperative management services introduced in the first half of 2024.
Revenue from others as a percentage of total revenue remained relatively
stable at 0.1% in 2023 and 2024.

OTHER REVENUE

Other revenue decreased by 45.1% from RMB126.7 million in 2023 to
RMB69.6 million in 2024, primarily due to (i) a decrease in income from value-
added tax super deduction and exemption as the super deduction of value-
added tax policy has expired since December 31, 2023, and (ii) a decrease in

government grants.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RAW MATERIALS AND CONSUMABLES USED

Raw materials and consumables used remained relatively stable at
RMB2,142.2 million and RMB2,162.1 million in 2023 and 2024, respectively,
generally in line with the Group's revenue growth. Raw materials and
consumables used as a percentage of revenue remained relatively stable at
35.8% and 35.6% in 2023 and 2024, respectively.

STAFF COSTS

Staff costs increased by 13.1% from RMB1,544.1 million in 2023 to
RMB1,747.0 million in 2024, primarily due to the across-the-board salary
raises implemented in the second half of 2023. Staff costs as a percentage of
revenue increased from 25.8% in 2023 to 28.8% in 2024, primarily due to the

decrease in same store sales.

DEPRECIATION OF RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Depreciation of right-of-use assets increased by 18.8% from RMB485.3 million
in 2023 to RMB576.5 million in 2024, primarily due to an increase in the
number of restaurants of the Group. Depreciation of right-of-use assets as a
percentage of revenue increased from 8.1% in 2023 to 9.5% in 2024, primarily

due to the decrease in same store sales.

OTHER RENTALS AND RELATED EXPENSES

Other rentals and related expenses decreased by 4.0% from RMB138.8 million
in 2023 to RMB133.2 million in 2024, primarily due to a decrease in variable
rent payments as a result of the decrease in same store sales of the Group’s
restaurants. Other rentals and related expenses as a percentage of revenue

remained relatively stable at 2.3% and 2.2% in 2023 and 2024, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION OF OTHER
ASSETS

Depreciation and amortization of other assets increased by 23.9% from
RMB235.6 million in 2023 to RMB292.0 million in 2024, primarily due to an
increase in restaurant decoration expenditures and purchases of kitchen and
other equipment along with the restaurant network expansion of the Group.
Depreciation and amortization of other assets as a percentage of revenue
increased from 3.9% in 2023 to 4.8% in 2024, primarily due to the decrease in

same store sales.

UTILITY EXPENSES

Utility expenses increased by 15.5% from RMB219.0 million in 2023 to
RMB252.9 million in 2024 primarily due to the expansion of restaurant
network of the Group. Utility expenses as a percentage of revenue increased
from 3.7% in 2023 to 4.2% in 2024, primarily due to the decrease in same

store sales.

TRAVELLING AND RELATED EXPENSES

Travelling and related expenses decreased by 23.7% from RMB38.8 million in
2023 to RMB29.6 million in 2024, primarily because the Group's staff traveled
less frequently for daily operations. Travelling and related expenses as a
percentage of revenue remained relatively stable at 0.6% and 0.5% in 2023

and 2024, respectively.

ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION EXPENSES

Advertising and promotion expenses increased by 23.2% from RMB84.5
million in 2023 to RMB104.1 million in 2024, primarily due to an increase in
advertisement placement. As a result, advertising and promotion expenses as

a percentage of revenue increased from 1.4% in 2023 to 1.7% in 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses increased by 7.3% from RMB438.6 million in 2023 to
RMB470.8 million in 2024, primarily due to (i) an increase in transportation
and related expenses of RMB59.3 million, partially offset by a (ii) decrease in

expenses for opening new restaurants of RMB39.1 million.

SHARE OF LOSSES OF ASSOCIATES

Share of losses of associates increased by 77.3% from RMB2.2 million in 2023
to RMB3.9 million in 2024, primarily due to the increase in losses incurred by

the associates invested by the Group.

OTHER NET LOSSES

Other net losses increased by 131.3% from RMB32.3 million in 2023 to
RMB74.7 million in 2024, primarily due to (i) an increase in losses on disposal
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of RMB25.8 million

and (i) an increase in net foreign exchange losses of RMB10.1 million.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs increased by 19.5% from RMB92.9 million in 2023 to RMB111.0
million in 2024 primarily due to an increase in interest on lease liabilities
recognized in accordance with IFRS 16 associated with the Group's increased

number of leases as a result of the expansion of its restaurant network.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Impairment losses of property, plant and equipment increased significantly
by 411.9% from RMB21.8 million in 2023 to RMB111.6 million in 2024,
primarily because the Group had prudently made provisions for impairment

of assets considering the unsatisfactory performance of some restaurants.

INCOME TAX

Income tax decreased by 81.3% from RMB156.4 million in 2023 to RMB29.2

million in 2024, primarily due to the decrease of taxable income.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year decreased by 90.7% from
RMB480.0 million in 2023 to RMB44.8 million in 2024.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

The Group holds equity investments in several entities in the PRC. The entities
are mainly engaged in the catering industry. The Group recorded profit
resulting from equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income — net movement in fair value reserve (non-recycling) of RMB14.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2024, primarily due to certain equity
investments in the catering industry held by the Group has risen in value
through stable operation, as compared with the loss of RMB8.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2023 as a result of challenging macroeconomic

environment in 2023.

The Group recorded exchange differences on translation of financial
statements of operations outside the mainland China of RMB45.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2024 as other comprehensive income,
as compared with RMB33.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2023

primarily due to exchange rate fluctuations.

NON-IFRS MEASURES

The Group adopts the operating profit and core operating profit, which are
not required by or presented in accordance with IFRS as important financial

measures to supplement its consolidated financial statements.

Store Level Operating Profit and Store Level Operating Profit
Margin

The Group believes that store level operating profit helps Shareholders and
investors better understand its multi-brand and multi-concept strategy by
directly illustrating the profitability of its different brands at store level, and
that it is frequently used by analysts, investors and other interested parties in

the evaluation of companies in the catering industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group defines store level operating profit as revenue for the year
deducting the following expenses at store level: (i) raw materials and
consumables used, (ii) staff costs, (iii) depreciation of right-of-use assets,
(iv) other rentals and related expenses, (v) depreciation and amortization of
other assets, (vi) utility expenses, (vii) advertising and promotion expenses
and (viii) other expenses, excluding unallocated headquarter expenses. The
following table illustrates the Group's store level operating profit and store

level operating profit margin by brands for the years indicated:
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For the year ended December 31,
BE12A31HLEE

2024 2023

20245 20234
Store Level Store Level
Store Level Operating Store Level Operating
Operating Profit Operating Profit
Profit Margin Profit Margin
JEHEE JEHEE EHER EHER
REFE RKERBE=R KEMHE  KEFEX
RMB’'000 (%) RMB'000 (%)
ARBT R (%) ARETRT (%)
Tai Er K= 583,680 13.2 865,833 19.3
Song Hot Pot 1) 58 76,880 8.6 98,749 12.2
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 84,335 15.4 110,758 17.6
Other Brands H A dn g 3,425 4.3 1,627 22
Total F 748,320 12.6 1,076,967 18.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Core Operating Profit and Core Operating Profit Margin

The presentation of core operating profit facilitates comparisons of operating
performance from period to period and company to company, by eliminating
potential impacts of items that the management does not consider
indicative of the Group's operating performance. The Group believes that
the presentation of core operating profit provides additional information
to further enhance the comparability of the Group's historical results of
operations with the trends in their underlying results of operations, while the
Group utilizes this metric to assess the performance of its core operations.
The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative factors when assessing
whether to adjust for the impact of items that may be material or that may
affect the understanding to the Group's ongoing financial and business
performance or trends. The Group believes that the core operating profit is
frequently used by other interested parties when evaluating the performance

of a company.

The Group defines core operating profit as profit for the year excluding the
following: income from value-added tax super deduction and exemption,
government grants, share of losses of associates, impairment losses of
property, plant and equipment, other net losses, and income tax expense.
The following table illustrates a reconciliation from profit for the year to core

operating profit for the years indicated:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31ALEE

2024 2023

20245 20234

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTT

Profit for the year FEH M 44,800 479,998
Net of the following gains/(losses): k20 T ieas S (E1E) -

Income from value-added tax super deduction and  IE2{ER M1EHE L M

exemption LS ON 3,066 45,870

Government grants ISRz 8,825 14,729

Share of losses of associates JE(REE R EIREE (3,924) (2,197)

Impairment losses of property, plant and equipment  #1% « BiE MR @ REEIE (111,564) (21,819)

Other net losses Hofth 85485 58 (74,667) (32,276)

Income tax expense Frig Bl X (29,208) (156,386)

Core operating profit VY <3-—F D 252,272 632,077

Revenue WA 6,073,644 5,985,850

Core operating profit margin (%) TR TR (%) 4.2 106
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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INVENTORIES

Inventories of the Group mainly represented its (i) food ingredients,
(i) condiment product, (iii) beverage and (iv) other materials used in
its restaurant operations. The following table set forth a breakdown of

inventories as of the dates indicated:

7&
AEENFEEBRAEELEFRNORM
(DFBERER © (IER : R EAMATRE « TRES)
RFR B B0 TF A -

As of December 31,

#Z12831H
2024 2023
2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARBETT

Food ingredients B 69,304 83,877
Condiment product TR B 29,105 29,331
Beverage Kt 2,494 4,445
Other materials H At 14,553 14,421
Total “st 115,456 132,074

Inventories decreased by 12.6% from RMB132.1 million as of December 31,
2023 to RMB115.5 million as of December 31, 2024 primarily due to the
reduction of store-level inventory reserve in the year of 2024 according to the

change of operating strategies.

The Group's inventory turnover days in 2023 and 2024, being the average
of the beginning and ending inventories for that year divided by raw
materials and consumables used for the same year and multiplied by 365
days, remained relatively stable at 21.3 and 20.9 days in 2023 and 2024,

respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The Group's right-of-use assets, which represented the leases for its
restaurant premises, headquarters offices, central kitchens and certain kitchen
equipment, increased by 4.1% from RMB2,007.9 million as of December 31,
2023 to RMB2,089.6 million as of December 31, 2024, primarily due to the

increase in the number of Tai Er restaurants and Song Hot Pot restaurants.

TRADE DEBTORS

Trade debtors of the Group primarily consisted of (i) bills settled through
third party payment platforms such as Alipay or WeChat Pay, which were
normally settled within a short period of time, (ii) bills for its delivery business
settled through third party delivery service platforms, which were settled
within three calendar days, and, to a lesser extent, (iii) bills received by
shopping malls on behalf of the Group for certain restaurants, which were
normally settled within one month, and (iv) debtors generated from sales of
goods, which were normally settled within two months. Trade debtors of the
Group increased by 50.3% from RMB37.6 million as of December 31, 2023
to RMB56.5 million as of December 31, 2024, primarily due to the expansion
of restaurant network of the Group and the expansion of sales of goods to
third parties. The Group's trade debtor turnover days, being the average of
the beginning and ending balances of trade debtors for that year divided
by revenue for the same year and multiplied by 365 days, increased from
1.8 days in 2023 to 2.8 days in 2024, primarily due to the increase in debtors

generated from selling goods.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables of the Group primarily consisted of payables to suppliers.
Trade payables of the Group increased by 1.8% from RMB209.3 million as of
December 31, 2023 to RMB213.1 million as of December 31, 2024, primarily
due to the expansion of restaurant network of the Group. The Group's trade
payable turnover days, being the average of the beginning and ending
balances of trade payables for that year divided by raw materials and
consumables used for the same year and multiplied by 365 days, remained

relatively stable at 33.9 days in 2023 and 35.7 days in 2024, respectively.

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO ASSOCIATES

As of December 31, 2024, the Group's loans and advances to associates
amounted to RMB124.1 million (as of December 31, 2023: RMB142.6 million).
Such loans and advances were mainly provided to associates that supplied

food ingredients to the Group to secure stable supply of key food ingredients.

OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Other non-current financial assets of the Group include investments in
unlisted and listed equity securities, investments in limited partnership
enterprises, investments in funds and key management insurance contracts.
Other non-current financial assets of the Group increased from RMB137.3
million as of December 31, 2023 to RMB400.5 million as of December 31,
2024, primarily due to the purchase of key management insurance in the
first half of 2024 in the amount of RMB246.4 million, the policyholder and

beneficiary of which is the Company.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group's total assets decreased from RMB6,520.9 million as of December
31, 2023 to RMB6,488.6 million as of December 31, 2024. The Group's total
liabilities increased from RMB3,163.9 million as of December 31, 2023 to
RMB3,337.5 million as of December 31, 2024. Liabilities-to-assets ratio
increased from 48.5% as of December 31, 2023 to 51.4% as of December 31,
2024.

The current ratio, being current assets divided by current liabilities as of the
respective date, decreased from 2.00 as of December 31, 2023 to 1.45 as of
December 31, 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy with a view to
optimize its financial position. The Group regularly monitors its funding
requirements to support its business operations and perform ongoing
liquidity review. For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group financed
its operations primarily through cash generated from operations, proceeds
from the Global Offering of the Company’s Shares in connection with
the Listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on January 15, 2020 and
proceeds from the Subscription (as defined in the announcement of the
Company dated July 16, 2020 in relation to the subscription for new Shares
under the general mandate). The Group mainly used Renminbi, Hong Kong
Dollars and US dollars to make borrowings and loans and to hold cash and
cash equivalents. The Group mainly utilized its cash on procurement of food
ingredients, consumables and equipment, supply chain construction and
restaurant renovations. Cash and cash equivalents of the Group decreased by
54.3% from RMB1,326.9 million as of December 31, 2023 to RMB607.0 million
as of December 31, 2024, primarily attributable to (i) dividends paid to equity
shareholders of the Company and (ii) the purchases of other non-current

financial assets.

The Group's gearing ratio, being interest-bearing bank loans divided by total
equity as of the respective dates and multiplied by 100%, increased from 7.3%
as of December 31, 2023 to 12.0% as of December 31, 2024, primarily due to
(i) the increase in bank loans and (ii) the decrease in total equity as a result of

the payment of final dividend in 2024.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Group's capital expenditures, which referred to the payment for
purchases of property, plant and equipment, are incurred primarily for
opening new restaurants, procuring property, plant and equipment for new
restaurants, renovating existing restaurants and purchasing furniture and
equipment used in its restaurant operations and construction of supply
chain. The total capital expenditures of the Group decreased by 8.4% from
RMB576.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 to RMB528.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWE DT

INDEBTEDNESS
Bank Loans

The analysis of the repayment schedule of bank loans is as follows:

(=R
RITEM
PAEREELEDHMT :

As of December 31,

#Z12831H
2024 2023
2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETT

Within one year or on demand R—FAFIREK

— unsecured and unguaranteed — I R E R 30,000 50,000

- secured — B 275,817 40,000
305,817 90,000

After one year but within two years R—FEERER

- secured — BHEA 73,608 154,162
379,425 244,162

As of December 31, 2024, bank loans of RMB239.4 million were with floating-
interest rates (as of December 31, 2023: RMB184.2 million), and bank loans
of RMB140.0 million were with fixed-interest rate (as of December 31, 2023:
RMB60.0 million).

Lease Liabilities

The Group's lease liabilities increased by 4.7% from RMB2,084.5 million as of
December 31, 2023 to RMB2,183.1 million as of December 31, 2024, primarily

due to the restaurant network expansion of Tai Er and Song Hot Pot.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of December 31, 2024, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities, guarantees or any litigations or claims of material importance,
pending or threatened against any member of the Group that was likely
to have a material and adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial

condition or results of operations.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of December 31, 2024, bank deposits of RMB11.1 million were pledged as
securities for a currency forward contract (as of December 31, 2023: RMB10.7
million) and bank deposits of RMB295.4 million were pledged as securities for
bank loans (as of December 31, 2023: RMB220.8 million).

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2024, the Group did not have

any pledge on its assets.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Except as disclosed in note 27(d) to the financial statements, there are no
material events subsequent to December 31, 2024 which could have a
material impact on the Group's operating and financial performance as of the

date of this report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND HEDGING

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the transaction
denominated and settled in Renminbi. However, the Group has cash and
deposits denominated in other currencies which are exposed to foreign
currency exchange risks. The Group has not hedged its foreign currency
exchange risks, but will closely monitor the exposure and take additional
measures when necessary to make sure the foreign exchange risks are

manageable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWE DT

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
FUTURE PLANS FOR MAJOR INVESTMENT

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group did not conduct
any material investments, acquisitions or disposals. In addition, save for
the expansion plans as disclosed in the sections headed “Business” and
“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus and the intended
use of proceeds from the Subscription as disclosed in the Company's
announcements dated July 16, 2020, July 23, 2020 and July 30, 2020, the
Group has no specific plan for major investment or acquisition for major
capital assets or other businesses. However, the Group will continue to

identify new opportunities for business development.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2024, the Group had a total of 20,735 employees
(including outsourced personnel). For the year ended December 31, 2024,
staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments) of the Group amounted to
RMB1,747.0 million (for the year ended December 31, 2023: RMB1,544.1

million).

The Group's success depends on its ability to attract, retain and motivate
qualified personnel. The remuneration package for employees of the Group
generally includes salary and bonuses. The Group determines employee
remuneration based on factors such as qualifications and years of experience.
Employees also receive welfare benefits, including medical care, retirement
benefits, occupational injury insurance and other miscellaneous items. The
Group makes contributions to mandatory social security funds for employees
to provide for retirement, medical, work-related injury, maternity and

unemployment benefits.

USE OF PROCEEDS
Use of Proceeds from the Global Offering

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on January 15, 2020. The net
proceeds from the Global Offering amounted to approximately HKD2,372.9
million and had been fully utilized by March 10, 2024. For details, see the
annual results announcement of the Company for the year ended December
31,2023 dated March 22, 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEE WD T

Use of Proceeds from the Subscription REEEMEREAR
The following table sets forth the status of the use of net proceeds from the THREHNRESIEMGFIBFENSHBER -
Subscription which is consistent with the intentions previously disclosed: BRAFTEEEEE M5

Percentage Percentage

Intended Unused Unused of used of unused
Percentage use of balance balance amount balance
of intended proceeds as of as of as of as of
use of from the January 1, December 31, March 10, March 10,  Timeframe for the
Intended use of proceeds proceeds  Subscription 2024 2024 2025 2025  unused balance

HE2025F  BE2025%
LFERE DEZE  BZuE  BZE0uE 3A108 38108
BERB FiigsE 181A 128318 EHASHE FBALH KBA

FrERERTE AR BAk BERZ  RBRER  RBALH  FEESR FRESR  AHRER

(%) (In HKD millions)  (in HKD millions)  (in HKD millions) (%) (%)

w  (AE#AT) (AB%TL) (RB%TL) (%) (%)
Invest in suppliers for key raw material 550 456.5 214 196.9 583 417 Bytheend of 2026
RENTERMAHES 20065 EE 27
General working capital 300 2490 - - 1000 - -
~REERR -
Invest in other companies in

the catering industries 150 1245 434 356 820 180  Bythe end of 2026

REREHTRNERLT 20065 FE
Total 100.0 830.0 264.8 2325 74.3 257 Bythe end of 2026
@zt 2026F FEZA
Note: The figures in the table are approximate figures. MisE - RBPOE T ALHETE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWE DT

Change in Use of Proceeds from the Subscription

As disclosed above, approximately 25.7% of the net proceeds from
the Subscription were unused as of March 10, 2025 (the “Unutilized
Net Proceeds’). Due to the changes in external environment since the
Subscription and after detailed evaluation of the Group's latest operations

) “invest

and business strategies, the Board has resolved to merge the (
in suppliers for key raw material” and (ii) “invest in other companies in
the catering industries” uses into “invest in suppliers for key raw material
and other companies in the catering industries” (the “Change in Use of
Proceeds”). The Unutilized Net Proceeds are currently expected to be fully
utilized by the end of 2026.

The Board is of the opinion that by combing the two original intended
uses of the Unutilized Net Proceeds, the Company will be able to allocate
its financial resources in a more flexible manner and respond to potential
investment opportunities more efficiently. The Change in Use of Proceeds
will not result in any material change in the nature of the Group’s business
or any material adverse impact on the existing business and operations of
the Group. In view of the above, the Board believes that the Change in Use
of Proceeds is in the best interest of the Company and its Shareholders as a

whole.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As of the date of this report, the Company has four executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. Their biographical details are set

out below.

OUR DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. GUAN Yihong (B %), aged 55, is an executive Director and the
chairman of the Board. He is also our controlling shareholder. He is
responsible for formulating the overall development strategies and business
plans of our Company and overseeing the management and strategic
development of our Company. Mr. Guan started his first noodle restaurant
in Haikou, Hainan Province in 1995 and founded our Group in 2005. Mr.
Guan has extensive experience in the catering industry. He has been the
chief executive officer of our Company's subsidiary, Guangzhou Jiumaojiu
since August 2005. He also served as chairman of the board of Guangzhou
Jiumaojiu from August 2005 to May 2019 and has been the executive director
of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu since May 2019. Mr. Guan received his bachelor’s
degree in business management from Tianjin Institute of Textile Science and
Technology (KE# 4 T 2B3) (now known as Tianjin Polytechnic University
(RERIZEKE)) in 1990

Mr. HE Chengxiao (fIE{%)), aged 47, was appointed as our executive
Director on July 2, 2020 and our Chief Executive Officer on March 1, 2024.
He joined our Group in 2013 and has served as the general manager of
Tai Er Catering, a subsidiary of our Company since November 2017. He
is responsible for coordinating the brand management and operational
business of our various brands. He has also served as the president of our
Group and as a director of Jiumaojiu (Guangzhou) Holdings Limited, a
subsidiary of our Company. As of the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. He held 2.1%
of the total issued share capital in MT BVI, which held approximately 2.0% of
the total issued share capital in our Company. Mr. He served as the operation
director of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu from November 2013 to October 2017. He
has extensive experience in both brand and operation management. Before
joining our Group, he worked at San Yuan McDonald’s from July 1999 to
November 2013, and served as an operations manager before leaving San
Yuan McDonald's. Mr. He graduated from Guangdong University of Foreign
Studies (B INEINE K E) in 1999, specializing in international finance.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESNRESHNEERE

Ms. CUI Longyu (EF ), aged 50, was appointed as our Director on May
22, 2019, and was redesignated as an executive Director on December 6,
2019. She is responsible for overseeing the supply chain and human resource
management of our Group. She has also been appointed as the vice president
of our Group with effect from May 1, 2020. As of the Latest Practicable Date,
Ms. Cui held 1.7% of the total issued share capital in MT BVI, which held
approximately 2.0% of the total issued share capital in our Company. She has
been the director of human resources of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu since joining
the company in December 2014 and served as a director of Guangzhou
Jiumaojiu from November 2018 to May 2019. Before that, she worked as the
senior brand manager at McDonald (China) Co., Ltd. (X&E & (FFE)ABR A
7)), an international fast food franchise, from 2013 to 2014 and the operation
manager at Guangdong San Yuan McDonald Food Co., Ltd. (BR=TEE %
RMmAMRAF]) (“San Yuan McDonald’s"), a McDonald's franchised business,
from 1997 to 2012. Ms. Cui obtained a higher diploma in secretary and public
relations from Guangzhou University (BN AZ2) in 1996.

Mr. SU Danman (&%), aged 37, was appointed as an executive Director,
chief financial officer and the joint company secretary of the Company on
June 9, 2023. He joined the Group on April 22, 2019 as the financial controller
of the Group. Mr. Su has extensive experience in auditing, accounting,
taxation and financial controlling. Prior to joining the Group, he worked as
an auditor, assistant manager and audit manager at KPMG Huazhen LLP
Guangzhou Branch from September 2011 to April 2019. Mr. Su graduated
from Guangdong University of Foreign Studies in June 2011 with a double
bachelor's degree in Economics and Management. He is also a member of
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the

China Certified Tax Agents Association.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. TANG Zhihui (BBEE ), aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on April 16, 2021. She is primarily responsible for
providing independent advice and judgment to the Board. She has extensive
experience in human resource management and held various senior level
positions in listed companies. She previously served as a vice president
of JD.com, Inc. (NASDAQ: JD) from 2014 to 2017 responsible for human
resources function and as a vice president of Renren Inc. (NYSE: RENN) from
2007 to 2013 responsible for human resources function. Ms. Tang obtained a

bachelor of arts degree from Wuhan University in July 1990.

Ms. ZHU Rui (5R5), aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on April 16, 2021. She is primarily responsible for
providing independent advice and judgment to the Board. She has extensive
knowledge in branding, consumer behavior, consumer information
processing and psychology and corporate social responsibility. Ms. Zhu has
been a Professor of Marketing of Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business
and a Director of the Social Innovation and Business for Good Centre of
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business from 2013 to present. Prior to
that, Ms. Zhu was an associate professor at the University of British Columbia,
Canada, from 2005 to 2013 and an assistant professor at Rice University, the
United States, from 2003 to 2005. Ms. Zhu received her Ph.D. in Business
Administration from University of Minnesota, the United States, in 2003.
Ms. Zhu has been appointed as an independent director of ATRenew Inc. (a
company listed on The New York Stock Exchange, NYSE: RERE) in May 2022
and an independent non-executive director of Yankuang Energy Group
Company Limited (@ company dually listed on Stock Exchange (stock code:
1171) and the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600188) in June 2023.

Ms. WANG Xiaomei (E##8), aged 46, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on June 6, 2024. She is primarily responsible for
providing independent advice and judgment to the Board. She has extensive
experience in accounting and auditing. Ms. Wang has been a founder and
the managing partner of Guangzhou Ray Consulting Co., Ltd. (BN &2+

BBRAF]) since February 2019. Prior to that, Ms. Wang was a chief financial
officer of Guangzhou Cool Trip Travel Agency Co., Ltd. (BN ESIRIKTTAE B IR
A |]) from April 2016 to September 2018. From July 2000 to March 2016, Ms.
Wang worked at the Guangzhou branch of KPMG Huazhen LLP (5 B ZE R
DETENEIEATR A E B A ) and her last position was a partner. Ms. Wang
graduated with a bachelor of economics degree, specializing in international
finance, from the Guangdong University of Foreign Studies (EEER4NBINE
A£) in June 2000. She is also a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a senior member of the Chinese Institute of

Certified Public Accountants.

ESNESHNEER

BIHHITES

BEELL  565% 0 M2021F4A16REET A
BUFNTEE HREIEAEAESEFRHESE
UERRHE - ERANERER S EESY
BEER YERETARELZESKEA -
BER20I4FEZ2017FEARREERDAER
AR (WHTER - JD)WEIRE - FEADNE
TR WA 2007 F E2013FEEAARE (FBLFE
HRZ P RENN) KB BE - EBEANER -
B TRI990F7 ARSRERENRELZ

fiz °

KRBLL 505 R20201F4R16AEETA
BYFNTER HIZAEREETSRES
UERRHE - FRRIE O HEBETR BB
EEERBRODEBBURMELSE TS EE
BUENHE - KL LTHEWBEESEIRIE
BIEMISEHER R RRIEER S A5 HE
mEAFRROFE - UL Z AT - KREZEH2005
FEIVFANMEXAEBIT R RS
% WH2003F £2005F BERFETKZ2ME)
BHIF o KX M 2003 FEBEEPEHEAKN
BHTEEBIEIEMN - KL THR2022F5 A%
ZEAATRenew Inc. (—ERBHBSFZX ST L
MRIRE] - HHIEFZHFT - RERE) BY ES
Mi2023F 6 AREZX AREEREERNOHER
AR (—EREERET (RMOREE - 171) R EEF
52 G (DRI - 600188) #E AR
BB FEITES -

FEMLLT - 4658 - N2024F6A6REZRER
BYFRTEE -RIBAEAEFSRIEE
UERRHE - FREHNREFTAEBELEE
e - TR BE2019F2 AR AEMNEEHA
BERAAMEIHAREEEGRA - LI ZAT
T+ 2016F4 A E20184F9 AT EMNE R
RITHERARMNEREABE o £L 72000
F7AE2016F3AEBRESHEIRSTAIE
B (BREBREE) BN REBKAESE
BN o TRER2000F 6 A BERERINEING
RE  BEERECHEELESELE4 - &
NABTARSHMASEERPREFMEST
MipgErEE -

T PFF 3 ANNUAL REPORT 2024 o 47



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESNRESHNEERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. GUAN Yihong (B %), aged 55, is also our chairman of the Board and
our controlling shareholder. See the paragraph headed “Executive Directors”
for his biography.

Mr. HE Chengxiao (fAIF3k), aged 47, is also our Chief Executive Officer
and our president. See the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” for his
biography.

Ms. CUI Longyu (BFF), aged 50, is also our vice president. See the
paragraph headed “Executive Directors” for her biography.

Mr. SU Danman (B§% ), aged 37, is also our chief financial officer. See the
paragraph headed “Executive Directors” for his biography.

Mr. HU Zhonghua (%), aged 46, joined our Group on September 20,
2008 and has been the director of development of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu
since January 1, 2014 and is primarily responsible for overseeing the
restaurant expansion and development. As of the Latest Practicable Date,
Mr. Hu held 2.9% of the total issued share capital in MT BVI, which held
approximately 2.0% of the total issued share capital in our Company. Mr. Hu
graduated from Hunan Construction Materials College (Hif M & EHFI 2
1), now known as Hunan Institute of Technology (##8 T &), in 2003.

Ms. ZHAO Yuanyuan (HE#E#8), aged 44, has been the director of the
public affairs department and the assistant to the chairman of the Board of
the Group since she joined the Group on July 2, 2018. She has also been
appointed as the vice president of the Group since February 9, 2021 and
is responsible for the management of the public affairs department of the
Group. Prior to joining our Group, she has extensive work experience in
public relations and corporate affairs. She worked at Inner Mongolia Yili
Industrial Group Co., Ltd. ("Yili Group”), a dairy product manufacturer listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600887), from October 2005
to June 2018. Prior to her departure from Yili Group, she was the head
of the corporate affairs department of the liquid milk business division,
responsible for external affairs, crisis management and risk investigation of
the corporate. Ms. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree in biological education
from Heilongjiang University in 2004 and received a postgraduate diploma
in integrated and practicing management from The University of Hong Kong
in 2021. Ms. Zhao completed and obtained the Executive Master of Business
Administration (EMBA) from Tsing Hua University in 2024.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Jiajun (ZEE), aged 38, joined our Group in October 2015 and
previously served as the head of training, human resources, operations, and
customer experience at Tai Er Catering, a subsidiary of our Company. He has
been our Group's head of the engineering center since March 2021, and head
of the information center since April 2024. Mr. Li graduated from Chongqging
Normal University in 2009.

Joint Company Secretaries

Mr. SU Danman (& ##), aged 37, is also one of our joint company
secretaries and our Authorized Representative. See the paragraph headed
“Executive Directors” for his biography. As disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated June 21, 2023, the Stock Exchange has granted the
Company a waiver from strict compliance with the requirements under
Rules 3.28 and 8.17 of the Listing Rules in respect of the eligibility of Mr. Su
to act as one of the joint company secretaries of the Company (the “Joint
Company Secretary”) for an initial three-year period commencing from June
9, 2023 (being the date of the Mr. Su’s appointment as the Joint Company
Secretary) to June 8, 2026.

Ms. LEUNG Kwan Wai (RZ&%£), is a Senior Manager of Company Secretarial
Services of Tricor Services Limited. She has over 15 years of experience
in the corporate secretarial field and is familiar with the Listing Rules, the
Companies Ordinance as well as compliance work for offshore companies.
Ms. Leung obtained her master's degree in Corporate Governance from
Hong Kong Metropolitan University (formerly The Open University of Hong
Kong’) in November 2013. Ms. Leung is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered
Governance Professional and an Associate of both The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute in the United

Kingdom.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board recognizes the importance of good corporate governance to
the Company's healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to
formulating and implementing corporate governance practices appropriate
to the Company’s needs. The Company has adopted the principles and
code provisions of the CG Code as the basis of the Company's corporate

governance practices.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company has complied
with all applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code save for the
deviations from code provision C.2.1 which are explained in the relevant

paragraphs of this Corporate Governance Report.

The Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code. Key corporate governance

principles and practices of the Company are summarized below.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board

Direction and control of Company business are vested in the Board. The
Board establishes policies, strategies and plans for the development of
Company business, and provides leadership in the creation of value for
Shareholders. All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith,
have been in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, have taken
decisions objectively and have acted in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times. The Directors shall disclose to the Company details

of other offices held by them.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company,
including approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and
budgets, risk management and internal control systems, material transactions
(particularly those involving conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and operational

matters.
The Board regularly reviews the contribution required from a Director to

perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and whether the Director is

spending sufficient time performing them.

50 e JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED N ENEFRIZERBR AR

ERERER
FFERNRGNELEAHAAABRER
MEEM  BENHTRERRAAAARE
REEEARSR - KRR KMLEEATH
B R AR T AR (E AR A DR EAE M
Rt -

REZE2024F12831HIEFE - KRR EEST
EEARTAME 2@ ARG - HFR)
B EC21VENREIFE ARSI - REEIF SRR
EEBRENGRABEELBE -

ARBBEERT REEECEBERER N
ERETEEERTA - TXBUREARRRNE
EOEERARIEFER -

Exg
EELHT  HEREM

EZRRABRARAEBNBERT ARES - &
2 RIS BRI E R - RS KE
HABRREAEBENRER - BE
RERERERERERCEITRE
FEHEBARAREARAR RERRANETE -
EEARMARARERLMEETN LGB

I

EXSARARAMEBERER  BEILER
ERMARKREH  EBEREBRLRE  ARE
BRAMEZERS  BEARS (FHIRFEAME
BRORS) WBER  ZEEEREMER
MBREESRE -

EEeEHRNESHBETEURARRMNEME
FBIEHMERER SR AREITRE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are led by the Board and senior management of the Company. The
Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the management
for implementing Board decisions, and directing and coordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company. The Board reviews the
delegated functions and work tasks regularly. The management has to obtain

Board approval prior to entering into any significant transactions.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a potential conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined
to be material, the relevant Director shall abstain from voting and a Board
meeting attended by independent non-executive Directors who, and whose
close associates, have no material interest in the matter shall be held to
discuss and vote on the same.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’
liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken against Directors arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage would be reviewed on an annual

basis.

Board Composition

The composition of the Board during the year ended December 31, 2024 and

up to the Latest Practicable Date is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Guan Yihong (Chairman of the Board)"”
Mr. He Chengxiao (Chief Executive Officer)™
Ms. Cui Longyu

Mr. Su Danman

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Tang Zhihui
Ms. Zhu Rui

Ms. Wang Xiaomei®
Mr. Deng Tao?

M With effect from March 1, 2024, Mr. He Chengxiao was appointed as the chief
executive officer and Mr. Guan Yihong ceased to be the chief executive officer.

@ With effect from June 6, 2024, Mr. Deng Tao retired as an independent
non-executive Director and Ms. Wang Xiaomei was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director.

Ms. Wang Xiaomei was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
with effect from June 6, 2024. She had obtained the legal advice referred to
in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on June 4, 2024 and confirmed that she

understood her obligations as a Director of the Company.
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TEERHmE

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time. The independent non-executive Directors are expressly

identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among the
members of the Board are disclosed in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report. To the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no other financial, business, family or other material/

relevant relationship among the members of the Board.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Board at all times met the
requirement of the Listing Rules of having a minimum of three independent
non-executive Directors (representing at least one-third of the Board) with
one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting

or related financial management expertise.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the business requirement and objectives of the

Group and for the exercise of independent judgement.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his/her independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with

the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has implementable and effective mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board. All Directors have
timely access to all relevant information as well as the advice and services
of the joint company secretaries and senior management of the Company,
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws and
regulations are followed. Any Director may seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company's expenses, upon
reasonable request made to the Board. During the year ended December
31, 2024, the Board has reviewed the board independence mechanisms and

considered that the implementation of the mechanisms was effective.

52 e JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED N ENEFRIZERBR AR

ERAEERE (REMNE D) TAERARRFIR
BEETRBEHNABELRBARNELRE -
BIYFATEFHERRBELTRABERIIRN
FrEREBAA -

EEMBERFBRESENEZHANBRER
BRAFRIEERSRERE] —HR - B
REVRH BEFEREZHLEEMPFE - X
% RESHMEAR AEHEREEK

REBZE204F 12A3BLEFE  ESE—EHF
& EMBRAERELBE=RBIFNTESF
(EPhEEg=pr—) WHEP—EBY
FRPTESEABEESEA RN HIEE
MBEBEEERNMEE

ExeN BARRMEAAREEEXBERELE
TRUA K A H B ST ) 7 P 35 O FR T R S B 2 R w4
EH T -

ARREERERBILIFNTEZRE ETARR
MREEHNFREBLMERE - RIEBLHR
A3 13 RPAE B IE 1S - RRRIRRAAE
BIYFRTEREHEEL -

RATRAARNITRBROES - ARRES
ERESBUBRRER - 2REFIREMHE
ARTERBEER - URESHE AR WERA
RARRERENE R RESHRT - Bk
RERESSRFARFBREAEG XK -
EREZEEHAEBRRNEETSREABER £
HENBATERBIEEER ERABAR
RIS e REE2024F 12A31BIEFE - EF
CERFNESSR UMY WRABZEHE
BHER -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the

same individual.

Mr. Guan Yihong is the chairman of the Board and has served as the chief
executive officer of the Company up to February 29, 2024. Since the
founding of the Group in 2005, Mr. Guan Yihong has been responsible for
formulating the overall business development strategies and leading the
overall operations, and therefore has been instrumental to the growth and
business expansion of the Group. Mr. Guan Yihong's vision and leadership
have played a pivotal role in the Group's success and achievements to date,
and therefore the Board considers that vesting the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer in the same person is beneficial to the management
of the Group. The long-serving and outstanding senior management team of
the Company and the Board, which comprises experienced and high-caliber
individuals, provides a check on the balance of power and authority. The
Board comprises four executive Directors (including Mr. Guan Yihong) and
three independent non-executive Directors, and therefore has a fairly strong

independence element in its composition.

The chairman provides leadership to the Board by ensuring the Board works
effectively and discharges its responsibilities in time. The chairman himself, or
a Director or a joint company secretary delegated by him, is responsible for
drawing up and approving the agenda for each Board meeting. The chairman
ensures that good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established. The chairman encourages all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board's affairs and take the lead to ensure that it acts in
the best interests of the Company. The chairman ensures that all Directors
receive adequate information to fulfill their duties, which must be accurate,
clear, complete and reliable in a timely manner. The chairman ensures
effective communication with Shareholders and that views of Shareholders
are communicated to the Board as a whole. The chairman promotes a
culture of openness and debate by facilitating the effective contribution
of nonexecutive Directors in particular and ensures constructive relations

between executive and non-executive Directors.
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In order to comply with code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, with effect from
March 1, 2024, Mr. He Chengxiao, an executive Director, has been appointed
as the new chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Guan remains as
an executive Director, the chairman of the Board and the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company. For details, please refer to the

announcement of the Company dated February 29, 2024.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years. The Company has also issued a letter
of appointment to each of the independent non-executive Directors for a
term of three years. Under the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
onethird shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The

retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of Association, Mr. Guan Yihong, Ms.
Cui Longyu and Ms. Wang Xiaomei shall retire at the AGM and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. The Board recommended
the re-election of Mr. Guan Yihong and Ms. Cui Longyu as executive Directors

and Ms. Wang Xiaomei as independent non-executive Director at the AGM.

The Company's circular, sent together with this annual report, contains
detailed information of such retiring Directors as required by the Listing

Rules.

Training and Continuing Professional Development of Directors

The Directors keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company in order to

effectively perform their responsibilities.

Every newly appointed Directors has received a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and full
awareness of Director's responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Such induction is normally

supplemented with meetings with the senior management of the Company.
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The Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Continuing briefings and professional development for the Directors are
arranged whenever necessary. In addition, reading materials relating to the
Company'’s business or Directors’ duties and responsibilities, updates on
salient laws, corporate governance, regulations applicable to the Group are
provided to the Directors from time to time for their studying and reference.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the

Company's expenses.

The Directors are required to submit to the Company details of the training
they received in each financial year for the Company's maintenance of
proper training records of the Directors. During the year ended December 31,
2024, Mr. Guan Yihong, Mr. He Chengxiao, Ms. Cui Longyu, Mr. Su Danman,
Ms. Tang Zhihui, Ms. Zhu Rui, Ms. Wang Xiaomei and Mr. Deng Tao attended
training sessions on regulatory development, directors’ duties or other
relevant topics. In addition, relevant reading materials have been provided to

the Directors for their studying and reference.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding the Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company. Having
made specific enquiry of all the Directors, all Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the provisions of the Model Code during the year ended
December 31, 2024.

The Company has also established written guidelines for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company (the “Guidelines for Securities Dealings by
Relevant Employees”) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code. No
incident of non-compliance with the Guidelines for Securities Dealings by

Relevant Employees by the employees has been noted by the Company.

In case the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings in the
Company's securities, the Company will notify its directors and relevant

employees in advance.
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Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally
made available to the Directors in advance. Notice of a regular Board meeting
is served on all the Directors at least 14 days before the meeting. For other

Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information
are sent to all Directors at least three days before each Board meeting or
committee meeting to keep Directors apprised of the latest development
and financial position of the Company and to enable them to make decisions.
The Board and each Director also have separate and independent access to

the senior management where necessary.

The senior management normally will attend regular Board meetings and
where necessary, other Board and committee meetings, to advise on business
development, financial and accounting matters, statutory and regulatory

compliance, corporate governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The Articles of Association contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at the meetings for
approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates have

a material interest.

The secretary of the meetings is responsible for taking and keeping minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Minutes of Board meetings
and committee meetings record in sufficient detail the matters considered
and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or

dissenting views expressed.
Draft minutes are normally circulated to all the Directors for comment within

a reasonable time after each meeting. Final versions of the minutes are sent

to the Directors for their records and are open for their inspection.
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Attendance Records of Directors and Committee Members

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board Committee

meetings and annual general meeting of the Company held during the year

ended December 31, 2024 are set out in the table below:

TEERHRE

EENRZEEKELERLE

REZE20204F 12831 BILFE  SEFRAR
RAMMEEEREEZE e HURERE
FREHNHELHEINTE :

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY, ERRE

Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Director ESHE Board Committee ~ Committee  Committee Meeting
BEEE® ENRZEEY® ¥FHEEE REZET RREEAS
Mr. Guan Yihong BRI E 14/14 - - 3/3 1
Ms. Cui Longyu EFFLLT 14/14 < - = 1/1
Mr. He Chengxiao I AR 14/14 - - = 1/1
Mr. Su Danman FRAOm ST 14/14 - 22 - 1/1
Mr. Deng Tao BmaEn 8/8 1/1 1/1 3/3 1/1
Ms. Tang Zhihui EEEL T 14/14 22 22 = 1/1
Ms. Zhu Rui KERL 14/14 2/2 - 3/3 /1
Ms. Wang Xiaomei® TR LT 6/6 1/1 1/1 = =

Notes: ek -

m

Mr. Deng Tao retired as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman
of the Audit Committee, a member of the Remuneration and a member of the
Nomination Committee on June 6, 2024. Before his retirement, there were eight
Board meetings, one Audit Committee meeting, three Nomination Committee
meeting, one Remuneration Committee meeting and an annual general meeting
of the Company held during the year ended December 31, 2024.

Ms. Wang Xiaomeo was appointed as an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the Remuneration and a member
of the Nomination Committee on June 6, 2024. After her appointment, there
were six Board meetings, one Audit Committee meeting and one Remuneration
Committee meeting of the Company held during the year ended December 31,
2024.

In addition, Mr. Guan Yihong, the chairman of the Board, held a meeting

with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other

Directors during the year ended December 31, 2024.
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BOARD COMMITTEES AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company'’s affairs. The Board committees have sufficient resources to
execute their requisite duties. All the Board committees should report to the

Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

Audit Committee

As of December 31, 2024, the Audit Committee comprised three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Wang Xiaomei (Chairman), Ms. Tang
Zhihui and Ms. Zhu Rui. Ms. Wang Xiaomei possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the

Company's existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the financial
statements and reports and consider any significant or unusual items
raised by the financial officers of the Group or external auditors before
submission to the Board; (ii) review and monitor the relationship with the
external auditors by referencing to the work performed by the external
auditors, their fees and terms of engagement, and make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditors; (iii) review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems; and (iv) establish a whistleblowing policy and system
for employees and those who deal with the Company to raise concerns
in confidence about possible improprieties in any matter related to the

Company.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the

websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to review the annual financial results and report for the year ended
December 31, 2023, the interim financial results and report for the six months
ended June 30, 2024, major audit findings, significant issues on the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function, scope
of works and re-appointment of external auditors and arrangements for

employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.

The external auditors were invited to attend the Audit Committee meetings
without the presence of executive Directors to discuss with the Audit
Committee issues arising from the audit and financial reporting matters.
There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee

regarding the re-appointment of external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

As of December 31, 2024, the Remuneration Committee comprised two
independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director, namely,

Ms. Tang Zhihui (Chairman), Mr. Su Danman and Ms. Wang Xiaomei.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to (i) assess
performance of executive Directors and approve the terms of executive
Directors’ service contracts; (ii) review and approve performance-based
remuneration by referencing to corporate goals and objectives; (iii) make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy
and structure and the remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management (i.e. the model described in the code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the
CG Code is adopted); and (iv) establish a formal and transparent procedure
for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which will be determined with reference to the performance

of the individual and the Group as well as market practice and conditions.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available

on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Remuneration Committee
(i) reviewed and discussed the remuneration policy and structure and the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management of the
Group; and (ii) recommended to the Board on the grant of share options

under the Share Option Scheme to the Directors and eligible persons.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of
the senior management by band for the year ended December 31, 2024 is set

out below:

REZE2024F12A31BLEEE - FWEES
(VBB R mEF B R U RAERBEE R
SREEENTHGEE RINRNEZGHBRE
HREEREASMEERAEBATRLE
R4 o

RIFELEERTRMSTANEXEESIE - BB
F2024F12A3BIEFE  aREEEKEN
FEFWEEZH T

o

’

Number

of senior

management

Remuneration Band Eaq 0 E| BREEE A
RMBO to RMB1,000,000 ARt E ARYE1,000,0007T 2
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR 1,000,001 7TE AR #1,500,0007T 1
RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR #1,500,001 72 A R #2,000,0007T 1
RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 AR#2,000,001 TE A R#2,500,0007T 1
RMB2,500,001 to RMB3,000,000 AR¥2,500,001 7TE A R #3,000,0007T -
RMB3,000,001 to RMB3,500,000 AR #3,000,001 7T E A R #3,500,0007T 2
7

Details of the remuneration of each director of the Company for the year
ended December 31, 2024 are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial

statements contained in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

As of December 31, 2024, the Nomination Committee comprised one
executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Guan Yihong (Chairman), Ms. Zhu Rui and Ms. Wang Xiaomei.
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i) review the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board on a regular basis and recommend any changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (i) identify qualified
and suitable individuals to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; (iii) assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors of the Company, having regard to the requirements under the
Listing Rules; and (iv) make recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief

executive of the Company.

The Company also recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance its performance and has adopted a Board Diversity Policy
aiming to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
implementation of the policy is monitored by the Nomination Committee. In
designing the Board’s composition, board diversity has been considered from
a number of measurable objectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, and professional experience. The
Nomination Committee shall report its findings and make recommendation
to the Board, if any. Such policy and objectives will be reviewed from time
to time and at least on an annual basis to ensure their appropriateness in
determining the optimum composition of the Board. As of December 31,
2024, the Board has 4 female Directors out of 7 Directors, representing
57.1% of the Board; and 2 of 7 of the senior management of the Group are
female, representing 28.6% of the senior management. As of December 31,
2024, the Group had a total of 7,186 female staff out of 20,735 employees,
representing 34.7% of the employees of the Group. The Group will continue
to take opportunities to increase the proportion of female board members
and workforce over time as and when suitable candidates are identified. For
further details, please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance

Report of the Company.
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During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Board has reviewed the Board
Diversity Policy and considered that the implementation of the policy was

effective.

The Company has also adopted the Procedures for the Nomination
Committee to nominate to the Board a person as Director which sets out the
criteria and process of selection and performance evaluation, and provides
guidance to the Board on nomination and appointment of directors of the
Company. The Board believes that the defined selection process is good
for corporate governance in ensuring the Board continuity and appropriate
leadership at Board level, and enhancing better Board effectiveness and

diversity as well as in compliance with the applicable rules and regulations.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorship, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character including
integrity, honesty and fairness, backgrounds and qualifications including
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, experience, independence and
other relevant criteria necessary to complement the corporate strategy and
achieve board diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation
to the Board. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board may select
candidates for directorship from various channels, including but not limited
to internal promotion, re-designation, referral by other members of the

management and external recruitment agents.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on

the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Nomination Committee
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Group and reviewed the Board diversity
policy; considered and recommended the re-election of the retiring Directors
standing for re-election at the 2024 annual general meeting; assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors; and considered
and recommended the appointment of Ms. Wang Xiaomei as an independent

non-executive Director.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Board has reviewed the
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance with the Model Code and the
Guidelines for Securities Dealings by Relevant Employees, and the Company's
compliance with the CG Code and the disclosure in this Corporate

Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial

statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2024.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, inside information announcements
and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other statutory
and regulatory requirements. The management has provided to the Board
such explanation and information as are necessary to enable the Board to
carry out an informed assessment of the Company's financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval. The management provides all
members of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,

positions and prospects.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to

continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out

in the Independent Auditor's Report of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing
basis. Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board is fully responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take to achieve the Company's strategic
objectives, and for establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems to safeguard Shareholders’

investments and the Group's assets.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in overseeing the design and
implementation of the risk management and internal control systems. The
Company has developed and adopted different risk management procedures
and guidelines. Self-evaluation would be conducted each year to confirm
that the Company has properly complied with the risk management
and internal control policy. All divisions would conduct internal control
assessment to identify risks factors with potential impact on the Group's
business. The management would assess the likelihood of risk occurrence,
monitor the progress of risk management and report to the Board and the

Audit Committee on the findings and effectiveness of the systems.

The Group has developed its disclosure policy to provide a general guide
to the Company'’s directors, officers, senior management and relevant
employees in handling confidential information, monitoring information

disclosure and responding to enquiries.

The Company has recruited experienced personnel for providing the
internal audit function and performing independent review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. The internal audit function examined key issues in relation to the
accounting practices and all material controls and provided its findings and
recommendations for improvement to the Audit Committee. The Company
has also engaged an external professional firm to provide an ongoing
review of the Group's execution and launch of its procurement system in
order to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks, including ongoing
review of the segregation of duties, enhancement of the organizational
structures, fine-tuning of the standard operating procedures, goal settings,
KPI management as well as provide training and updates to shape the

continuing improvements.
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The Board, as assisted by the Audit Committee and the management, has
reviewed the report from the management and the internal audit findings,
and reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, including the financial, operational and compliance
controls for the year ended December 31, 2024. The annual review also
covered areas on the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the Company's accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions as well as those relating
to the Company’s environmental, social and governance performance
and reporting. The Board considered that such systems are adequate and
effective and ongoing review of the same nature would be conducted in

subsequent years.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2024 is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s

Report”in this annual report.

The external auditor of the Company will be invited to attend the annual
general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the

preparation and content of the auditor’s report and auditor's independence.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the remuneration paid/payable

to the Company's external auditors, KPMG, is set out below:
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Note:The non-audit services provided mainly included review of interim results and tax
consultation services.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Leung Kwan Wai was appointed as joint company secretary of the
Company and Mr. Matthew Mo Kan Tsui resigned as joint company secretary

of the Company with effect from July 5, 2024.

Mr. Su Danman and Ms. Leung Kwan Wai, being the joint company secretaries
of the Company, report to the chairman of the Board and are responsible
for advising the Board on corporate governance matters and ensuring that
the Board policies and procedures, as well as the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed. Mr. Su Danman is Ms. Leung'’s primary corporate

contact person at the Company.

Mr. Su Danman and Ms. Leung Kwan Wai have taken not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training and comply with the requirement under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year ended December 31, 2024.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Group's business performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate
information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to make the best

investment decisions.

The Company maintains a website at “www.jiumaojiu.com” as a
communication platform with shareholders and investors, where information
and updates on the Group's business operations, developments and financial

information are available for public access.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the Shareholders. The chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee and, in their absence, other members
of the respective committees, are available to answer questions at general
meetings. The chairman of a meeting will provide the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll and answer any questions from the Shareholders on
voting by poll. A notice to Shareholders is sent by the Company at least 21
days before the annual general meeting and at least 14 days before all other

general meetings.
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The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them posted of the Company’s

developments.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

As one of the measures to safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights,
separate resolutions are proposed at Shareholders’ meetings for each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual Directors, for
Shareholders' consideration and voting. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll
voting results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company immediately after the relevant general meetings.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any one or more Shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or either of the joint company secretaries of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the

transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

There is no provision allowing the Shareholders to move new resolutions at
general meetings under the Companies Act or the Articles of Association.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company
to convene a general meeting following the procedures set out in the

preceding paragraph.
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If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring Director for
election as a director of the Company at a general meeting, the Shareholder
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote
at the general meeting shall lodge a written notice, duly signed by the
Shareholder, of his/her intention to propose such person for election and
also a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his/her willingness to
be elected. The minimum length of the period during which such notices
may be lodged at the Company’s head office in Guangzhou, PRC or the
Company's share registrar in Hong Kong shall be at least seven days and
that the period for lodgment of such notices shall commence no earlier than
the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting. The “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for

Election as Director” are available on the website of the Company.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal with
verbal or anonymous enquiries. For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders
must deposit and send the original duly signed written requisition, notice,
statement or enquiry (as the case may be) to the following address and
provide their full name, contact details and identification in order to give

effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by

law.

Address:  53/F, Zhujiang City Building, 15 Zhujiang West Road, Tianhe
District, Guangzhou, PRC (For the attention of the Board/
Company Secretary)

E-mail: comsec@jiumaojiu.com

For enquiries about shareholdings, Shareholders should direct their enquiries

to the Company's Hong Kong Share Registrar. Their details are as follows:

Name: MUFG Corporate Markets Pty Limited

Address:  Suite 1601, 16/F., Central Tower 28 Queen’s Road Central, Hong
Kong

Tel No.: (852) 3707 2600

Fax No.: (852) 3707 2699
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POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has in place a Shareholders’” Communication Policy to
ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately addressed.
During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company has reviewed
the Shareholders” Communication Policy and considered that the policy
was effectively implemented with the measures as disclosed under the
paragraphs headed “Communications with Shareholders and Investors” and
“Shareholder Rights”.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends.
The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio.
Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group and
the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy, interim, special,
final dividends and any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem
appropriate may be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a financial
year or period. Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to the

Shareholders’ approval.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company has amended its
constitutional documents. Details of the amendments are set out in the
circular of the Company dated April 30, 2024 The third amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company is available on both

the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December
31,2024.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on February 1, 2019
as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Act. The
Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on January 15,
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in managing and operating Chinese cuisine restaurant brands in
the PRC. Details of the principal activities of the significant subsidiaries of the

Company are set out in note 13(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and performance analysis of the Group for the year
ended December 31, 2024 as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance are set out in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” from
pages 14 to 24 and “Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 25 to

44 of this annual report which constitute part of this directors’ report.

OUTLOOK FOR 2025

For the year ending December 31, 2025, the Group will continue to
pursue the following: (i) optimizing restaurant network and focusing on
excellence; (ii) providing customers with delicious, affordable and safe dining
experiences; (iii) continuing to strengthen the Group's supply chain and
support capabilities; (iv) making digital and intelligent transformation the
core driving force for future development; and (v) expanding into global
markets to gain international market share. Further discussion of the future
development in the Group’s business is set out in the section headed
“Chairman’s Statement” from pages 14 to 24 of this annual report which

constitute part of this directors’ report.
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For the year ended December 31,
BZE12A3MBLEE

2024 2023

20245 2023

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T AREFTT

Revenue WA 6,073,644 5,985,850

Store level operating profit JEAE A E RS 748,320 1,076,967

Profit before taxation B 35 B A 74,008 636,384

Profit for the year FE R F 44,800 479,998
Profit for the year attributable to equity RAFIERERR

Shareholders of the Company FEIEFF 55,807 453,462

Core operating profit 20 48 & I 252,272 632,077

Final dividend proposed after the end of the year FEEREEZORBRE 25,813 195,600

Special dividend proposed after the end of the year FEEREZHNDFRRE 25,813 N

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

Relationship with Suppliers

We typically have at least three suppliers for each of our main ingredients
to minimize any potential disruption in our operations, maintain sourcing
stability, avoid over-reliance risk, and secure competitive prices from
suppliers. To safeguard food quality, our comprehensive requirements cover
reputable large suppliers both domestically and overseas. In order to facilitate
cooperation with our suppliers and secure a stable supply of key ingredients,
we have established co-operative relationships with two suppliers of our
key ingredient (i.e. bass) by forming joint venture companies with them.
Further, our Company has entered into cooperation agreements with certain

sauerkraut suppliers to obtain early payment discounts and secure stable and

quality supply of sauerkraut.
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For the year ended December 31, 2024, the total purchases from our five
largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for 26.2%, and our purchases from
our largest supplier accounted for 15.2%, of our total purchases. On average,
we have over six years of business dealings with our major suppliers. We
did not experience any interruption in our supply of food ingredients, early
termination of supply agreements, or failure to secure sufficient quantities of
irreplaceable food ingredients that had any material adverse impact on our

business or results of operations during the year ended December 31, 2024.

Relationship with Customers

In pursuit of our philosophy of serving delicacies at affordable prices (“&F1Z,
TE"), we are fully devoted to providing marvelous dining experience to our
customers through exquisite dishes, high-quality services and unique brand
culture. We have a large and diverse customer base. Revenue derived from
our largest customer and five largest customers both accounted for less than

1.0% of our total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2024.

All of our top five largest customers and suppliers are independent
third parties. None of our Directors, their close associates or any of our
Shareholders (who, to the knowledge of our Directors, own more than 5% of
the issued share capital of our Company) had any interest in any of our top
five largest customers or suppliers that is required to be disclosed under the

Listing Rules for the year ended December 31, 2024.
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Relationship with Employees

Our success, to a considerable extent, depends upon our ability to attract,
motivate and retain a sufficient number of qualified employees. The
remuneration package for our employees generally includes salary and
bonuses. We determine employee remuneration based on factors such
as qualifications and years of experience. Employees also receive welfare
benefits, including medical care, retirement benefits, occupational injury
insurance and other miscellaneous items. We make contributions to
mandatory social security funds for our employees to provide for retirement,
medical, work-related injury, maternity and unemployment benefits. In
order to incentivize Directors, senior management and employees for their
contribution to our Company and to attract, motivate and retain skilled and
experienced personnel, we have granted share options under the Share
Option Scheme, details of which are set out in the section headed “Share

Option Scheme”in this directors’ report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to fulfilling social responsibility, promoting
employee benefits and development, protecting the environment and giving
back to community and achieving sustainable growth. Details of such are set

out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company.

LICENCES, REGULATORY APPROVALS AND
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2024, there were no material breaches
or violations of relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, where the Group
has business entities and operations, and the Group obtained all requisite
licenses, approvals and permits from relevant authorities that are material to
the Group's operations in the PRC. Details of our compliance with relevant
laws and regulations are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance

Report of the Company.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operation of the

Group. The principal risks and uncertainties that the Group faces and key

mitigations that the Group adopts are summarized as follows:

Principal Risks and

Uncertainties

FERABRRAIRERE

Description

i pud
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Key Mitigations
TEEBIEE

Uncertainty to successfully

enter into new markets

NG )3 B 37 77 45 1 T e )

E3

In obtaining new restaurant sites, we may face
intense competition from our competitors
in the catering service industry. We may also
encounter delays when applying for relevant
material licenses during the approval process
from the government authorities, for which the
timeline is beyond our control. Even if we are
able to open additional restaurants as planned,
these new restaurants may neither be profitable
nor have results comparable to our existing

restaurants for a period of time.
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We adopt a prudent approach in entering
into new markets and conduct a detailed and
comprehensive due diligence exercise which
includes researches on the overall market trend,
development schedule for new shopping malls
and information in relation to the regulations,
policies and taxation system of the cities where
we intend to open our new restaurants. We
have strong preference for top commercial
districts in a city with convenient transportation
and high pedestrian flow. We deploy at least
one restaurant staff for each key operational
function from our existing restaurants to the
new restaurant to ensure an efficient transfer of
our operational procedures and best practices

to the new restaurant.
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Principal Risks and
Uncertainties
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Description
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Key Mitigations
TEERIERE

Uncertainty to maintain
and increase the sales and
profitability of our existing

restaurants

MR NMIR IR PR B BB
HERE R AN NN HEE
ESES

Our ability to increase existing restaurant sales
depends in part on our ability to successfully
implement our initiatives to increase
customer traffic, seat turnover and spending
per customer. There can be no assurance
that we will be able to achieve our targeted
sales growth and profitability for our existing
restaurants. Also, we cannot ensure that
existing restaurant sales will not decrease. If
we are unable to achieve our targeted sales
and profitability goals in our existing markets,
our business, financial condition and results of

operations may be materially adversely affected.

BMRESABEEBSENENHLIIRR
BRI ETRATRE  BEEBEERA
EHBERENRESN HABTRERMABE
RBMREEENEREEEERRET G
Ao dtsh s RABEEAREREEREERT
SEMTRE - WRMABEERBETIHHNE
BHEBLANE R  HANKE - BHR
MG ERBRREZ B EBRTHZE

We endeavor to offer tasty cuisines with optimal
presentation to our customers by constantly
improving the quality and flavor of our dishes
which cater to the specific tastes of local
customers. For example, we review and update
three to five menu items for our Tai Er and Jiu
Mao Jiu menu on a quarterly basis, taking into
account customer evaluations and seasonality
factors. Further, we increased the variety of
dishes for our Tai Er and Song Hot Pot brand
restaurants, as we aim to broaden the customer
base. We also strive to provide our customers
with superior services and distinctive dining
experience. For example, Tai Er and Song Hot
Pot pursues unique and interesting dining
culture and builds rapport with customers
through eye-catching and off-the-rail slogans.
Further, we introduce a variety of interesting
and interactive activities carefully designed by
our dedicated team for our online members
to boost our sale of featured products on our
online platforms and increase their frequency
of visits to our restaurants. We build our brand
image through a combination of online and

offline promotional campaigns.
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Principal Risks and
Uncertainties

TERABRRIRERE

Description
i

Key Mitigations
TEERIERE

Risks related to changes
in consumer taste and
discretionary spending

BH B R IR & AT X g2
AW AR

The catering service industry is affected by
consumer taste and preference. We cannot
assure you that we can continue to maintain our
menu to develop new products and maintain
an attractive menu to suit changing customer
demands.

To a significant extent, our success also
depends on discretionary customer spending,
which is influenced by general economic
conditions. Accordingly, we may experience
declines in sales during economic downturns
or prolonged periods of high unemployment
rates. Any material decline in the amount of
discretionary spending in the PRC may have a
material adverse effect on our business, results
of operations and financial condition.
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We closely monitor changes in consumer taste
and preference. We conduct customer surveys
to collect feedback from customers so that we
update our menus as necessary to maintain a
degree of freshness. We also monitor customer
satisfaction through consumer review websites
and through our frontline staff who interact
with our customers to collect feedback.

When experiencing material declines in sales,
we will review and adjust our strategies on a
case by case basis to counter their effect on
our business. For example, we will (i) focus
on high-performing stores and decisively
close underperforming ones to optimize the
Group's resource allocation; (ii) continuously
refine our dishes while enhancing product
competitiveness and service quality; (iii)
explore upgrades and iterations of existing
store models; and (iv) leverage digital and
intelligent empowerment to gain precise
insights into customer needs and enhance store
management efficiency.

We introduced three new brands, namely
Song Hot Pot in 2020, Fresh Wood in 2023 and
Shanwaimian in 2024, disposed Uncle Chef
and Lai Mei Li restaurants in 2024 in order to
maintain an optimal portfolio of restaurant
brands.
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Principal Risks and

Uncertainties
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Description
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Key Mitigations
TEERIERE

Risks related to quality control

and food safety

Bl 54T
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The catering service industry in the PRC as a
whole is subject to concerns over food safety
and quality related issues. The catering service
industry as a whole can be negatively impacted
by reports and negative publicity related to
food safety and quality incidents. Our prospects,
business, results of operations and financial
condition can be negatively impacted if the
catering service industry experiences slower
growth from concerns over food safety and
quality related issues even if such concerns are
through no fault of our own or are not related

to our business.
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We have implemented a comprehensive set
of stringent food safety and quality control
standards and measures covering different
aspects of our operations, including (i)
procurement, (ii) food processing, (iii) storage,
(iv) logistics and (v) restaurant operations.
In particular, our quality control department
conducts, or engages third parties to conduct,
regular and ad hoc spot-checks on our
restaurants from time to time to identify and
rectify potential quality and food safety issues.
We also continuously provide training programs
to our restaurant staff to ensure that they have
clear understanding on operating procedures

and quality standards.
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Principal Risks and
Uncertainties

TERABRRIRERE

Description
i

Key Mitigations
TEERIERE

Risks related to events that
disrupt the operations of
any of our restaurants or our

central kitchens

S
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Our operations are vulnerable to interruption
by fires, floods, earthquakes, other natural or
man-made disasters and other events beyond
our control. Our business is also dependent on
prompt delivery and transportation of our food
ingredients and raw materials. Certain events,
such as adverse weather conditions, natural
disasters, severe traffic accidents and delays and
labor strikes, could also lead to delayed or lost
deliveries of food supplies to our processing
plants, logistics facilities and our restaurants. In
addition, fires, floods, earthquakes and terrorist
attacks may lead to evacuations and other
disruptions in our operations, which may also
prevent us from providing quality food and
service to customers, thereby affecting our

business and damaging our reputation.
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We are determined to mitigate the impact
on our business caused by events which are
beyond our control. We have implemented
several cost-saving initiatives to reduce costs on
rentals, raw materials and consumables used as

well as other operating expenses.

We have continued to adopt the set of internal
protection measures handbook covering
prevention controls of sterilization standards
over restaurants, delivery, logistics, storage,
central kitchens and functional departments.
Additionally, we have diligently monitored
the risks associated with potential events
that could have a significant impact on the
global economy, including the economy of
the PRC. Such vigilance enables us to adapt
and adjust our restaurant network expansion
plans accordingly, ensuring they align with the

evolving circumstances as needed.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Particulars of important events affecting the Group that have occurred
subsequent to December 31, 2024 are stated in note 32 to the consolidated

financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2024 and the state
of the Group's financial position as at that date are set out in the consolidated

financial statements from pages 112 to 236 of this annual report.

FINAL AND SPECIAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HKD0.02 per
ordinary share and a special dividend of HKD0.02 per ordinary share for the
year ended December 31, 2024 (for the year ended December 31, 2023: a
final dividend of HKDO0.15 per ordinary share). The proposed final and special
dividend are declared and will be paid in Hong Kong Dollars. Subject to
the approval of Shareholders at the annual general meeting to be held on
Friday, June 6, 2025, the proposed final and special dividend will be paid to
the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Tuesday, June 17, 2025. The proposed final and special dividend
is expected to be distributed to the Shareholders on Friday, July 4, 2025.

Distributable Reserves

As of December 31, 2024, the aggregate amount of distributable reserves of
the Company, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act, amounted
to RMB2,394,780,000 (as of December 31, 2023: RMB2,668,855,000).

Reserves

Changes to the reserves of the Group during the year ended December 31,
2024 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity in this

annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended December 31, 2024 are set out in note 11 to the

consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

HREE

MR2024F 12 A3 AR BENFEAEEMNEKR
EHFBENERE M ERRMIES2

B R

AEBEZ2024F12A31BIEFEMEELAK
EERZBENTBERREREAFREI12E
236 B ZirA Mg ERE -

KRR AFRIRE

EEeRBRMNEE2024F12A31ALEER
KREARR B &R L BAR0.0278 T RIS R B FAR
RO, ozﬁén(%zizoz?>¢1zﬂ31 EIJtiF; DR
R B EFREBIRISHET) - BE KRB
R EABTE IR RIRAT aﬁﬁ%ﬁézogiéﬁe
H(ESR) BTRRBEFRE LHEE - &
BEARARERREHZ N TR2025F6 178
(BHD) BV ARABRREMORKRE - EER
RSB B TERR AR 2025F7 A48 (B8R)
RS FARER -

DIk E
HZE2024F 128318 REBEQARETE AR
AR DIk FEERSE A AR 2,394,780,0007T
(B Z=2023%F12A318 : AR¥2,668,855,000
JL) e
&

REFBREZE2024F 12 A3 BILEE 2 #EE
FENAFTRIES RS EBE -

M ~ BB RRE

REBNEE20204F 12831 BILFE2ME -
BELREEESFBEINEFREA M HHRE
BEETT o

2 FF 3 ANNUAL REPORT 2024 o 79



DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEWRE

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
ended December 31, 2024 are set out in note 27(a) to the consolidated

financial statements in this annual report.

Bank Borrowings and Other Loans

Details of bank borrowings and other loans of the Group as at December 31,
2024 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements in this

annual report.

Donation

Donations made by the Group during the year ended December 31, 2024
was RMB638 thousand.

Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 12 to 13 of this
annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company has utilized an
aggregate of approximately HKD138.6 million (excluding expenses) to
repurchase 38,934,000 Shares on market at a consideration ranging from
HKD2.18 to HKD5.47 per share. The Shares repurchased during such period
represent 2.79% of issued Shares as of December 31, 2024. All of the shares
repurchased during the year ended December 31, 2024 were subsequently
cancelled by the Company. The repurchase was based on the Company’s
operational growth outlook while acknowledging market conditions and
macroeconomic performance indicators. Given the strong showing of
the Group's financial performance, the Board believes that the purchase
demonstrates the Company's confidence in its long-term business prospects
and would ultimately benefit the Company and create value for the

Shareholders as a whole. Details of the Shares repurchased are as follows:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

BE - HEIIBEAXQATMW LT
&5

REZE2024F 12831 BIEFE - KARBEA
HA1386BEA T CRETFAX) X5 LIRER
2187 TTES5.47 BT HIR (B B8 [B138,934,000 A AR
7 o RNz ER KRG EEZE2024F 12 A31
HEBETIRMM2.79% « REIZE2024F128318
IFFERERNMERMEEERARNAAIEHE - 8
BIERARBNEEERATR - BAREED
SRR R ERBEBERBEEMIEL - ERAE
ENMBRIEARS  EEFFRABLEEL A
AEIHERBAEBIRNELD  REERQA
Xum o WABRBRRAEEE - BERKRGKKH
T

Approximate

Month of repurchase REZE2024%F No. of Highest Lowest aggregate
during the year ended 12A31HLEFE Shares price paid price paid consideration
December 31, 2024 WEEE A 7 repurchased per Share per Share paid
e R0 e2NER [ERNE=Y:4 [SRREE)

=] BEER RIEER BRE

HKD HKD HKD

BT BT BT

May 5H 2,795,000 5.47 4.79 14,058,000
June 6H 18,664,000 4.99 3.91 79,125,000
July 7H 4,554,000 3.96 3.04 15,020,000
August 8 H 2,443,000 251 242 6,011,000
September 9H 10,478,000 2.54 218 24,420,000
Total et 38,934,000 138,634,000

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities (including sale of
treasury shares) of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2024. The
Company did not hold any treasury shares as of December 31, 2024.
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Share Option Scheme

On December 6, 2019, the Share Option Scheme was approved and adopted
by the then Shareholders. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide our Company with a means of incentivising any director or any
employee or officer of any member of our Group who in the sole discretion
of our Board has contributed or will contribute to our Group (the “Eligible
Persons”) and retaining any employee or officer of any member of our
Group (the “Employees”), and to encourage Employees to work towards
enhancing the value of our Company and promote the long-term growth of
our Company. The Share Option Scheme will link the value of our Company
with the interests of the Eligible Persons, enabling the Eligible Persons and
our Company to develop together and promoting our Company's corporate

culture.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, our Board shall be entitled
at any time within the period of ten years after the Adoption Date to grant
options to any Eligible Person as our Board may in its absolute discretion
select. As at December 31, 2024, the remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme is approximately four years and eleven months. No offer shall be
made and no option shall be granted to any Eligible Persons in circumstances
prohibited by the Listing Rules at a time when the Eligible Persons would
or might be prohibited from dealing in the Shares by the Listing Rules or
by any applicable rules, regulations or law. In particular, no options may be
granted during the period commencing one month immediately preceding
the earlier of: (i) the date of the Board meeting (as such date is first notified
to the Stock Exchange in accordance with the Listing Rules) for the approval
of our Company’s results for any year, half-year, quarterly or other interim
period; and (i) the deadline for our Company to publish its interim or annual
results announcement under the Listing Rules, and ending on the date of

actual publication of such results announcement.
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and all other share
schemes existing at such time of our Company shall not in aggregate exceed
133,340,000 Shares, being 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the
Listing Date (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"), which represents approximately
9.54% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report. Options or awards lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and (as the case may be) such other share schemes of our
Company will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme
Mandate Limit. Our Company may renew the Scheme Mandate Limit at
any time subject to prior Shareholders’ approval but in any event, the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share schemes of our
Company under the limit as refreshed must not exceed 10% of the Shares in

issue as at the date of approval of the renewal of the Scheme Mandate Limit.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted and to be granted to each Eligible Person under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any twelve —
month period shall not at the time of grant exceed 1% of the Shares in issue,
unless otherwise separately approved by Shareholders in general meeting

with such Eligible Person and his associates abstaining from voting.

An offer made to the Eligible Person is open for acceptance by the Eligible
Person for a period of 28 days from the date of the offer made. The Eligible
Persons shall accept the offer by returning the duly signed duplicate letter
clearly stating the number of Shares in respect of which the offer is accepted,
with payment of HK$1.00 as consideration for the acceptance of an option

granted to them.

Subject to such terms and conditions as our Board may determine, there
is no minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised and no performance target needs to be achieved by the grantee

before the options can be exercised.
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Subject to the terms of grant of any option, an option may be exercised
by the grantee of the option at any time during the option period and in
accordance with the vesting schedule and other terms specified in the offer.
No option may be vested more than ten years after the date of the offer
made. Subject to early termination by the Company in general meeting or by
the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period

of ten years commencing on the Adoption Date.

The exercise price shall be a price determined by our Board at our Board’s
absolute discretion and notified to an Eligible Person but in any event shall
be at least the higher of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily

quotation sheets on the date of the offer made;

(i) the average of the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer made (provided that the new issue price
shall be used as the closing price for any business day falling within the
period before listing of the Shares where our Company has been listed

for less than five business days or at the date of the offer made); and
(iii) the nominal value of a Share on the date of the offer made.

Further details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out

in Appendix IV to the Prospectus.

84 e JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED N ENEFRIZERBR AR

REBEHEMNERBERNRRT - BRETH
AR AT RO B B 0 () B R AR 1B B 40 38
JE B 55 R B R R AR R RAT I - IEREMR
HEF o FMEERE T SBRETABK
o BRIEEARBRBRAGREEETTIRA
RiE - BRIBREEERABEE 1058
RIRER -

TEEEHEFETENEETARAEAE
AL - EREFER FREERA T &R
BEE -

() BOMEHZHOABERIMERRER
Fro s fE

(il BORERELEORSMAAELEXAE
BRXFrE R RERMIFHETE - N
ARBELEMIRABMEEBINELE
WBMET  AEBTESBERND LT
AIAARIEME X AMEHE &

(i) EEBLHBEHBRMOEE -

BRABBAET B E B IRFCE — T HBHNEA
AR EAZ MY ERPT o



EEEWS

DIRECTORS' REPORT

H6TH 015600
— HOEH 015707

H6TH 013570

— HOEH0I 50T

HOEK 01354207

6707 67120 570067100
- S2070¢ 10 - 207 '0¢ 0 000827, - 5 3 000006 “ S - y707'0£ 100 000006 q
HELE 11550 HELH I15E0r
—-HylH IS0 - HylH 500 BYLH 11500
570 €1 AN €707 €1 AON
- €007 'y 1 hON - T00 1 AN - - - 09l 000057 - = - {207 L hoN a 000057
H8TH 01 HhT0T H8TH 0l Tt
—H6THO0IHI0C  — HECHOIH1T0C H6CH 014120 MAES
¥07 87190 {07’80
-T000 6710 - 12006010 - - - b707 = (000002) S > 1207 67 20 = 000007 Buoyij ueno
20y
fueduioy ay} jo siopaig
EEL EEE (2&) (YEHE) (YRHE) (YEEE) ¥DEY 1% BE 34 BERE efE  FL¥H FHYHE
B£76  BUn gunpE  BHY HIEHTL M4y Al E:A) E:A) HLHL
BHEREY  GxBUH  EERE HH00Y FHI0LY
LAYE Ry HES
Lyang
e
poyiad poyiad (ayH) ek (aseys ad (areys (aseys 4 183k 103k 183k Juesb oy 183K 44 dajueib Jo awey
ENMENe] Bunsap ay) bupnp QYH) reak 10 QyH) 1d QyH) ‘LE QR Ay} Y 3y} Jo 33eQ ay) bupnp ‘| Arenuer
Juesb ay) bupnp  Jeakayy aud Jese Bupnp Bupnp Bupnp pajueln Jese
Jo 3jep suodo Bupnp ENMEE] Buipueysing  pasdey pajjeaue)  paspiaxg Buipueysing
e joaspixa  juelh
saleys Jo joajep joajep
anjen Jiey Ay)aI0Rg 3y I0jaq
fPeipawiwr  Ajaserpaww
3ud buisop  ddud
abesane Buisop)
payybiam

BN R B L (L HVOCE B LY L B vC0CSL I E2E N

DRI ) L R R R 42

:2Wwayds uondo a1eys sy JapUN $Z0Z ‘L€ J19quidaq 01 $Z0Z | Alenuer wouj

pouad ayy bulnp Buipueisino pue paiuelb suondo 24eysS JO S|ILISP DY) INO S19S MO|3q d|ge) aY L

—Z - pFF i ANNUAL REPORT 2024 o 85



sl

i

DIRECTORS' REPORT
R

+

HETH 015670
— BOER 015000

H6CH 01550
— HOEH01&¥00?

HOEH 01 5hT0T

620767120 52076710
- SL0L0E 10 - 7007 0€ 10 0007%61'C - 5t e 0009€€'L - - - ¥207 06100 0009€€') B
HTH 114900 HTH 70
—BEH B0 - HEH LIFE0 HEH HHE0T
90T TAON ¥0T T hON
= 7007 "¢ NN - €707 '€ AON - - - 69 000209 - - i €207 '€ 0N . 000209
HELHL1$50 HELH L5500
- HylH 500 - BrlH 40t HYLH L1HT00C
5707 €1 AON €707 €1 AN
- €007 'y L AN = Z00 1 hON - - - 091 00085 : 7 Vi {007 71 AN - 000185
H8TH 01 HhT0T H8TH 0l TT0t
- H6THO0IHI0T  — HECH0IH1T0C H6CH 014120 1l
F207 8710 {07870
- 0T’ 10 - L0760 - - - 0t - (008'68¢) r - 1207 67120 = 008'68¢ oebuay) 3H
EHL EEE (28) (YEHE) (YBHE) (YEEE) FLEH ¥ 2 34 BERE fE  BLYR EAL ]
B8 B4h gungle  BIY HlEHZL M3y kRl Vgl 1 HLHL
BEMEY  BxBNG  EHERE FHI00H FHI0LH
LAE 44 e
LR
Y
pouad pouad (ayH) ek (areyssad (a1eys (aueys 207 Jeaf 1e3f Jeaf Juesb oy 13K 207 aajuedb Jo awey
351249%3 Busap ayrbuunp  gyH)seak 13d QyH) BAQyH)  l§quieng Ay ) ay Joajeq ayy buunp ‘| Arenuer
Juesb 3y buunp Jeak ayy ud jese Burinp Bupinp Butinp pajuein jese
Joajep suondo Bupnp aDIAN Buipueising  pasde] pajdue)  pasidiexg Buipuessing
ay e joaspiaxs  juelb
saeys Jo joajep joajep
anjen Jiey Ayyalojpg 3y l0jaq
fa1eipawiwr  Ajaperpaww
ud buisop  aaud
3besane Buisop)
LRI

MERAERAR

N

86 e JIUMAQOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED A EHEE



= 40
mﬁw
il
[V
o
O+
T
)
Ll
o
()

HETH 015670
— BOEH 015000

H6CH 01550
— HOEH01&¥00?

HOEH 01 5hT0T

670767120 52076710
- SL070E 10 - 7007 0€ 10 0006671 - 5t e 000t 16 - . a ¥207 06100 00016 7
HTH 114900 HTH 70
—BEH NS0T - HEH I HEH L0
90T TAON ¥0T T hON
= 7007 "¢ NN - €707 '€ AON - - - 69 00097 - - - €207 '€ 0N - 00097
HELHL1$50 HELH L5500
—BYIH IS0 - BRE LS00 HYLH L1$00t
5707 €1 AON €707 €1 AN
- €007 'y L AN = Z00 1 hON - - - 091 0007y - S - {007 71 AN - 00072y
H8TH 01 HhT0T H8TH 0l TT0t
- H6THO0IHI0T  — HECH0IH1T0C H6TH 0145120 53
F207 8710 {07870
- 0T’ 10 - L0760 - - - 0t - (008'660) - - 12026710 5 008667 nbuotiny
EHL EEE (28) (YEHE) (YRHE) (YEEE) FLEH ¥ 2 34 BERE L S 21220 EAL ]
B8 B4h gungle  BIY BlEHZL M3y kRl gl E:R HLHL
BEME  BxBNG  EHRE FHI00H FHI0LH
LAE 44 e
LR
Y
pouad pouad (ayH) ek (areyssad (a1eys (aueys 207 183k 1e3f Jeaf Juesb oy 13K 20z aajuedb Jo awey
351249%3 Busap ayrbuunp  gyH)seak 13d QyH) BAQyH)  l§iquiedag Ay ) ay Joaleq ayybuunp '} Kienuer
Juesb 3y buunp Jeak ayy ud jese Burinp Bupinp Burinp pajuein jese
Joajep suondo Bupnp 3sDIAN Buipueising  pasde] pajdue)  pasidexg Buipueysing
ay e joaspiaxa  juelb
saeys Jo joajep joajep
anjen Jiey ENEVEL T EVEY
f21eipawiwr  Ajaperpaww
ud buisop  aaud
abesane Buisop)

LRI

T p4FF R ANNUAL REPORT 2024 o 87



sl

i

DIRECTORS' REPORT
R

+

HETH 015670
— HOER 015000

H6CH 01550
— HOEH 01 ¥007

HOEH 01 5HT0T

620767120 52076710
- S0 0E 10 - 7007 0€ 10 000519 - 5t e 000°5.€ - - - ¥207 06120 000'52€ B
HTH 114900 HTH L4720
—BEH B0 - HEH LIFE0 HEH LHE0T
90T TAON Y07 T AON
- 7007 '€ NN - €700 '€ AON - - - g9 000561 - - i €207 '€ 0N . 000561
HELHL1$50 HELH LI56000
- HylH 1500 - BrlH 400t HYLH L1HT0C
5707 €L AON €207 €1 AN
- €007 'y L hON - Z00 1 AN - - - 091 0009 : 7 Vi {007 71 AN - 0009
H8TH 01 5hT0T H8TH 0l TT0t
- H6THO0IHI0T  — HECH0IH1T0C H6TH 014120 Yo
$207 8710 {08710
- 20T’ 10 - L0760 - - - 0t - (00v'8¢) r - 1207 67120 = 007'8¢ Ueliueg ns
EHL EEE (28) (YEHE) (YBHE) (YEEE) FLEH ¥ 2 34 BERE fE  BLYR EAL ]
B8 B4h gungle  BIY HlEHZL M3y kRl Vgl 1 HLHL
BEMEY  BxBNG  EHERE FHI00H FHI0LH
LAE 44 e
LR
Y
pouad pouad (ayH) ek (areyssad (a1eys (aueys 207 Jeaf 1e3f Jeaf Juesb oy 13K 207 aajuedb Jo awey
351249%3 Busap ayrbuunp  gyH)seak 13d QyH) BAQyH)  l§quieng Ay ) ay Joajeq ayy buunp ‘| Arenuer
Juesb 3y buunp Jeak ayy ud jese Burinp Bupinp Butinp pajuein jese
Joajep suondo Bupnp aDIAN Buipueising  pasde] pajdue)  pasidiexg Buipuessing
ay e joaspiaxs  juelb
saeys Jo joajep joajep
anjen Jiey Ayyalojpg 3y l0jaq
fa1eipawiwr  Ajaperpaww
ud buisop  aaud
3besane Buisop)
LRI

MERAERAR

N

88 e JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED A EHEE



0 4
Q
W
(a's
O I
T
W)
Ll
o
()

o BET WY ORI
HEESYXHEEYN Y SRE - ZUHSREVEHM

‘pouad busaA buipuodsaliod
91 Jo pua ay1 1e dnoio ay1 Jo 1uawabeuew ayy Aq passasse se sa91uelb oyl jo aduewlopad ay)
01 payul| sI apelb aduewiopad sy ‘porad Bunsan 1ueA3|as 3yl Ul apesb souewload [enplAlpul

He S LI By T Y S S S B ey L& — 2 By Ey - T2y §,991UeIb 9y) UO paseq oG ||eys PaisaA 9g 01 suondo sieys JO Jaquinu syl - siobie) sduewlofsd 910N
£#
000Zv0'sT  (o0z'v86'E) - g 000'SS6'7L  00T'LL0'YL eyl
H6UH 015670 H6CH 01550
—BOCHOISS0T - HOSH OIS0 BOEH 01207
6707 67120 5706100
- 5702 '0€ 120 - 207 '0€ 10 000'S20L - 413 e 000'l€v'11 5 i - y707 0€ 20 000'l€v1L 7
HUH 11590 HH I1H5h0C
— HEH LFr0 - HEH et HEH 115E0T
9207 ‘T AN ¥707 'TAON
- $707 '€ AN - €700 '€ AON - - - g9 000'18%'¥ (000%29) i N €707 '€ AON . 00001’
HELH11$50 HELH LI56000
—HYIH IS0 - HylE S0 BYLH 1150
570 €1 AN €707 €1 AON
- €00 'p1 NN - T00 1 hON - - - 09! 000701'€ (000991) - - 700T 71 MON - 000895°€
H8TH 01 b0 H8TH 0l TT0C
~HEIHOIST0T - B6LHOIFIN H6CH 01100 EElEE
07870 77078700
- 20T’ 0 - 12026700 - - - b0 - (07%1) - g 1207 67120 - 007'996'! dnosg ay: o saafojdu3
EYExY
dnoig ayp jo saakojdui
207 HEE (28) (Xg¥s) (YRHS) (YEEE) HU¥H ¥ #E 34 BERE mfE  BLYR EAL ]
B8 B4h unple  BIY BlEHTL M3y 3 e A HLHL
BEMEY  BxBNG  EHERE FHI00H FHI0LH
A EEHY e
LEang
Y
pouad pouad (ayH) ek (aseys iad (a1eys (aueys 4 Jeaf 1eaf Jeaf Juesb oy 183K 4 aajuedb Jo awey
351D3X] Bunsap ayrbuunp  gyn)seak 13 qyH) 13 QyH) ‘LeJaquadaq Ayl ay) ay Jodeq ayybuunp '} Kienuer
Juesb 3y buunp Jeak ayy ud jese Burinp Bupinp Burinp pajuein jese
Jodjep suoydo Bunnp 3s1219X3 Buipueising  pasde] pajjeoue)  pashiaxg Buipueysing
ay e joaspiaxs  juelb
sa1eys Jo Jodjep Jo3jep
anjen Jie4 ENEIVEN EMEIEN]
fjareipawiwr  Ajaperpaww
ud buisop  aud
3besane Buisop)

LRI

A ANNUAL REPORT 2024 © 89

—=E-



DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEWRE

Subject to the vesting conditions, the share options granted on October 29,
2021, November 14, 2022, November 3, 2023 and October 30, 2024 under
the Share Option Scheme were/will be vested on the date ending 12 months
after October 29, 2021, November 14, 2022, November 3, 2023 and October
30, 2024, respectively.

As of January 1, 2024, the number of Shares available for further grant under
the Share Option Scheme was 118,167,100. As of December 31, 2024, the
number of Shares available for further grant under the Share Option Scheme
was 107,196,300, representing 7.67% of the total number of Shares in issue at
that date. As of December 31, 2024, the number of Shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme was 25,042,000, representing 1.79% of the total number of Shares
in issue at that date. The number of Shares that may be issued in respect of
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme as of December 31,
2024 divided by weighted average number of Shares in issue for the year
ended December 31, 2024 is 1.76%.

As at the date of this annual report, the number of Shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme amounts to 132,238,300 Shares, representing

approximately 9.46% of the total number of issued Shares.
Further information of the Share Option Scheme and the value of share

options granted during the year ended December 31, 2024 are set out in

note 26(b) to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended December 31, 2024 and up to the Latest

Practicable Date were:
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REZE2004F 12831 Bt FENEE&REAT
HHYMESA

Name Position/Title

HE B

GUAN Yihong Executive Director and chairman of the Board
ERE PITEEFREFELR

HE Chengxiao Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
AT AR BITEERITRAR

CUI'Longyu Executive Director

EFRT WITEF

SU Danman Executive Director and chief financial officer
EROK BITESREENEE

TANG Zhihui Independent non-executive Director

EEE BUIFHITES

ZHU Rui Independent non-executive Director

KRE BUIFITES

DENG Tao (retired on June 6, 2024) Independent non-executive Director

B (12202456 A6 BRE) BIFRMITES

WANG Xiaomei (appointed on June 6, 2024) Independent non-executive Director

Eweig (R20245F6 A6 B REE) B IERITES

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Guan Yihong, Ms. Cui
Longyu and Ms. Wang Xiaomei will retire and, being eligible, will offer

themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company as at the Latest Practicable Date are set out in the section headed

“Directors and Senior Management”in this annual report.
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Disclosure under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules

There is no change in the Directors’ biographical details which is required to
be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of

2024 interim report of the Company.

Directors’ Service Contracts and Letters of Appointment

Each of our executive Directors entered into a service contract with our
Company on December 6, 2019, except for Mr. He Chengxiao and Mr. Su
Danman who entered into a service contract with our Company on July 2,

2020 and June 9, 2023, respectively.

We have issued letters of appointment to each of our independent non
- executive Directors. The service contract with each of our executive
Directors and the letter of appointment with each of our independent non-
executive Directors were for an initial fixed term of three years commencing
from December 6, 2019 and were expired on December 5, 2022, except for
the service contracts of Mr. He Chengxiao and Mr. Su Danman which are
for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from July 2, 2020 and
June 9, 2023, respectively, except for Ms. Tang Zhihui's and Ms. Zhu Rui’s
letters of appointment which are for an initial fixed term of three years
commencing from April 16, 2021, and except for Ms. Wang Xiaomei's letters
of appointment which are for an initial fixed term of three years commencing
from June 6, 2024. Mr. He Chengxiao's service contract which had expired
on July 2, 2023, was renewed with the same terms. Ms. Tang Zhihui’s and
Ms. Zhu Rui's letters of appointment were expired on April 16, 2024 and
were renewed with the same terms. The service contracts and the letters of
appointment are subject to termination in accordance with their respective

terms.

The service contracts may be renewed in accordance with our Articles of
Association and the applicable Listing Rules. None of our Directors proposed
for re-election at the AGM has a service contract with members of our Group
that is not determinable by our Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Confirmation of Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-
executive Directors (being Ms. Wang Xiaomei (serves from June 6, 2024), Ms.
Tang Zhihui and Ms. Zhu Rui), and the Company considers such Directors to
be independent for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts of Significance

Save for the related party transactions as disclosed in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements in this directors’ report, there was no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
and/or any of his/her connected entity had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, and there was no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
Company’s controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries, subsisted at the

end of, or at any time during the year ended December 31, 2024.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at December 31, 2024, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which have been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the

Model Code were as follows:

(1) Long positions in ordinary Shares:

EERSRITHRAERRKRD - HER®
REEENERRKXE
M2024F12A31H - EFERARFSHRITEA
BRARRISEE AR EE (TxREFH L
EAEBIEXVED) B - ABRERRD I EREE Pk
BIRBFES R EAEXVEBE7 ReD EE A
EARNARBRZAHER AR (BIERIEES
REAERAIOEBIGEEERA R ABEERR
BmRKE)  HBRENBIEES RIS IEM
FINBKETENECMANERERARE - SR
BIEETAESITAE RN AR REZ AR
KRBT -

(1) REBEALR -

Approximate

percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name of Director Nature of Interest Shares held interest®
EEpnA ERME FREROHE REBQLEI LD
Guan Yihong? Interest in controlled corporation 548,457,000 39.24%
ERRD RENEEE R
He Chengxiao Beneficial Owner 170,000 0.01%
Al 2L BmBEAA
Cui Longyu Beneficial Owner 50,000 0.00%
EFRT EmEAA
Su Danman Beneficial Owner 140,000 0.01%
#ROK BEmBEEA
Notes: it

(1) The percentage represents the number of ordinary Shares interested divided
by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at December 31, 2024.

(2)  GYH BVIis owned as to 1% voting shares by Mr. Guan Yihong and as to 99%
non-voting shares by GYH LIMITED. GYH LIMITED is wholly-owned by M.T.B., a
nominee shareholder appointed by J.P. Morgan (in its capacity as the trustee
of the Guan Family Trust). The Guan Family Trust is a discretionary trust
established by Mr. Guan Yihong as the settlor for the benefit of his family
members. Accordingly, GYH BVI is controlled as to 100% by Mr. Guan Yihong
and Mr. Guan Yihong is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
GYH BVI.

94 e JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED N ENEFRIZERBR AR

() BoARRGEESNEBERHEEBRUAERD
RIR2024F 12 31 BZ B BITIRHEE -

() GYH BVIHERRIGCEHER 1% AR RENR
19 KB GYH LIMITED#E B 99% T~ B R AR IR
3 © GYH LIMITEDEEM.T.B. (&J.P. Morgan (LA
HIERBERRKREANIFAASTN) ZERN
BERR)ZEHE - ERFREEXRER
RICEVERETANRETIRK B Fas M a&k L
M2 - At © GYH BVIRERRALE
1000 B RS EWR BRGYH
BVIRF BRI B AR R At o



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

(2) Long positions in underlying Shares: ) RAEBERGONEFE :
Share options — physically settled unlisted equity derivatives BERE -—EYEEFLTRENTE
TH

Approximate

Number of percentage of

underlying shareholding

Name of Director Nature of Interest Shares held interest

EEpE ERtE FmERGEE REBQUEI

Guan Yihong Beneficial owner 1,150,000 0.08%
ERR EREAA

He Chengxiao Beneficial owner 2,481,000 0.18%
Al AR BmBEAA

Cui Longyu Beneficial owner 1,811,000 0.13%
EFRT ERERA

Su Danman Beneficial owner 586,000 0.04%
FROR BEmfEEA

Details of the shares options granted by the Company are set out under

the section “Share Option Scheme”in this report.

Note:

(1) The percentage represents the number of underlying Shares interested
divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at December 31,
2024.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2024, none of the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interest or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) that was required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they have taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO), or required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

ARRRHOOBREFBRNARE (B
TRt —8& -

MsE
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at December 31, 2024, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

FERREREMALRRG REBERSD
MR KRR

R2024F 128310 MEBAMFEM L TAL
(WIEEBZRARBSRITEAE) REE7 A
B R BARE S S KB ERAIEXVEE?
135 EAE S AR B FR sl 8RR AN A B AR IR 3%
HFREBEERAZEBIEBETFENELMAMNER
FRE

Approximate
percentage of

interest in our

Name of shareholder Nature of interest Number of Shares Company®
AR ERE

BRREWE, R ERME R BB BHOBEDHS

GYH BVI™ Beneficial owner 548,457,000 (Long position) 39.2%

GYH BVI® EmEAA (#F2)

Yang Sanyin® Interest of spouse 549,607,000 (Long position) 39.3%

B=R? iGN (&)

Invesco Asset Management Limited Investment manager 80,830,000 (Long position) 5.8%

Invesco Asset Management Limited PE-FCSE (478)
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Notes:

(1) GYH BVl is controlled as to 100% by Mr. Guan Yihong. Such interests were also
disclosed as the interests of Mr. Guan Yihong in the above section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures”.

(2)  Ms. Yang Sanyin, the spouse of Mr. Guan Yihong, is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in these 549,607,000 Shares in which Mr. Guan Yihong is deemed to be
interested.

(3) The percentage represents the number of ordinary Shares interested divided by
the number of the Company'’s issued shares as at December 31, 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2024, the Directors were not
aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to

be entered in the register referred to therein.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year ended December 31, 2024.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association,
although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in the
Cayman lIslands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a

pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the

Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Our Directors believe that the ability to attract, motivate and retain a
sufficient number of qualified employees including restaurant managers and
kitchen assistants is of significant importance to the long-term successful
development of our Group. The remuneration package for our employees
generally includes basic wages, variable wages, bonuses and other staff
benefits. We made contributions to mandatory employee benefit plans
(including pension, work-related injury benefits, maternity insurance, medical
and unemployment benefit plans and housing fund). We also granted share
options as share incentives to qualified directors and employees under the
Share Option Scheme, respectively, details of the scheme is set out under the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this directors’ report, to motivate
our employees. In addition, our brand managers and their team members
hold certain equity interests in the brands they manage, details of which are
set out in “Business — Organizational Structure — Brand-specific Management”
in the Prospectus. Our Group has established a remuneration committee
to review the policy and structure of the remuneration for our Directors
and senior management and make recommendations on the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management. In general, our
Group determines the emolument payable to our Directors based on each
Director’s time commitment and responsibilities, salaries paid by comparable

companies as well as the employment conditions elsewhere in our Group.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Particulars of the employee benefits of the Group are set out in note 5(b) to

the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of
the senior management by band for the year ended December 31, 2024 is set

out below:
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EBERF
AEBMIEES R ZFBHNEE T IEREM
FE5(b) °

RIBCEEATRTREXEE15E BATE
BEREZ2024F12A31BIEFERBEE S
ZEEEMIE LT

Number

of senior

management*

Remuneration band HENEE SREEE AR
RMBO to RMB1,000,000 ARBEOTTE AR1,000,0007T 2
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR# 1,000,001 T2 AR 1,500,0007T 1
RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR#1,500,001 TZE A R #2,000,0007T 1
RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 AR#2,000,001 7TE A R#2,500,0007T 1
RMB2,500,001 to RMB3,000,000 AR#2,500,001 T2 A R#3,000,0007T -
RMB3,000,001 to RMB3,500,000 AR#3,000,001 7TE A R#3,500,0007T 2
7

*

As of December 31, 2024, the number of senior management was 7 individuals.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the Latest Practicable Date and based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained minimum public float of 25% as required under the

Listing Rules.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S SECURITIES
AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Share Option Scheme” in this
directors’ report, at no time during the year ended December 31, 2024 was
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or Chief Executive Officer or their respective associates to
subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of Shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, nor did the

Company enter into any equity-linked agreement.

* BE2024F12H31H 0 GREEEAZEIA -

RRERE

BERRAUTEY  REARRAESHRMH
BRRBEERAN  NAR BT ETARR
FrRE M 25% M RIEARFFRE -

BEAQXRAESFHNENRERES
9 17h 3

BRRAZEFgRE [ BRETE ] —&ERE
G ARARREAAIME R R REZE2024F12
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors and the controlling shareholders of the Company was
interested in any business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2024 which would require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the

Listing Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

We have received annual written confirmations from the controlling
shareholders of the Company, consisting of Mr. Guan Yihong and GYH BVI,
of the compliance with the provisions of the Deed of Non-competition by
such controlling shareholders and their close associates. The independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the compliance with the Deed of
Non-competition during the year ended December 31, 2024 based on the
information and confirmation provided by or obtained from the controlling
shareholders, and were satisfied that our controlling shareholders have duly

complied with the Deed of Non-competition.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors, auditors and other
officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or
may incur or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices.
Such provisions were in force throughout the year ended December 31, 2024

and are currently in force.
The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’

liabilities in respect of legal actions that may be brought against the Directors

during the year ended December 31, 2024.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING
AND THE TOP-UP PLACING

Our shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on January
15, 2020. A total of 333,400,000 ordinary shares comprising the Global
Offering with nominal value of US$0.0000001 each of the Company were
issued at HK$6.60 per Share for a total of approximately HK$2,200 million.
The net proceeds raised by the Company from the Global Offering is
approximately HK$2,057.9 million. On February 7, 2020, the Joint Global
Coordinators exercised the Over-allotment Option granted by the Company
under the Global Offering in full and pursuant to which the Company issued
and allotted an aggregate of 50,010,000 additional Shares at HK$6.60 per
Share for a total of approximately HK$330 million. The net proceeds raised
by the Company from the issue of Shares pursuant to the exercise of the
Over-allotment Option in full is approximately HK$315 million. The total
net proceeds from Global Offering amounted to approximately HKD2,372.9
million and had been fully utilized by March 10, 2024. For details, see the

annual results announcement of the Company dated March 22, 2024.

To supplement the Group's long-term funding of its expansion plan and
growth strategies, the Company entered into a placing and subscription
agreement with GYH BVI, three placing agents and certain other parties
on July 16, 2020. The Company successfully raised total net proceeds of
approximately HK$829.5 million through the top-up placing of 70,000,000
Shares to not less than six professional, institutional and/or individual
investors at the placing price of HKD11.99 per Share on July 30, 2020 (a
discount of approximately 5.44% to the closing price of HKD12.68 per Share
as quoted on the Stock Exchange on July 15, 2020, being the last trading day
on which the terms of the placing were fixed). The net placing price after
the deduction of expenses was approximately HK$11.85 per placing Share.
Details of the Group's use of proceeds from the top-up placing as at March
10, 2025 are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Use of Proceeds — Use of Proceeds from the Subscription” in this

annual report.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There was no connected transaction or continuing connected transaction
undertaken by the Company during the year ended December 31, 2024
and up to the date of this annual report which was required to be disclosed
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The related party transaction
disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements did not
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions of

the Company.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM will be held on Friday, June 6, 2025. A notice convening the AGM
and all other relevant documents will be published and despatched to the

Shareholders in the manner required by the Listing Rules in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the entitlement of the Shareholders to attend and
vote at the AGM, the Company's register of members will be closed from
Tuesday, June 3, 2025 to Friday, June 6, 2025, both dates inclusive, during
which period no transfer of share will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the AGM, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
shall ensure that all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, MUFG Corporate Markets Pty Limited, at Suite 1601, 16/F., Central
Tower, 28 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, June 2, 2025.

In order to determine the entitlement of the Shareholders to receive the
proposed final and special dividend, for the year ended December 31, 2024
the Company's register of members will be closed from Friday, June 13,
2025 to Tuesday, June 17, 2025, both dates inclusive, during which period
no transfer of share will be registered. In order to be eligible to receive the
proposed final and special dividend, unregistered holders of shares of the
Company shall ensure that all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, MUFG Corporate Markets Pty Limited, at Suite 1601,
16/F., Central Tower, 28 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, June 12, 2025.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are set out in

the Corporate Governance Report from pages 50 to 69 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and discussed the Group's risk management, internal
controls and financial reporting matters with the management. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements of

the Group for the year ended December 31, 2024.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024 have been
audited by KPMG who shall retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the

forthcoming AGM to re-appoint KPMG as the auditor of the Company.

Save as otherwise stated, all references above to other sections, reports or

notes in this annual report form part of this directors’ report.

On behalf of the Board
GUAN Yihong

Chairman

March 28, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B2 EE RS

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Jiumaojiu
International Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jiumaojiu
International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 112 to 236, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and notes, comprising material accounting policy information and other

explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code") together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman lIslands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement, was of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. The matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on the matter.

B ZBENRE
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ARG EVBRRETHERTRA/EEN
EIH - HIEHES M BRR]ETERERR
BEZFR BEHMUNGEEYBRRLKE
S ZATHRAREZEREBREHRER

FEEENERREEUARYE  BERRENRE

Assessing impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment in restaurants

ERELGAMEIREN T RE 1352136 HRI SR -

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 135 - 136.

The Key Audit Matter
ARERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMESLTEEZSZENARX

Local economic conditions and competition from other
restaurants impact the performance of the Group's restaurants.
There is a risk that the carrying amounts of the right-of-use
assets and property, plant and equipment of the restaurants
may not be recoverable by the future net cash flows to be
generated from the operations these restaurants.
BEMEERARKREAMERNGFTEESEERBNR
BoFEESEETERNCRAREENRYE  BFERE
BORAEBRLZBBCELSEESELNARRRCREF
ERPYE o

Each continued operating restaurant of the Group is identified
as a separate cash generating unit ("CGU"). Management
reviews the performance of these individual restaurants at
the end of each reporting period to identify if there is any
indication of impairment.

M EEENEMARECEERHNA—EEENERE
EEBEM((REELEMNL]) - ERENSHEHAREHER
EBOKRE - UBRIRE B ERERR -

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of right-of-
use assets and property, plant and equipment of restaurants
included the following:

BT EECRREENRYE  BFE RRERERNEZ
BT

understanding and evaluating the design and
implementation of key internal controls over the
impairment assessment;

B R 2 RV A B BRORU(E AT 14 B0 R 4 1A BRI
i

Vi R E

evaluating the impairment indicators adopted by
management with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

B 2 BENR S

KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

EREEXEE 5

Assessing impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment in restaurants

AEEENEREEENARYE  BERRENRE

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 135 - 136.

EREL A IREN 1 RE 1352 136 BRI S E -

The Key Audit Matter
BRELER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMESKTEEZZEANSRX

The recoverable amount of the restaurants with impairment
indicators is determined by management based on the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use of
the relevant restaurant. In determining the value-in-use of
the relevant restaurant, management prepares discounted
cash flow forecast. The preparation of discounted cash flow
forecast involves significant management judgement including
discount rate, future revenue, raw materials and consumables
used and staff costs. An impairment loss is recognised when
the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount of
the relevant restaurant. As at 31 December 2024, the Group
recognised an accumulated impairment loss of RMB134,193,000
and an impairment loss of RMB111,564,000 on property, plant
and equipment of restaurants for the year then ended.
ARERENEENAIKRECEHEEEREBHEBERENR
FEREENAREBEEREFTHNRSEET - NETEME
BEBNEABER TEEREMERSRETRA - HE
MRBeREBAPRERNEEEHE - BFERIRE - KK
WA ~ PR IR MK R B PA B B TROR i (EES IR R AT i
SRENERERNREERBER - K2024F12A8318
EEECHABRBEBEARK134,193,0007T © REEZ
HIEFFERHMERNYE BELARBHREBEARE
111,564,0007T °

with the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,
assessing the methodology adopted by management
in preparing the discounted cash flow forecasts with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;
EHEMAEEZIOHH T - 2ERITEERNR
EAMAEREERREARRSRESEASRANT
7

comparing the actual performance and the results of
selected restaurants for the current year with the forecasts
adopted by management in the prior year and making
enquiries with the management for any significant
variations identified and considering if there was any
indication of management bias;
HETEBNAFENERRERFEHEEREN L —
FRIRNOTDAETIEE - YRAHENNERNERER
MEEESHARRE TEERSATMNPRELRERERERE
ImEE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

B ZBENRE

EREEXEE 5

Assessing impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment in restaurants

AEEENEREEENARYE  BERRENRE

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 135 - 136.

EREL A IREN 1 RE 1352 136 BRI S E -

The Key Audit Matter
BRELER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMESKTEEZZEANSRX

Assessing impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant
and equipment of restaurants is identified as a key audit matter
due to high degree of judgement required in determining the
key assumptions used in estimating the value-in-use of the
restaurants. The determination of these assumptions could be
subject to management bias.
HREETARNEAHEEEREENERERNAIELSE
e WERHEERNERREERYE - BFERREBORE
WHPIRBERETFE ZERRVETAIRGXINERE
RRBNTE -

evaluating the appropriateness of key assumptions
adopted by management in the discounted cash flow
forecasts, including revenue as well as raw materials
and consumables used and staff costs to revenue ratio,
on a sample basis, by comparing to recent financial
performance; and management’s budgets approved by the
board of directors for the operations in 2025;

BB BCA M BRE REESSIENE R ERE2025
FHEERE  METEEEENERRSREEASP
RN BB R R (BB A RBT A RAE R FEM A K&
B IR AL R) REE T

with the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,
assessing the discount rates used in the discounted cash
flow forecasts by benchmarking against other similar listed
catering entities; and

ERMAMBEEERNHET - 2REMBEL EHER
B AMAMIRRESRERAFEANTERE &

evaluating the sensitivity analysis prepared by
management and considering whether reasonable change
in key assumptions used in the discounted cash flow
forecasts would materially affect the estimation of the
recoverable amounts of the selected restaurants.
AHEEEERENGRESN  UEBBRRSAEE
RPFRABARBRNAEEZEETSHETERA YA
TRNMFTELEEATE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B2 EE RS

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but

to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability

to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of

internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Group's internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B2 EE RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF R BB EBRGESHBHRENE
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {E(&)

(continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit.

We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Lam Kai Wa.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

INCR bt

for the year ended 31 December 2024 &£ 2024 12 A31HIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA R #5I7)

Note 2024 2023
Kzt 20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Revenue LN 6,073,644 5,985,850
Other revenue H A A 69,597 126,659
Raw materials and consumables used T BB IR A R FE#1 (2,162,104) (2,142,159)
Staff costs BT 5(b) (1,746,972) (1,544,103)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 5(e) (576,465) (485,330)
Other rentals and related expenses Hb T8 R AERIR (133,213) (138,844)
Depreciation and amortisation of other HtEER
assets PrE R 5(e) (291,975) (235,615)
Utility expenses KEME (252,947) (219,022)
Travelling and related expenses Z ik KA (29,626) (38,781)
Advertising and promotion expenses EEREREME (104,063) (84,523)
Other expenses HAbp% 5(d) (470,751) (438,588)
Share of losses of associates JEAGHE & N A 18 14 (3,924) (2,197)
Other net losses HoithE5 185 58 5(c) (74,667) (32,276)
Finance costs FE KA 5(a) (110,962) (92,868)
Impairment losses of property, plant and ME - BB KkEE
equipment BB 11(a) (111,564) (21,819)
Profit before taxation RRBE AT R 5 74,008 636,384
Income tax Frig a5t 6 (29,208) (156,386)
Profit for the year FERF 44,800 479,998
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
ReEmR

for the year ended 31 December 2024 £ 2024F12 431 B IEF/E

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN E#ZIR)

Note 2024 2023
Kzt 20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Attributable to: BT RS :
Equity shareholders of the Company RN AR 55,807 453,462
Non-controlling interests FEERRE R (11,007) 26,536
Profit for the year FEBF 44,800 479,998
Earnings per share SREF 10
Basic (RMB) EXR(ARET) 0.04 031
Diluted (RMB) g (AR 0.04 0.31
The notes on pages 121 to 236 form part of these financial statements. Details FIEEE 236 EMMTBN AT B®RERN—
of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to oy o ghF R M E R AN R B = IR SR AT AR
the profit for the year are set out in note 27(d). BHFHBHRME27) -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEmRRAMEERER

for the year ended 31 December 2024 &£ 2024 12 A31HIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA R #5IR)

Note 2024 2023
Kzt 20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Profit for the year FERF 44,800 479,998
Other comprehensive income for the year & EHfth 2 mE U 9
Items that will not be reclassified to B TrEEF D EEEmAEE
profit or loss:
Equity investments at fair value through RATERAEMEEKES
other comprehensive income — fRrERE —
net movement in fair value reserve NEFEZ D
(non-recycling) FEE (AR 14,802 (8,928)
Items that may be reclassified BEEAE BT
subsequently to profit or loss: EmfyEE -
Exchange differences on translation of HAE R B i A SN ZE 75 B 1S
financial statements of operations WERHELER
outside the Mainland China 45,185 33,265
Other comprehensive income for FEHMEZEKE
the year 59,987 24,337
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZHEUREHAEE 104,787 504,335
Attributable to: BT e :
Equity shareholders of the Company PiN/N 115,794 477,799
Non-controlling interests FEFERE (11,007) 26,536
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZHE WA 104,787 504,335
The notes on pages 121 to 236 form part of these financial statements. FI2VEEF 236 EMM BN AT BRI —
o o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

n‘/-.ﬁ

BRI R

as at 31 December 2024 72024512 A31H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA R#ZI7)

Note 2024 2023
Kzt 20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIE - R Rk 11 1,189,710 1,129,483
Right-of-use assets REEE 11 2,089,621 2,007,912
Intangible assets mEEE 12 26,386 25,674
Interests in associates kAN e 14 28,745 7,869
Other non-current financial assets HtFEneh e & E 15 400,502 137,309
Deferred tax assets RIERIEEE 25(b) 161,602 116,153
Rental deposits HERS 127,407 113,557
Other non-current assets HiFEmeEh & E 16 155,396 177,015
4,179,369 3,714,972
Current assets RBEE
Inventories LA 17 115,456 132,074
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E b EKGIE 18 769,965 643,844
Restricted bank deposits SRR HRITFER 19(a) 306,504 231,456
Deposits with banks with original maturity ~ REIEIBBB=EA &
date over three months RITER 19(a) 510,355 471,631
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 19(a) 606,974 1,326,902
2,309,254 2,805,907
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk E A FE FRIE 20 622,597 696,971
Contract liabilities BMAE 21 19,767 7,909
Lease liabilities HERE 22 601,523 539,473
Bank loans RITEN 24 305,817 90,000
Current taxation BIEAT IR 25(a) 43,032 68,223
1,592,736 1,402,576
Net current assets REBEERE 716,518 1,403,331
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
n‘/-.lK Aji&%ﬁtﬁi§5

as at 31 December 2024 $220244 12 431 H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA R #5IR)

Note 2024 2023
Biat 2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ETR ARBET T

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans HRITER 24 73,608 154,162
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 1,581,548 1,545,050
Provisions B 23 51,531 47,293
Derivative financial liabilities TESmBsE 28(e) 27,551 8,905
Deferred tax liabilities FIEHIER R 25(b) 10,497 5,877
1,744,735 1,761,287

NET ASSETS EERE 3,151,152 3,357,016
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXR#E
Share capital &N 27(a) 1 ]
Reserves it 27(c) 3,151,685 3,335,534
Total equity attributable to equity AATERRRELERETE

shareholders of the Company 3,151,686 3,335,535
Non-controlling interests IR ER (534) 21,481
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 3,151,152 3,357,016
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March LEEGHN2025F3 A28 BitLE RIS -
2025.
GUAN Yihong Su Danman
ERE L5387 ]
Chairman Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
FE HITEFFKEENBE
The notes on pages 121 to 236 form part of these financial statements. F121BEF 236 EMMFEBRAT BTN —

#5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SR

n‘/-ﬁ

L 424

2B

for the year ended 31 December 2024 £ 2024F12 431 B IEF/E
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA RS )

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FRTERRRE
Share- Fair value
based Teserve Non-
Share Share Capital Treasury  payments  Statutory  Exchange (non- Retained controling Total
Note capital premium feserve shares eserve eserve reserve  recycling) profits Total interests equity
o)
BARN AVERE
it Bx  BhRE  ERBE  BRR  AREE  EREE  EXRE (FTHE) Zi @ FhRER  SER
RMBOOO  RVBOOO  AMBOOD  AMBOOO  RWBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBO0D
ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR
note 276) - note 27(c)fi)  note 7)) note 27@)i) - note 27(c)i)  note 7)) note 7)) note 27(c)v)
Koy WEzon KR KEoem KEaom KEzom  KEaon KEaom
Balance at 31 December 2022 W2022F128318R
and 1 January 2023 WBE1R1ANES 1 2780454 2 - 48147 197572 (2816) 10229 140693 3174282 24850 3199132
Changesinequityfor2023: RO ENERET:
Profitor the year EREA - - - - - - - Y A Y ) 15% 4719998
Other comprehensive income Ap2EhE - - - - - - 33265 (3928) - U337 XL
Total comprehensive income 2EkREE - - - - - - 33265 [Bog) 44 4179 65% 50433
Purchase of own shares BOESRN 600 - - - 137259) - - - - - 1375) - )
Cancelation o shres BE-LU) 7604 4 (1375) S A - - - - - - - -
Capitalinjecton from FERERE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - 4000 4000
Equity-setted share-based HEREENRAA
transactions AR % - - - - 2% - - - - 215 -0
Shares issued under REEREHE
share options scheme RS el E 5974 - - (1034 - - - - 4940 - 4940
Share options orfeted duing ~ FRERKAEERE
the year % - - - - (3826) - - - 3826 - - -
Acquisition of non-contolling.~ WEBER iR
interests ()i - - - - - - - - (192,589) (192,589) (6905 (199.494)
Dividends approved and paidto~~ BRLERE AT
shareholders of the Company TRARENRE ) - (12799) - - - - - - - (1279) - (127%)
Dividends approved to ERETHELR
non-controling nterest FAREERAA
holders in a subsidiary HRE - - - - - - - - - - Q7000 (27,000)
Appropriation to satutory resene  BEEFRER 6 - - - - - 66307 - - (66,307) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2023 R03E12831BNES 1 2636378 2 - 64440 263879 30449 1301 339,085 3335935 2481 3357016
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
nV_F *E\/ ?E%@J%‘:Z

for the year ended 31 December 2024 &£ 2024 12 A31HIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA R #5IR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARTRERFEE
Share- Fair value
based reserve Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Treasury  payments  Statutory  Exchange (non- Retained controlling Total
Note capital  premium reserve shares reserve reserve reserve  recycling) profits Total interests equity
HRH
RERY NYERE

it Bx  ROEE EARE  ERR  (RRE  EERR  EXRR (FURE)  REXA & FEREE  4RE
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ABETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTT ARMTL ARETR
note 276) - note 27(c)fi) - note 27(c)fj)  note 27@)ii) - note 27(c)fi)  note 7)) note 7)) note 7))
M Bizon  HEzon KEza KEzom  REzom  Kdzow  BEzom)

Balance at 31 December 2023 W2023%128318R
and 1 January 2024 WHEIR1ANESR 1 2636378 2 - G40 263879 30449 1301 339085 3335535 21481 3357016

Changes in equity for 2024; RuENERED:

Profitor the year EREA - - - - - - - - S807  SS807 (11,007 44800
Other comprehensive income Ep2E%E - - - - - - 45,185 14,802 - 59,987 - 59987
Total comprehensive income 2EkaEE - - - - - - 45,185 14,802 55807 115794 (11,007) 104787
Purchase of own shaes BOESRH e - - - (126379) - - - - - (126379) - (126379)
Cancelltion ofshares HER 608 - (126379) - 16319 - - - - - - - -
Capitalinjection from HARER TR

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - - -
Equity-settled share-based HEREENRAA

transactions A2 % - - - - B - - - - B -
Share options orfeted duing ~ FRERKAEERE

the year % - = = = (12072) = = - 12072 - - -
Acquisition of non-contolling.~ WEBEATRER

Interests 2716\ - - - - - - - - 1187 1187 (1197) (10)
Dividends approved and paidto ~ ©REREIA P

shareholders of the Company BRERRNRE 4 - (192678) - - - - - - - (192678) - (192678)
Dividends approved to BHETHEAR

non-controlling interest FoRESEA

holders n & subsidiary fRE - - - - - - - - - - (981)  (981)
Appropriation to stautory resene BEETEME i) - - - - -0 - - IR - - -
Balance at 31 December 2024 W2024%12331 A EE 1231730 2 - T05%5 286032 75634 16103 385998 3,151,686 (534) 3,151,152

*  The amount represents amount less than RMB1,000. *  BHRE2BELHARE,0007T -
The notes on pages 121 to 236 form part of these financial statements. FI21EEFE 236 AN EBA AT BRI —
o e
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
BRETMER

for the year ended 31 December 2024 £ 2024F12 431 B IEF/E
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA R#ZI7)

n‘/-ﬁ

Note 2024 2023
Mzt 2024 % 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT
Operating activities RESER
Cash generated from operations KEMFIRE 19(b) 1,076,225 1,119,548
Income tax paid EFTEH 25(a) (100,243) (107,112)
Net cash generated from RETHFABRETHE
operating activities 975,982 1,012,436
Investing activities RETE
Payment for purchases of property, plant BEME - BEMEEBAKR
and equipment, and right-of-use assets FAEEENRK (527,950) (576,222)
Payment for purchases of intangible assets & B & E RT3 (12,921) (10,321)
Advances for investment WETERRK (10,629) (23,889)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME - BEREBEUR
and equipment, and right-of-use assets FABEENMSHIE 5,466 1,212
Payment for interests in associates XFHE S A E R A R (300)
Loans to associates MEE RN RREER 30(b) (22,000) (52,440
Repayment from associates Bt N EIER 30(b) 15,950 49,000
Payment for premises on behalf of RE—EHRERIERRRERD
an entity owned by the EREMRMESK
ultimate controlling shareholder - (80,748)
Repayment from the ultimate controlling B AR PER AR SR AR R B mR AR 9E
shareholder on behalf of an entity RREBNEBER
owned by the ultimate controlling
shareholder - 80,748
Interest received EFE 43,090 69,970
Dividend received [ ¥ 979 1,681
Payment for deposits with banks with REEB@EE=(EA5
original maturity date over three months IRITIFRETR (510,355) (471,631)
Withdrawal of deposits with banks with BRI EBEBB=EAN
original maturity date over three months RITIFR 471,631 852,241
Payment for purchases of other BEAMESREEMNMR
financial assets (246,394) -
Restoration costs paid BHEER A (4,499) (394)
Other cash flows arising from investing WERDEEMNHEMBERE
activities 160 10,600
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHFARSFE (797,772) (150,193)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

n‘/-ﬁ IE’%/)“J%%

for the year ended 31 December 2024 &£ 2024 12 A31HIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA R #5IR)

Note 2024 2023
Kzt 20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Financing activities RS SE B
Proceeds from issuance of shares EITER B IRE R ITAR M BY
due to exercise of share options Frig k18 27(a)(ii) = 4,940
Payment for purchase of own shares EARISE- g RN EN 27(a)(iii) (126,379) (137,255)
Proceeds from bank loans RITERSRIEA 19(c) 284,008 286,789
Repayment of bank loans EERITER 19(c) (148,745) (72,627)
Payment of capital element and interest HEaREALD &
element of lease liabilities FEHBA IR 19(c) (631,284) (531,530)
Interest of bank loans paid BEARITERFE 19(c) (10,314) (4,734)
Capital injection from non-controlling WA RIS E R T E
interests of subsidiaries - 4,000
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling U BE T 88 B FEFE AR A a5 3K
interests of subsidiaries 19(c) (69,494) (130,000)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders BERARAERRRNRE
of the Company 27(d) (192,678) (12,795)
Dividends paid to non-controlling B 3EERERSE ANRE
interests holders 19(c) (9,811) (53,200)
Net cash used in financing activities REEBFTAR F5E (904,697) (646,412)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRREFEYH
cash equivalents F O A,/ 480 (726,487) 215,831
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January M ATERE S RBSEED 19(a) 1,326,902 1,098,872
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HINFE DB 2R B ) R 6,559 12,199
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R 12A31HMBR S MBS EEY 19(a) 606,974 1,326,902
The notes on pages 121 to 236 form part of these financial statements. F121EEE 236 MM HBA AT BTN —
5 e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR ERR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G850 + UA RBEZIT)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
which collective term includes all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Material accounting policies

adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs that are first effective
or available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 1(c) provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current accounting

period reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2024 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as

the “Group”) and the Group's interest in associates.

Item included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are
measured using the currency that best reflects the economic substance
of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the entity
(the “Functional Currency”). The financial statements are presented in
Renminbi ("RMB"), rounded to the nearest thousand except for earnings
per share information. The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis except that financial
assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) and financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

(FVPL) are stated at their fair value as explained in note 1(f).

1
(a)

EEETTHE
BHREH

R BHRRDBBERAR G EAIEES R
e B A 3B R Y B R B 7 s 5 R B (B2 40 1
B & P A A E B B BR B i s AR A
Rart A RRE) KEB QARG K
BRERE AU BRENTFEEEHS
REGMARATES MR EAHKE
RE - REBEMMRKANEZE S HEREKE
U

B LR EE R EAE THRAEE
AR AT I &R AR AR AT SR e B
RS MEEANERT R - EERANEEFRE
B & B A B R E R E e BB AT AP 5 B
ERIeFHENEAeTBRRER 20
RUBHRRARR - BEERHHIAM T
1(c) °

BB mREREE

HZE2024F 12 A31 BILEE NG A MBR
KBEREARRAREMNBRAR (KB A&
B ) RAEENB L N F LS -

AEBERZBERNPERRABENIERRT
ERARERREZEBHBNEESE TR
BANKEEENER ([TWeeE® )&t
B UBHRRAARBZE  BHESEY
MERAZEKEANTE - ESKRET
BRRIN - REMBHRRAEAOGFEER
ERELRAEE - MR FEFTAEM
PHKRBAFENEBMEERRAFETA
BaitENeREEREAFESK (L
BYEE () PEEE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR ERR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of

estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued the following new and amended IFRSs that are first

effective for the current accounting period of the Group:

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements
- Classification of liabilities as current or non-current ("2020
amendments”) and amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Non-current liabilities with covenants ("2022

amendments”)

Amendments to IFRS 16, Leases — Lease liability in a sale and

leaseback

Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows and IFRS 7, Financial

instruments: Disclosures — Supplier finance arrangements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (55 % &% BF5h

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued)

None of these developments have had a material effect on how the
Group's results and financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods have been prepared or presented in this annual financial report.
The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is

not yet effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity The financial statements of subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on

which control commences until the date on which control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income
and expenses (except for foreign currency transaction gains or losses)
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests (“NCI") either at fair value or at the NCl's
proportionate share of the subsidiary’'s net identifiable assets.NC| are
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company. NCl in the results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between NCI and the equity shareholders of the Company.
Loans from holders of NCI and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with notes 1(q) or (r)

depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a

loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K55 5 &% 8H5h

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR R R M

n‘/-F

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it derecognises the
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related NCI and other
components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary is measured at fair

value when control is lost.

In the Company's statement of financial position, an interest in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(k)(ii)),
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group

classified as held for sale).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over the financial and

operating policies.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
classified as held for sale). They are initially recognised at cost, which
includes transaction costs. Subsequently, the consolidated financial
statements include the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income (“OCI") of those investees, until the date on

which significant influence ceases.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate,
the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method, together with any other long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group's net investment
in the associate, after applying the ECL model to such other long-term

interests where applicable (see note 1(k)(i)).

Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted
investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the
Group's interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent there is no

evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (55 % &% BF5h

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other investments in securities

The Group’s policies for investments in equity securities, other than

investments in subsidiaries and associates, are set out below.

Investments in securities are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investment. The investments are
initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs,
except for those investments measured at FVPL for which transaction
costs are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of
how the Group determines fair value of financial instruments, see note
28(e). These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,

depending on their classification.

Non-equity investments

Non-equity investments are classified into one of the following

measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection of
contractual cash flows which represent solely payments of principal
and interest. Expected credit losses, interest income calculated
using the effective interest method (see note 1(v)(iv)), foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain

or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

- FVOCI - recycling, if the contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Expected credit losses, interest income (calculated using
the effective interest method) and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss and computed in the same
manner as if the financial asset was measured at amortised cost.
The difference between the fair value and the amortised cost is
recognised in OCl. When the investment is derecognised, the

amount accumulated in OCl is recycled from equity to profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K55 5 &% 8H5h

(ii)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR R R M

n‘/-F

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other investments in securities (continued)
Non-equity investments (continued)

- FVPL if the investment does not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair
value of the investment (including interest) are recognised in profit

or loss.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL, unless the
investment is not held for trading purposes and on initial recognition
the Group makes an irrevocable election to designate the investment
at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value
are recognised in OCl. Such elections are made on an instrument-by-
instrument basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. If such election is
made for a particular investment, at the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings and not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends
from an investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether classified
as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other income (see
note 1(v)(iii)).

Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to manage its foreign

currency risk exposures.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they are

measured at fair value with changes therein recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (55 % &% BF5h

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including construction in progress,
are stated at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses (see
note 1(k)(ii)). No depreciation is provided for in respect of construction

in progress until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items

(major components).

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment

is recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual values, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and is generally

recognised in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as

follows:

Leasehold Improvement Over the shorter of the lease term

and 5 years
Kitchen equipment 5 years
Electronic equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Furniture and fixtures and 5 years

other equipment
Freehold land Not depreciated as the freehold land
has unlimited useful life

Buildings situated on Over their estimated useful life, being
freehold land no more than 25 years after the date
of acquisition

Leasehold land Depreciated over the unexpired term

of lease

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed

annually and adjusted if appropriate.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K55 5 &% 8H5h

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR R R M

n‘/-F

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets

Research and development costs comprise all costs that are directly
attributable to research and development activities or that can be

allocated on a reasonable basis to such activities.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. Development expenditure is capitalised only if the expenditure
can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable and the
Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development
and to use or sell the resulting asset. Otherwise, it is recognised in profit
or loss as incurred. Capitalised development expenditure is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated

impairment losses.

Other intangible assets, including brand name, that are acquired by the
Group and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated

amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses (see note 1(k)(ii)).
Expenditure on internally generated brands, is recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less
their estimated residual values using the straight-line method over their

useful lives, if any, and is generally recognised in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as

follows:
- Software 5 years
- Brand name 5 years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed

annually and adjusted if appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (55 % &% BF5h

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is,
or contains, a lease. This is the case if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially

all of the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-lease
component(s), the Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and accounts for each lease component and any associated

non-lease components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability, except for leases that have a short lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value items such as apartments
and electronic devices. When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value item, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis. If not capitalised, the associated lease payments are

recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at
the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing
rate. After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised
cost and interest expense is recognised using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability and are

charged to profit or loss as incurred.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K55 5 &% 8H5h

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR R R M

MF

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leased assets (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see notes

1(h) and 1(k)(ii)).

Refundable rental deposits are accounted for separately from the right-
of-use assets in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to
investments in non-equity securities carried at amortised cost (see notes
1(H)(0), 1(k)()) and 1(v)(iv)). Any excess of the nominal value over the initial
fair value of the deposits is accounted for as additional lease payments

made and is included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change
in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or
is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use

asset has been reduced to zero.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (55 % &% BF5h

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leased assets (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a lease modification,
which means a change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease contract, if such
modification is not accounted for as a separate lease. In this case, the
lease liability is remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the

modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the current portion
of long-term lease liabilities is determined as the present value of
contractual payments that are due to be settled within twelve months

after the reporting period.

Credit losses and impairment of assets
Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL"s)
on financial assets measured at amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, including those loans
to associates that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows

which represent solely payments of principal and interest);

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Generally,
credit losses are measured as the present value of all expected cash

shortfalls between the contractual and expected amounts.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K55 5 &% 8H5h

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR R R M

n‘/-F

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following rates if

the effect is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets and trade and other receivables: effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition or an approximation

thereof.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum

contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are the portion of ECLs that result from
default events that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the

instrument is less than 12 months); and

- lifetime ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to which the ECL model

applies.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime

ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 12-months ECLs:

- financial instruments that are determined to have low credit risk at

the reporting date; and

- other financial instruments for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of
default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument)

has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount

equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
n‘/-ﬁ /\Zl-ﬁ&#&%% M_.I-

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G850 + UA RBEZIT)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition and when measuring
ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on
the Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment, that

includes forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased

significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on their

contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial

instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating

results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have a significant adverse effect on the

debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the Group.
The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:
- the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group

in full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising

security (if any is held).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K55 5 &% 8H5h

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR R R M

n‘/-F

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

The Group considers a financial instrument to have low credit risk when
its credit risk rating is equivalent to the globally understood definition of

‘investment grade’.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the
financial instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in
the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account, except for investments in non-equity
securities that are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which the loss
allowance is recognised in OCl and accumulated in the fair value reserve
(recycling) does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in

the statement of financial position (see note 1(f)(i)).

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash

flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following

observable events:
- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;
- abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that

the Group would not consider otherwise;
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(ii)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (55 % &% BF5h

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

- it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other

financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of

financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group otherwise determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to

repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the period in

which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
non-financial assets (other than inventories and deferred tax assets) to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such

indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that
are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or cash-

generating units ("CGU’s).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR R R M

n‘/-ﬁ

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal. Value in use is based on
the estimated future cash flows discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the

time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or

CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU,
and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU

on a pro rata basis

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
resulting carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no

impairment loss had been recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the

financial year (see note 1(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of goodwill
are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the interim period

relates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (55 % &% BF5h

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.

) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non-
refundable consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(v)). A contract liability is also recognised if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive non-refundable consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such latter cases, a

corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see note 1(n)).

When the contract includes a significant financing component, the
contract balance includes interest accrued under the effective interest

method (see note 1(v)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional right
to receive consideration and only the passage of time is required before

payment of that consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
are initially measured at their transaction price. Trade receivables that
contain a significant financing component and other receivables are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. All receivables are

subsequently stated at amortised cost (see note 1(k)(i)).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K55 5 &% 8H5h

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B SRR MIEE

n‘/-F

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Software-as-a-service (SaaS) arrangement costs

A Saa$S arrangement is a service arrangement where the Group has a
right to access to the supplier's application software running on the
supplier’s cloud infrastructure during the term of the arrangement, but

not control over the underlying software asset.

Costs to implement a SaaS arrangement, including those incurred in
configuring or customising the access to the supplier’s application
software, are evaluated to determine if they give rise to a separate
asset that the Group controls. Any resulting asset is recognised and
accounted for in accordance with the policy for intangible assets as
set out in note 1(i). Implementation costs that do not give rise to an
asset are recognised in profit or loss as incurred, which may be over the
period the configuration or customisation services are received to the
extent that such services are distinct from the SaaS, or over the term of
the SaaS arrangement to the extent the configuration or customisation

services are not distinct from the SaaS.

Payment made in advance of receiving the related services is recognised

as prepayment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions and other short-
term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL (see note 1(k)(i)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other payables are stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in

which case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value less
transaction costs. Subsequently, these borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense is

recognised in accordance with note 1(x).
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(ii)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (55 % &% BF5h

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is
provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid
if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the

obligation can be estimated reliably.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in a defined contribution basic pension insurance in the
social insurance system established and managed by government
organisations. The Group makes contributions to basic pension
insurance plans based on the applicable benchmarks and rates
stipulated by the government. The local government authorities are
responsible for the pension obligations payable to the retired employees
covered under the defined contribution basic pension insurance. There
are no forfeited contributions for the defined contribution basic pension
insurance in the PRC social insurance system as the contributions are

fully vested to the employees upon payment to the scheme.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as part of the cost of assets or expensed as the related

service is provided.

Share-based payments

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled shares or share options
granted to employees is measured using the income approach model,
in case of shares granted, or the binomial option pricing model, in
case of share options granted. The amount is generally recognised as
an expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the vesting
period of the awards. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the number of awards for which the related service conditions
are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised is
based on the number of awards that meet the related service conditions
at the vesting date. The equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is included in the
amount recognised in share capital for the shares issued) or the option

expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.-vT\ 7f ﬁ&#ﬁ% |Zﬁ

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

1T MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Group can

no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group

recognises costs fora restructuring.

(t) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a

business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable or receivable on
the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustments to the
tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received that reflects any uncertainty related to
income taxes. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively

enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising

from dividends

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting

purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is

not recognised for:

- temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and
that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does

not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences;

- temporary differences related to investment in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture to the extent that the Group is able to

control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and

it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (55 % &% BF5h

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of

goodwill; and

- those related to the income taxes arising from tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted to implement the Pillar Two model rules
published by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and

Development.

The Group recognised deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
separately in relation to its lease liabilities, provisions and right-of-use

assets.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the
reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences. If the amount of
taxable temporary differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred tax
asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing
temporary differences, are considered, based on the business plans for
individual subsidiaries in the Group. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are

reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and

liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K55 5 &% 8H5h

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR R R M

n‘/-F

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Generally provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of

the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the

probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision
is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a separate asset is
recognised for any expected reimbursement that would be virtually
certain. The amount recognised for the reimbursement is limited to the

carrying amount of the provision.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the sale

of goods and the provision of services.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income recognition are

as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group is the principal for its revenue transactions and recognises
revenue on a gross basis. In determining whether the Group acts as a
principal or as an agent, it considers whether it obtains control of the
products before they are transferred to the customers. Control refers to
the Group's ability to direct the use of and obtain substantially all of the

remaining benefits from the products or services.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is
transferred to the customer at the amount of promised consideration to
which the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties such as value added tax or other

sales taxes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (55 % &% BF5h

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue and other income (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

The Group principally generates revenue from restaurant operations and

delivery business.

For restaurant operations and delivery business for which the control of
services is transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised when the

related services have been rendered to customers.

Management and service fee income

Management and service fee income is recognised when related services

are rendered.

Dividends

- Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on

which the Group's right to receive payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. In calculating interest
income, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired). However,
for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to
initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no
longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to

the gross basis.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K55 5 &% 8H5h

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR R R M

MF

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue and other income (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received

and that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised
as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in

which the expenses are incurred.

Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of

reduced depreciation expense.

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective
functional currencies of Group companies at the exchange rates at the

dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the
reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction. Foreign currency differences are generally recognised in

profit or loss.

However, foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the

following items are recognised in OCl:

- aninvestment in equity securities designated as at FVOC|;

144 e JIJUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED hENEFRZEAR B R A )

F UABRHEST)

1

BEESHBE #®)

v) WAREMRE (&)
v) BUERE

T 88 B 1A A] & 3R B OR 7S 5 1 S U B BK TF
1 B B 58 <1 E AT B 75 1R 1 B 0 B A AR
RYOBHER

AREEREED ELF MBI X
EENR—HEAE RGN ERER R
A e

MEAREEERANBH HIREERT
BRIk HRRZBEENAERHE
U A ER e T A B BRFER -

(w) SNE]E

INEZ ZRZZ AN ERGE
RERREBHNIEEE -

RN SE]

MINESHEMNEBEERBERRE A Y
MEXRMEDINERE - IR FEAINE
AEMNFEREERABRABEEAFE
ME B ERINEEE M o IR LA IAIN

KItERFEREERBBERRZAHN
PERIME o NSRRIV IBSER o

AW HEUTEREEENIMNEZERE
b 2 R R -

— EEARAFEMALLRERIEN
BAESRE



1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (55 % &% BF5h

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including fair value
adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated into RMB at the foreign
exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of
foreign operations are translated into RMB at the exchange rates at the

dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in OCl and accumulated
in the exchange reserve, except to the extent that the translation

difference is allocated to NCI.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such
that control or significant influence is lost, the cumulative amount in
the exchange reserve related to that foreign operation is reclassified
to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. On disposal of a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation that have
been attributed to the NCI shall be derecognised, but shall not be
reclassified to profit or loss. If the Group disposes of part of its interest
in a subsidiary but retains control, then the relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is reattributed to NCI. When the Group disposes
of only part of an associate while retaining significant influence, the
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or

loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are

expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

n‘/-F

1

B IR R R

AN RESR)
BEESTTEE %)

w) INEIRE ()

BIEBNEERAE (BRERAKBELEN
NPEAR) mRERANERBRESAR
¥ o BN EBMIR IR 5 A HH & R i

SNEZENEMEE RSP ERNNERL
T R HEEX ZRABAIERE

S o

Bk

2R D M EBINETR - AmEKE
HIEREATEN  BZEINEBEED
ERFEEN R 2ESEN D BERS
ERHERSEXABEN - - REEER

FEEIEBNRBERARR - CRBRIEE
BESNERZEIRTNINEZENR
AERERIER ETEEMOBEER
@ MARBELERMB AN D
o BREESE - AZRFSEF M

FALL OIS X ER  SR I i a2 (AR

AEERBE RN Em - BRE
AFES  Z2TeFEPORBLLABE
HoEEER -

(EE DN

M—HEERREREE S I EERERE

BEMAGRIHE  MEERBRWE - &
BRAEEZREENBIRABHEARL
RZAEBERAN —#80 o M ERKAE

EELEMIIES L -

ZZ - FF R ANNUAL REPORT 2024 o 145



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.-vT\ 7J ﬁ&-‘F&%‘% |Zﬁ

(Fxpressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br = B 185N + XA R BESITR)

1 EESTTEE %)

1T MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(y) Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the Group

or the Group's parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow

subsidiary is related to the others).
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or

an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).
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(y)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (55 % &% BF5h

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies: (continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or

to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their

dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance

of, the Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

n‘/-F

1

B IR R R

AN RESR)

BEESHBE 2)

BAE S (&)

(b) A FHMEM &M - Bl — R m
AEEEEY  (8)

(vii) @) FTHBIA THZE R
FENNBZER (HZEE
AR FEEBABZ— -

o

<

/

=
A

(vii) ZEEREMBEENTIAKER
AMAEERARESAFRMET
EEIEABRT

ERIA LB RREK B TR IEEE
BRXIHAEEZALTHETEZEREZA
ITRENRENKE -

N

72 EBER &
LENBRABREMELBOEH HE
8 IREEHRNAEEREEEAR
RUWVBEERHT - SEERABKE
ZEERARERTARETRES it
A AT A R S S R R -

HJ]

AMBHREMS - EREREEDBIE
RAEEWm RIFRFDBEBRULER
HhEERNMRBUEE  EERFMEE -
BEBLLEN - DHERIIRHERSEAT
RANTAMEERF G TEBEMY
ERImELIFBERNEEN BNE Lt
REbD4s L - RIFTREAR B 25 ©

—Z 4 F 3 ANNUAL REPORT 2024 © 147



(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & &% BFS)

2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B SRR MIEE

n‘/-ﬁ

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Notes 26 and 28 contain information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to fair value of restricted stock units/share
options granted and financial instruments. Other significant sources of

estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to assess whether there is any indication that
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets is estimated. Changes in
facts and circumstances may result in revisions to the conclusion of
whether an indication of impairment exists and revised estimates of

recoverable amounts, which would affect profit or loss in future periods.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, and right-of-use assets, are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in
order to determine the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives are based on the Group's
historical experience with similar assets. The depreciation expense for
future periods is adjusted if there are material changes from previous

estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 & 3% 855

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Provision for restoration costs

As explained in note 23, the Group makes provision for restoration
costs based on the best estimate of the expected costs to be incurred
upon expiry of the respective rental agreements, which are subject to
uncertainty and might differ from the actual costs incurred. Any increase

or decrease in the provision would affect profit or loss in future periods.

Determining the lease term

As explained in policy note 1(j), the lease liability is initially recognised at
the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term. In
determining the lease term at the commencement date for leases that
include renewal options exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates
the likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking into account all
relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for
the Group to exercise the option, including favourable terms, leasehold
improvements undertaken and the importance of that underlying asset
to the Group's operation. The lease term is reassessed when there is a
significant event or significant change in circumstance that is within
the Group's control. Any increase or decrease in the lease term would
affect the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised

in future years.

n‘/-ﬁ

2

(0)

BTSRRI

AN RESR)
St ¥ R AEE )

EERAE R

BAAM FE23 PR AL - AR B Bt TR B A
A 1H & 195 o JE R B TS AR Y B AN R AR A
nﬂ’ﬁﬁﬂ“@ﬁizﬁﬁéfﬁ mEBREEXE
THHRERFE  BAEAINERESL
BB AN 1ﬁ§%%§fﬁﬁfﬁfﬂﬁibﬂﬁkﬁ9‘ :

1 & B R R AR RS M 18

EEHES

NP 1() T - HERBAEE
HARNEENRNREETVAER
REEAEEATENERERENEE
EERABASNEERL  AEEEE
BAERIEEEFENEREETEEER

ROERFEERER - BRBNAERR -
EMEEMERE  URZEREES
ZTSE@%LE’UEE’IE MR AT AR

BEENARENE  BAERFHELE A
BAKEZEGSEANNBRAERE B
ENeEHNE HERNEMEE SR
ERRFERRNEHERBRERESR
EaE -

ZZZMFFH ANNUAL REPORT 2024 © 149



NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARSER®RE
(a) Revenue (@) WA
The principal activities of the Group are restaurant operations, delivery RAEENTEXBREBRKE  INEET
business and sales of goods. REMHE -
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) WADE
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by major REXERBIBEAIOMNKBETS K
service lines is as follows: ADEET
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARETT

Revenue from contracts with customers BRET ISR ERIE 15K EE R
within the scope of IFRS 15: HRBEEZESHHRA :

Restaurant operations BELE 4,880,419 5,066,466

Delivery business HNE FETE 1,043,415 901,219

Sales of goods EmiHE 139,399 17,017

Others A, 10,411 1,148
6,073,644 5,985,850

Note: Revenue was mainly recognised at point in time when control over a ek - Hﬁl?\ﬂixﬁ"”‘f%uu‘iﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ'ﬁ hlEES

product or service was transferred to the customer. ZEEHRHEEER
No revenue from individual customer contributing over 10% of total MEEDEENRE E2024F &2023F12
revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. A3BLEFESREENBRAERER
10% °
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(a)
(ii)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k55 % &% B95h

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Revenue (continued)

Revenue expected to be recognised in the future arising from
contracts in existence at the reporting date

Contracts within the scope of IFRS 15

As at 31 December 2024, the aggregated amount of the transaction
price allocated to the remaining performance obligations under the
Group's existing contracts is RMB14,038,000. This amount represents
the customer loyalty scheme. The Group will recognise the expected
revenue in future over the remaining contract period, which is expected

to occur over the next 12 to 24 months.

Segment Reporting

The Group manages its businesses by restaurant brands. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group has

presented the following reportable segments.

Tai Er: this segment operates restaurants featuring signature dish

Chinese sauerkraut fish and delivery business under Tai Er brand.

Song Hot Pot: this segment operates restaurants featuring hot pot

under Song Hot Pot brand.

Jiu Mao Jiu: this segment operates restaurants and delivery business

offering family-oriented food under Jiu Mao Jiu brand.

Others: this segment mainly includes operating restaurants in other
brands such as Fresh Wood and Shandeshanwaimian, and the

operation of the Group's all other businesses.

n‘/-ﬁ

3

B IR R R

AN RESR)
WARDEERE (&)

a) WA (&)

(ii)

REAEMK TRIARENES BHE
FENSHHBA

EIBR A 7 3 & ZE R 15 35 8 B A Y
B

M2024F 12318 HEEAEEBREE
HETHTBUNETHNRZEREERA
R#14,038,0007T ° It & REIEEE LM
Bl REEARBHERBTANBREL
WA A - A TEEE R AR 12224
BANELE -

7 PR
HK%TR%E?EDHEE%EEH%% o AEER
REAAEEZEHETHREEABRER

ﬁEE&E’%fﬁaﬁmﬁﬁW%Bﬁ*#lﬁi&-?ﬁ(é’\]
IR 2WTIIAIIHREDEL

K ZORMEEAKR Z R HIE
KA ABRKXARINEEERFENE

RN 2oy BRAE B A

KB BB EOEE -

K dm B

NEN: ZOAKEBRBRINER
B UNENBRERIARERER
R -

Hfth 3% 5 &b B4 DA qh R 45 4 1
BE - WMESHUARLWUAGWLSNE - A
NG EREBPTA H M 2T -

ZZ 4 F 3 ANNUAL REPORT 2024 @ 151



(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K55 5 &% 8H5h

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR R R M

n‘/-F

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
Segment Reporting (continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group's senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable

segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and current assets
with the exception of interests in associates, other non-current financial
assets, deferred tax assets and other headquarter assets. Segment
liabilities include lease liabilities, provisions, trade and other payables
and contract liabilities attributable to the restaurant operations activities
of the individual segments and bank borrowings managed directly by

the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise from the

depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “Non-GAAP Operating
Profit’, i.e. revenue deducting the following expenses at store-level (i)
raw materials and consumables used, (i) staff costs, (iii) depreciation
of right-of-use assets, (iv) other rentals and related expenses, (v)
depreciation and amortisation of other assets, (vi) utility expenses, (vii)
advertising and promotion expenses and (viii) other expenses, excluding

unallocated headquarter expenses.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning Non-GAAP
Operating Profit, management is provided with segment information
concerning inter segment sales, expense from borrowings managed
directly by the segments, net losses/(gains) on disposal of property,

plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATENIENTS

BTSRRI

n‘/-ﬁ
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G &850 + UA RBEZITR)
REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WARDEHRKE (&)
Segment Reporting (continued) (b) 7 EBHE (&)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () oHEE BEREGE(E)
Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as provided TXEFI R E = 2024F K% 2023412 831H
to the Group's most senior executive management for the purposes of IEFFERERAREAFTHDBRIAMASE
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance for the EsmETHEREASREHAREE R
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 is set out below. EDEBHIE RS o
TaiEr Song Hot Pot JiuMao Jiu Others Total
K= %8 AER B Eh
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
WHE ABE 0UE ABE NME ABE 0UE 0BE WuE ABF
RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'000 RMBOO0  RMB'000 RMBOO0  RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'000 RMBI000
AEETR ARETT ARETn ARETH ARETn ARETn ARETIR AREBTR ARMTR ARETR
Reportable segment revenue  THEAHRA
Revenue from external RESBERH
customers WA 4412813 4476906 894,973 806,512 546,183 629,550 219,675 72882 6,073,644 5985850
Reportable segment THEDPER
profit (Non-GAAP (FDRER
Operating Profit) EHREE) 583680 865833 76,880 98749 84335 110758 28,560 167 713455 1076967
Finance costs BERA (78,330) 6,980) (20,274) (15419) (9,644) (8139) (2714) (2330 (110,962) (92,868)
Losses/(gains) on disposal LENE  BER
of property, plant and RENRERE
equipment and right- EENER/
of-use assets, net () 78 (28327) (14 (7479) (64 15552 48% (2809 (1619  (23063) 2731
Impairment losses of property, 0% BEREE
plant and equipment HEEE (11,340 (10010 (25336)  (6507) (430) (526)  (14458) (4674  (111564) (21819
Reportable segment assets UREIHEE 2,880,189 289373 621,101 596,094 1,031,508 863,797 102,900 75875 4635698 4432139
Additions to non-current ERFEERD
segment assets during PHEE
the year 601,559 852,545 195,168 328432 109,734 68472 35,751 57342 942,212 1306791
Reportable segment liabilities THEIHER 2,645,059 2504903 759,627 673,071 528,865 388,699 89,623 82787 4,023,174 30649460
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

..vT\ 7J ﬁ&-‘F&%‘% |Zﬁ

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (continued)

3 WARDEHRKE (&)

(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss, assets and (iy AJEFREDBERE - BERBENLHEE
liabilities
2024 2023
20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREEFTT
Profit Al
Reportable segment profit AR o 30 A
(Non-GAAP Operating Profit) GEAREFHERIKETHE) 773,455 1,076,967
Other revenue HAaugA 69,597 126,659
Travelling and related expenses Ik AR RE R 2 (29,626) (38,781)
Share of losses of associates FEAGEE = R FRESIE (3,924) (2,197)
Other net losses HAhEBHEFH (74,667) (32,276)
Finance costs B KA (110,962) (92,868)
Impairment losses of property, plant and ME - WERERE
equipment RIEBE (111,564) (21,819)
Unallocated headquarter expenses ROBLABEFZ (438,301) (379,301)
Consolidated profit before taxation R e BB AT A 74,008 636,384
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5= BE1 85N + AAREZTR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WARDHBE @)

(b) Segment Reporting (continued)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss, assets and (i) AIREDPER - BE B
liabilities (continued) (%)

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREEFIT

Assets BE
Reportable segment assets iGN EEE 4,635,698 4,432,139
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 53 P [ FE U R T8 & i 88 (2,372,155) (2,056,659)
2,263,543 2,375,480
Interests in associates REEE A R R RS 28,745 7,869
Other non-current financial assets HtIERBemEE 400,502 137,309
Deferred tax assets RIERIE & B 161,602 116,153
Unallocated headquarter assets RKOBLBEEE 3,634,231 3,884,068
Consolidated total assets FalEE 6,488,623 6,520,879
2024 2023
2024 % 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T

Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities ARG EE 4,023,174 3,649,460
Elimination of inter-segment payables 7350 FE A~ SR IB A B 85 (2,372,155) (2,056,659)
1,651,019 1,592,801
Current taxation BVERTH IR 43,032 68,223
Deferred tax liabilities FERTEEE 10,497 5877
Derivative financial liabilities MEemBEE 27,551 8,905
Unallocated headquarter liabilities FVaN =N 1,605,372 1,488,057
Consolidated total liabilities EBeE 3,337,471 3,163,863
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K55 5 &% 8H5h

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (continued)

(iii) Geographic information

Analysis of the Group's revenue from external customers as well as

analysis of the Group's carrying amount of non-current assets by

geographical market has not been presented as over 90% of the Group's

revenue and non-current assets are generated and located in China.

4 OTHER REVENUE

F UABRHEST)

3 WARDEHRKE (&)
DEIRE (&)
(iii) HEE R

MR A EE B BI0% A KR IERENE E R
B RARPE - R BRI E 525 A
SERBIMEFTHRANST - ARAK
SEFRBEERMEMNDNT

HlA

(b)

4

2024 2023
20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBET T

Interest income on:

AT & ERFLE YA

— bank deposits —RITHFER 49,818 57,599
- rental deposits —HERS 2,977 2,495
- others — Efth 3,932 4,285
56,727 64,379
Income from value-added tax super deduction R IS ER IR
and exemption (note (i)) BB H WA (FIEEG) 3,066 45,870
Government grants (note (ii)) TR B (B EEGi)) 8,825 14,729
Others Hth 979 1,681
69,597 126,659
Notes: ek -

(i)  Income from value-added tax super deduction and exemption represented
the super deduction and exemption on value-added tax granted by the
government authorities in the PRC. The super deduction of value-added tax

policy has expired since 31 December 2023.

(i)  Government grants mainly represented unconditional cash awards granted

by the government authorities in the PRC.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5= BE1 85N + AAREZTR)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

5 BRBLATS R
BBADER TG (A AT &S

o
2024 2023
2024%F 20234
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET AREFIT

(a) Finance costs (a) AZEHKAK

Interest on bank loans (note 19(c)) TEFFE (M:E190) 10,314 4,734
Interest on lease liabilities (note 19(c)) %ﬂ BEFE (HiE190) 103,376 89,319
Interest on provisions (note 23) BEA S (BH5E23) 2,220 1,934

Total interest expense on financial liabilities

W IR A FHER AR

not at fair value through profit or loss TREBETNEMZERE 115,910 95,987

Less: interest expense capitalised into W BN ERPYER
properties under development (note) FLERZ (FF) (4,948) (3,119)
110,962 92,868
Note: The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 2.45% - 3.0% per M B AR RFFNE245%E3.0%E b

annum (2023: 2.8% - 3.0%).

(20234 : 28%ZE3.0%) °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

5 BR¥IADGER (&)

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) BIRXZK (BIFEFEHH)
emoluments)
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IBEREMBER 1,107,184 963,766
Contributions to defined contribution TR FGRIRET B
retirement plans 48,200 34,483
Equity-settled share-based payment LA R E AR AR
expenses (note 26) N FAZ (FFE26) 18,227 21,153
1,173,611 1,019,402
Outsourced staff costs MEETRAE 573,361 524,701
1,746,972 1,544,103
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5= BE1 85N + AAREZTR)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 5 BRFADERR (&)
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R ARETT

(c) Other net losses (c) EftpsiEF8E

(Losses)/gains on disposal of property, plant HEME - BE REREU R

and equipment and right-of-use assets FREEEMN (BB), W& 23,063 (2,731)
Losses on rental deposits HERSHEE 3,565 1,392
Net foreign exchange losses HNIE [E5 18 5 58 33,027 22,899
Donations B/ 638 1,252
Net fair value changes of financial assets RN ER AEBED

measured at FVPL TRIEEN T EZFE 4,345 7,214
Net fair value changes of derivative financial RATERFABENTESR

liabilities measured at FVPL BEBEATEEHFER 15,472 8,846
Others Eith (5,443) (6,596)

74,667 32,276

ZZZMFFEH ANNUAL REPORT 2024 © 159



NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
lﬂ‘ :jﬁk¥&%EMﬁ

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 5 BRFADERR (&)
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R ARETT

(d) Other expenses (d) Bz

Auditors’ remuneration 1% E AN &
- audit services — BETRTE 2,750 2,950
- non-audit services — TR 944 850
3,694 3,800
Professional service fees BXRBER 87,889 82,922
Expenses for opening new restaurants FRFEENAX 37,551 76,643
Transportation and related expenses B MEEAX 215,431 156,122
Maintenance expenses f’&{lgﬁrﬂfi 27,416 29,122
Bank and third-party platform charges RITRE=FFEWE 28,909 20,135
Insurance expenses 1%52255]35 5,810 3,384
Business development expenses ¥BERAX 1,392 2,966
Office expenses MEEFAT 18,916 20,778
Research and development expenses A 2,758 3,956
Cleaning fees BRE A 22,649 22,059
Cultural activity fees XALEBE A 3,486 5,961
Business tax and surcharges & T R BT AN 9,856 7,502
Others Hit 4,994 3,238
470,751 438,588
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5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘/T\

B IR R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5= BE1 85N + AAREZTR)

5 BR¥IADGER (&)

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R ARETT

(e) Other items (e) HEftEH
Amortisation (note 12) H8H (PFE12) 13,328 9,384
Depreciation (note 11) e (M)
— property, plant and equipment — % BE KRB 278,647 226,231
— right-of-use assets —ERREE 576,465 485,330
855,112 711,561
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B i BAS) + AN R H5)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 ZE8BZXRANFAEH
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statements of profit or loss (a) GREBEFZRAMNFIIEE -
represents:
2024 2023
20244 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARBT T

Current tax B EA 1R
Provision for the year FEEE
~ PRC income tax — PEMEN 60,920 150,286
— Other jurisdictions — HiALERER 13,901 7,924
Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years FHBREFENBETR
(HBERRE) 231 (342)
75,052 157,868
Deferred tax EEHIE
Origination of accumulated tax loss EERFBIEEBER
and temporary differences (note 25(b)) R EE (FIFE25(0)) (45,844) (1,482)
29,208 156,386
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 & 3% 855

INCOME TAX

IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6

n‘/-ﬁ

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

* LA RHEESIF)
REBEERANAER @)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit ) BRIER Y EREARRTENETT R
at applicable tax rates: FIRE Bk -
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Profit before taxation BR AT A 74,008 636,384
Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated BAEBRRAENNBERIE
at the rates applicable to profits in the REARVEEEERLY
jurisdictions concerned AR E 16,939 153,993
Effect of preferential income tax rates of certain ETWEBRABNEERMREH
subsidiaries (i) eSS0k (i) (5,220) (15,042)
Effect of non-deductible expenses TAIRA S Mg 9,940 11,694
Tax effect of unused tax losses and deductible REERO AL BHIAREE R
temporary differences not recognised AERNEREEENTIETE 14,072 9,408
Tax effect of using the deductible losses and PR AR AT EEE &
deductible temporary differences not RS = ENRIETE
recognised - (630)
Effect of recognising the deductible losses and TR F E AR RIRLET 1
temporary differences for which no deferred BEMATEINEE R
tax asset was recognised in previous years ERMEENTE (3,927) (774)
Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years BEABTFENBETR
(ERERE ) 231 (342)
Others Hith (2,827) (1,921)
Actual tax expense HERBIEM S 29,208 156,386
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B SRR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

6 INCOME TAX

IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit
at applicable tax rates: (continued)

Notes:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the BVI.

The Group's subsidiaries in Hong Kong did not have any other assessable
profits for the years ended 31 December 2024, except for one subsidiary of
the Group which is a qualifying corporation under the two-tiered Profits Tax
rate regime.

For this subsidiary, the first HK$2 million of assessable profits are taxed at
8.25% and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. The provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax for this subsidiary was calculated at the same basis
in 2023.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2024 takes into account a
reduction granted by the Hong Kong SAR Government of 100% of the tax
payable for the year of assessment 2023/24 subject to a maximum reduction
of HK$3,000 for each business (2023: a maximum reduction of HK$6,000 was
granted for the year of assessment 2022/23 and was taken into account in
calculating the provision for 2023).

Taxable income for the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to PRC
income tax rate of 25% for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
unless otherwise specified below.

Certain subsidiaries met the criteria for enterprises/branches in catering
industry established in Hainan Province in the PRC and were entitled to the
preferential income tax rate of 15% from 2020 to 2024.

Certain subsidiaries met the criteria required for preferential income tax
rate granted to small and low profit-making enterprise in the PRC, and were
entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 5% on taxable income for the
first RMB3,000,000.

A subsidiary met the criteria required for preferential income tax rate granted
to the encouraged industry that operates in Nansha district, Guangzhou in
the PRC, and was entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15% from 2023
to 2026.

A subsidiary met the criteria for software enterprises encouraged in the PRC,
and was entitled to be exempted from income tax from 2022 to 2023 and a
50% reduction in income tax from 2024 to 2026.

The Company’s subsidiaries incorporated overseas, other than Hong
Kong and the BVI, are subject to overseas profits tax at 12% to 29.84% on
estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: 12%
t0 29.84%).

According to the Corporate Income Tax Law and its implementation rules,
dividends and interest receivable by non-PRC corporate residents from PRC
enterprises are subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10%, unless reduced
by tax treaties or arrangements, for profits earned since 1 January 2008. The
withholding tax rate of 10% was applicable for the Group for the years ended
31 December 2024 and 2023.
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AEBEBMBRATREE2024F12A318
IEFE AR EAMERTER - EAEE
—HNB AR ANSHMARH THEERD
EJC PN

RZMBATIME  B2ESBTHER
B FIRS.25% T KM - MR T ERBLE
FAIZ16.5% R TR EEB - ZMBARINSE
BRI BER 2023 FIRERERE

2024 FEF BN ESH BB RBEBERITR
@ BF 202324 R E S ENBIER T
H100% % - EHEEKNES R R LR
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o W 2022F F 2023 F A EE R R ER P
B AR 2024 F 2026 R HBURFTE
i o

RAREINEBEREBHEBRESRIN)
AR A RSB = 2024512 A31
B IEFE A ERPE ARG N R
12%Z£29.84% B ARG HNFITE L (20234F « 12%
£29.84%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5= BE1 85N + AAREZTR)

7 EEHM
B \BI TS R B EHBE 0T

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’” emoluments as recorded in the financial statements are set

out below:
Year ended 31 December 2024
HE04F12ANALEE
Directors’ Salaries,
and  allowances Retirement Share-based
supervisors' and other  Discretionary scheme payments
fees benefits bonuses  contributions Sub-Total (note (a) Total
BB A
ESRk He BER ERNAR
Ezhg AftriRA REPA  BAGEER Mt (W) 3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR  ARETR
Chairman I
Mr. Guan Yihong ('Mr Guan’) EREEE(EEE] - 2777 230 18 3,025 246 3271
Executive directors YES
Ms. Cui Longyu EFFLL - 714 124 21 859 1,583 2,442
Mr. He Chengxiao A - 1,156 131 2 1,308 2,065 3373
Mr. Su Danman Bmtt - 552 65 28 645 537 1,182
Independent non-executive directors BUFH1TES
Mr. Deng Tao BEkts
(resigned on 6 June 2024) (R204F6 R6ARHT) 50 - - - 50 - 50
Ms, Tang Zhihui ERELL 120 - = - 120 - 120
Ms. Zhu Rui RELL 120 - - - 120 - 120
Ms. Wang Xiaomei IBMRL
(appointed on 6 June 2024) (R204%E6 Ao BERIT) 70 = = S 70 - 70
Total it 360 5,199 550 88 6,197 4431 10,628
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B i BAS) + AN R H5)

7 EEHM 2

Year ended 31 December 2023
BEABFNANBILEE

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors' Salaries,
and allowances Retirement Share-based
supervisors' and other  Discretionary scheme payments
fees benefits bonuses  contributions Sub-Total (note (a)) Total
DA
EZR Ze EER ERONE
EEL % EftEH BERL  RIGEIGRR gt GER) @t
RMB1000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB1000
ARETLE  ARETT  ARBTR ARETR  ARETRT  ARETn  ARETR
Chairman Ed:
Mr. Guan Yihong (Mr Guan’) EREEE(EEE] - 1,89 pE] 17 2,144 935 3079
Executive directors BES
Mr.Li Zhuoguang ZHRESE
{resigned on 9 June 2023) (B202356 AORE() - 293 - 7 300 - 300
Ms. Cui Longyu EFFLL - 70 13 20 853 1930 2,783
Mr. He Chengxiao ML E - 895 128 2 1,043 2334 3377
Mr. Su Danman BARLE
(appointed on 9 June 2023) (R0235F6 AOREZ) - 303 i} 15 361 180 541
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES
Mr. Deng Tao Baik 120 - - - 120 - 120
Ms. Tang Zhihui EEELL 120 - - - 120 - 120
Ms. Zhu Rui ¥t 120 - - - 120 - 120
Total & 360 4097 505 79 5,061 5379 10440
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 & 3% 855

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

These represent the estimated value of restricted stock units and share
options granted to the directors under the Company'’s restricted stock units
scheme and share option scheme. The value of these shares/share options
is measured according to the Group's accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 1(s)(ii) and, in accordance with that
policy, includes adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years
where grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there were no amounts paid or
payable by the Group to the directors or any of the highest paid individuals
set out in note 8 below as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as a compensation for loss of office (2023: Nil). There was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

The executive directors confirmed that their emoluments shown above were
paid for their services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four are directors

whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7 (2023: three are directors

whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The emolument in respect

n‘/-ﬁ

BTSRRI

C UAABREST)

7 EEHM 2

it

(a)

IR FRAREAR D R Z R BB A5 &) K8
IRREET &I TEERSIR G 1) B AL R BB
REAHEHEE © ISR ERENERT
TE?MTEEW(S)(ii)Fﬁ%ZHS%txﬂ%ﬁi%%ﬁ%fi’\l

NRRHHETHRETE - B - RIEZK
x \1%‘;1 FBATD R ES T ARNBAE
FERERHBOESEIEHARE -

REBE2024F12A318IEFE - NEEH
ﬂﬁ%%‘iﬂ’ﬂﬁ?sﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬂ % =1 B & #Y
AT ZAS B EARIE - ERMAREE
%WJD)\Z!S%@&E’J%EDW‘EJ%%&H%WE
(20234 : &) - M EMESHEZ20245F

12831 BIEFERES RS REEMFAD
ZHE (20234 « 4#) -

MITERER - EXPIRBRENHM IO
SERARA RAKEEHHRBE AT

REMEN AL

BEEMeM AR ALBERENRES - £5
BB 73088 (20234 : =RBEE - H¥

BHPAPH L7458 )

BEHAM—E (20234 :

of the other one (2023: two) individual is as follows: ME) ARSI T -
2024 2023
2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT T AREEF T
Salaries and other emoluments e REAMME 805 1,736
Discretionary bonuses BIEIEAD 115 148
Share-based payments VARG AR B B A5 3R 914 1,553
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 32 57
1,866 3,494
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B ERRMEE

n‘/-F
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B i BAS) + AN R H5)
8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS BEaMENAL @)
(continued)
The emolument of the one (2023: two) individual with the highest —% (2023F : WAB) = BE 89 A BN
emoluments is within the following bands: SNFTIIEE :
2024 2023
2024F 20234
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AE
HKD1,000,001 — HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 7L £ 1,500,00078 7T - 1
HKD2,000,001 — HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 7T 2 2,500,000/ 7T 1 1
22
9 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hih2HUW =
Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive income HHEM MR ESEKS D EBAOTB
s
2024 2023
2024 203F
Before-tax Tax  Net-oftax  Before-tax Tax  Net-of tax
amount  expense  amount  amount  expense  amount
BRBL AT B BRatAl bRz
&8 HERX kit 8 BERX %
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT
Exchange differences on translation of financial BERER N E BB RES
statements of operations outside the EXEHE
Mainland China 45,185 - 45,185 33,65 - 33,065
Equity investments at fair value through other BATEFALMZENRTEN
comprehensive income - net movement in fair RiERE - ATEREEZDTE
value reserve (non-recycling) (FagmE) 19,810 (5,008) 14,802 (10,295) 1367 (8928)
Other comprehensive income E2EkE 64,995 (5008) 59,987 22,970 1367 24337
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10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2024 is based on the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB55,807,000 (2023: RMB453,462,000) and the
weighted average of 1,418,831,052 shares (2023: 1,452,573,976) in issue

during the year.

n‘/-ﬁ

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 & 3% 855

10 EREF
() BREKREF

o

A

JT)

BTSRRI

C UAABREST)

HE204F12A3BLEFENERERR
PR FE AR D B = IR R B = FIA R
55,807,0007T (20234 : AR 453,462,000
KA B AT O/ N T 9 &

1,418,831,052 0% (20234 : 1,452,573,976 /%)

2024 2023

20245 20234F

Shares Shares

IRE &

Issued shares at 1 January BT ATBEE&TRNG 1,436,567,700 1,454,212,100
Effect of shares issued due to exercise of EIT B m TR KR

share options - 292,262

Effect of shares repurchased BRI FE (17,736,648) (1,930,386)

Weighted average number of shares at 12 A 31 BRIt ik 88
31 December 1,418,831,052 1,452,573,976

Diluted earnings per share

The effect of share options of the Group were anti-dilutive for the year

ended 31 December 2024.

) BREHER

Mt BB RSB IER -

HZE2024F 128318 IFE - AEERNE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘/T\

B IR R R M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B i BAS) + AN R H5)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET

B

NYE BERREREAEER

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount IREEHER
Kitchen Furniture Buildings
equipment  Leasehold and fixtures situated on
Property-  and others- [and- Leasehold Kitchen  Electronic Motor ~ andother ~ Frechold ~ freehold Construction
Right-of-  Right-of-  Right-of- improvement-  equipment-  equipment-  vehicles-  equipment- [and- and-~ in progress-
useassets  useassets  useassets  Subtotal Owned Owned Owned ~ Owned  Owned  Owned Owned Owned ~ Subtotal Total
EERE BERA BEfR
0%-  Rik- EEDH- REE KAEE
kPR BRE  BRE 2 2 2 B REE  BEKR  tEzk E
& & i Mt BEEE EERE B3R g B REiH KEF  ERIR it it
RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO0 RUBO00 RMB00D RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBOOO RMB00D RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO
NRBTL ARETT ARBTT ARETR  ARBTR  ARETr ARETR ARBTR ARETT ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR ARBTR ARETR
Cost: A
At1 January 2023 ROBEIAIR 2816033 19 386 2850081 762359 26509 8579 138 91291 451 520 18071 1331%1 4182042
Additions #E 02617 - 2660 95337 171109 15407 13,965 i) 18850 - - 358457 47858 157319
Tensfer fiom constuction EBRLRTE
In progress - - - - 90,060 9199 15 - 9466 - - (108850) - -
Disposzls il (164962) (19) - (165154 (14.24) (12994) {4191) 40) (5293 - - - (36742 (201,8%)
Tansfer o nengloleasets  ERZEREE - - - - - - - - - - - (68) (68) (68
Bxchange adjustments RS 17 - - 7 855 161 0 - % m u b4 1553 427
131 December 1023 and RuE0R31BR
1 January 2024 W4EI1R1R 3556482 - 56516 36129% 1010159 37067 102498 1353 114370 4725 544 7846 1944562 5557560
Additions A& 179736 - - 179736 9028 61623 248% 837 14152 - - 303850 495416 1215152
Trnsfer fiom constuction EBRLRTE
in progress - - - - 108855 11378 4 - 6,145 - 378862 (505,286) - -
Disposzls e (373120 - - BB (15912 (41455 (12805) 4] (15773) - - - (195%9  (569069)
Tanertointangleassets ~ EAZERAE - - - - - - - - - - - 0204y (g
Exchange adjustments EfgR 101 - - 1001 4785 50 I [ 38 (280 () (1174 4 524
At 31 December 2024 ROLENANA 394119 - 56516 4020835 1,088,145 39113 1146% 7982 19252 4445 379373 164022 247008 6267663
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an\ 7f ﬁ%#&%ﬁﬁ?

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5= BE1 85N + AAREZTR)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND MYPYE- BERRERERAEE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (continued) E )
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued) (a) BREEHERE)
Kitchen Furniture Buildings
equipment  Leasehold and fixtures situated on
Property-  and others- [and- Leasehold Kitchen ~ Electronic Motor ~ andother ~ Frechold  freehold ~Construction
Right-of-  Right-of-  Right-of- improvement-  equipment-  equipment-  vehicles- equipment- [and- and-~ in progress-
useassets  useassets  useassets  Subtotal Owned Owned Owned ~ Owned ~ Owned  Owned Owned Owned  Subtotal Total
EERE BREL BEfR
N%-  Rik- EELH- WREE KAEE
kPR BRE  BRE E £ £ BF REE  EEKX a2k EH

B2 EE RE Mt DRRE BRRR ETEE AR BE LM MB®  RRIRE 0% &
MBOD  RUBO  RMBOO  RWBDDD  RWBO0  RWDB  MBOD  RWGDIO RGO AUBOD MBI RWBOD  RUBOO  RWBOOD
ARETR ABBTL ARMTR ARMTR  ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTL ARMTR ARMTL ARMTR ARETR ARETR

Accumulated depreciation: ~ E3THE

A1 January 2003 ROBEIRIR 126981 % 61271456 TBB6 109785 3962 3 0% - % <A 18686
Charge for the year i 4516 9 D XX ) 144378 50263 13799 o3 1686 - 9 S WB T
Wiitten back o disposals Rrente (158,108) (68 190 (156%8) (10382 (859 (34 - - - - e B
Bxchange adjustments EiEE 81 - - 81 18 0 3 - § - 7 - p] 1032

At31 December 2023 and ROBENANAR

1 January 2024 WHEFHIE 1597500 - 301 16001 5127% 151475 440 56 83 - 167 ST 23657
Charge for the year ERik 57374 - W SIS 184666 57213 1689 w18 - g - M eI
Witten back on disposes A& (149%8) - - 9% (81510 (17%) (1099 B o) - - - (08) BN
Bxchange adjustments EYEE 309 - - 309 49 147 - 109 - (] - # 1053
At 31 December 204 ROuENRIE 190589 - 88 19747 slods 184082 57218 S50 Sipn - ) N E VI )]
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an\

B IR R R M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K55 5 &% 8H5h

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (continued)

LA REFIR)
NYE BERREREAEER

=)

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued) IREEHER (&)
Kitchen Furniture Buildings
equipment  Leasehold and fixtures situated on
Property-  and others- [and- Leasehold Kitchen  Electronic Motor ~ andother ~ Frechold ~ freehold Construction
Right-of-  Right-of-  Right-of- improvement-  equipment-  equipment-  vehicles-  equipment- [and- and-~ in progress-
useassets  useassets  useassets  Subtotal Owned Owned Owned ~ Owned  Owned  Owned Owned Owned ~ Subtotal Total
BERE BERA BEfR
0E- REk- EHih- REE KAEE
fFE AR AR E £ B B REt EBAA t#zb E
& & i Mt BEEE EERE B3R g 3% EEi KEF  ERIR it it
RMBOD  RMBO00 RUBOOD  RMBOOO RUBO00 RMB00D RMBOOD  RMBO00 RUBOOD  RMBOOO RMB00D RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO
NRBTL ARETT ARBTT ARETR  ARBTR  ARETr ARETR ARBTR ARETT ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR ARBTR ARETR
Impairment; HE:
At1 January 2023 ROBEIAIR 7633 7633 18230 8510 3108 29908 31541
Addition #E 11254 7908 2657 2819 2819
Witen backon disposdls iluisp 3158 - B 0119 61 (n g w9
At31 December 2003 and RNBENRYIAR
1 January 2024 W4E1AIR 4475 4475 8355 15965 559 49913 54388
Addition #E - 70381 37 10006 111,564 111,564
Witten back on disposels AL ENHE (678) (579) (14217 (9892 [17) s 08160
At 31 December 204 unENRYE 3597 - 3597 84519 31250 1244 134193 137790
Net Book Value: FHFE:
At 31 December 204 ROENANA 2038933 50688 2089621 387,180 145781 57418 4% 9216 4445 319133 16402 1789710 3219331
At 31 December 013 RAOBERANA 1954507 53405 2007912 469009 169627 35078 2767 6004 4125 i 37846 1129483 313739
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.-vT\ 7f ﬁ&-‘F&%‘% |Zﬁ

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G &850 + UA RBEZITR)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

(a)

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (continued)
Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)
Impairment loss

As at the end of each reporting period, in view of the unfavourable
future prospects of certain restaurants, the Group’s management
estimated the recoverable amount of each such restaurant (cash-
generating unit (“CGU")) with indication of impairment. The recoverable
amount of each CGU is determined based on the value-in-use
calculations by preparing cash flow projections of the relevant CGU
derived from the most recent financial forecast approved by the
management covering the remaining lease term. Based on the result
of the assessments, the management of the Group determined that
the recoverable amounts of certain CGUs are lower than the carrying
amounts. The impairment amount has been allocated to each category
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets such that the
carrying amount of each category of asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less cost of disposal, its value in use and zero. The
cash flows are discounted using a discount rate ranging from 9.60% to
28.44% as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: 12.91% to 18.19%).
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the

relevant CGU.

In addition, certain amount of the relevant CGU is determined based
on fair value less cost of disposal, using direct comparison approach
by assuming each of the stores is assigned in its current condition with
vacant possession. Significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
measurement include market rentals, by making reference to lease
transactions of comparable properties in close proximity as available
in the relevant market, adjusted for any difference in factors such as
location and property size. The fair value on which the recoverable

amount is based on its categorised as level 3 measurement.

NYE - BERREBRERAEER

E (&)

) RREEH R (&)

VERIEN =
REERERR - ERNETEBERKA
STE - AEBERECHFTARETR
WEEHZE (ReELEMN) JRES
o SHRSEABMNMATKESETIRE
CREBHEREZETE AER : BE
EREA AN ST MM BERN CREART
?Hf%ﬁﬁ)%ﬂm*ﬁf’%ﬁé%i LLE’]EE»%/}\L
ST - REBFTEER  FAEEEEERE
EETREELESMHITRE S EERE
HE - BESECOEEZSEVE BE
BEUALRFEAEEE  UIESHEEED
FEEHEMNMIREAFERESEKAR - B
REERZEZENESE - R2024512
A31H - BERERAITRENF9.60%
Z28.44% (2023128310 1 12.91% 2
18.19%) HTIR o P AV IR R Ty B AT I
R ELARAIR & E A B BN ERR

o HERCELENNETSEIE
RAFERDEXR  FREELBET
BRESEAUEREEEZMETE - AR
RFEFENERTBRGASIELE
miﬂﬁﬁ K2RBEEMES LTANEE
BERINIEALEDE WA
EE&%%EE%I%WE@%%W&%
o aEGEAMKRIEZATESIEAS
ZREE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

..vT\ 7J ﬁ&-‘F&%‘% |Zﬁ

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 11

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (continued)

(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)

Impairment loss (continued)

As at 31 December 2024, an impairment loss of RMB111,564,000 (31
December 2023: RMB21,819,000) was recognised in profit or loss to write

down the carrying amounts of respective property, plant and equipment
to their recoverable amounts of RMB345,760,000 (31 December 2023:
RMB106,477,000). The above impairment loss was allocated to the assets

including leasehold improvement and other equipment within the CGU

on a pro rata basis.

(b) Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of

underlying asset is as follows:

M¥E - BERREREAESE
E®)

) RREEH R (&)

EREIE (&

R2024F12 A318 - EREFERRES
BAR111,564,0007T (20235F 12 4318 -
ARM21,819,0007T) « AKHEBEYE - K&
FEREFENEROEMRZLATHESEA
R #345,760,0007T (202312 8318 + AR
#106,477,0007T) o L3R E B 1S TH IR L
NEEHSELTBENANHEEMERER
HREEEE -

EREEE

LHBEEDENTERAREENEmFEE
RoHTaT

2024 2023
20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREBTFT
Property — Right-of-use assets, carried at YE - FRAREE -
depreciated cost (note (i)) LAFTE R A FIBR (MI5EG) 2,038,933 1,954,507
Kitchen equipment — Right-of-use assets, BERE — RAEEE -
carried at depreciated cost (note (ii)) LAST 88 B AR 1 AR (B (i) - -
Leasehold land - Right-of-use assets, METH — FRAEEE -
carried at depreciated cost (note (iii)) LAFT &R AN B BR (B EE (i) 50,688 53,405
2,089,621 2,007,912
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (continued)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT R

Right-of-use assets (continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit or

loss is as follows:

n‘/-ﬁ

E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 & 3% 855

(%)

) EREEE (&)

Mran T

C HARBIT)
NYE- BERREREAEER

HERBERERNEEEENRAXAREND

2024 2023
20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by REEEED HNERAEEER
class of underlying asset: WERX
Property — Right-of-use assets ME - FREEE 573,748 485,116
Kitchen equipment and others — Right-of-use assets EIE & M Eth — {F FAEEE - 9
Leasehold land - Right-of-use assets HETH —(RAEEE 2,717 205
576,465 485,330
Interest on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) HEBENFE (H35a) 103,376 89,319
Expense relating to short-term leases H3%G BATH EFERERY R 2 75,286 66,606
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets HEEBEEEHERBHRYE -
(excluding short-term leases of low-value assets) TEREREEEENEHEE 51 45
Variable lease payments not included in the Rt AHEBEEMA &
measurement of lease liabilities HERMK 57,876 72,193

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were RMB779,736,000
(31 December 2023: RMB925,337,000). The remainder primarily related to

the capitalised lease payments payable under new tenancy agreements. 925,

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis of lease

liabilities are set out in notes 19(d) and 22, respectively.

HENNEAMCEENHER -

RER -

=
ui ﬁ/ﬁ

FRBEEEAEABARE
779,736,0007C (20234F 12 A31H : AR

337,00070) ° $pREE BEREFNHEE R

HEReRHBRBELRHEAREIHA ST
RIS FE19(d) 222 ©
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n‘/-ﬁ

B SRR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B i BAS) + AN R H5)

NYE - BERREBRERAEER

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

E (&)
) ERREE (&)

5T
Property — Right-of-use assets (i) M¥E-—-FEREEE
The Group has obtained the right to use properties as its restaurants through TEBEEBHERRECSKYEIEREE
tenancy agreements. The leases run for an initial period of 2 to 10 years. EEEVRER o Eﬁ’]r?ﬂﬁiﬁZiWE
The Group leased a number of restaurants which contain variable lease rEESHREBRNHERSEREEREE
payment terms that are based on sales generated from the restaurants and E’\Jﬁﬁ%%ﬁ&. SR GFRE N FIERE A
minimum annual lease payment terms that are fixed. These payment terms BHENRIER - ZFNTIETIERERE
are common in restaurants in the PRC where the Group principally operates. ZENTRIZREBER - FRMNEE KA
The amount of fixed and variable lease payments for the year is summarised “ FHENRSEHMAT -
below:
2024
20245
Variable
Fixed payments and Total
payments other rentals payments
EIE-I0E7952
B E R Hinfi & EEEREN
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥T R AR¥T R
Leased assets HEEE 631,284 133,213 764,497
2023
2023%F
Variable
Fixed payments and Total
payments other rentals payments
AT R R
B E K HipiHe R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBFT AREFT ARETFTT
Leased assets HEEE 531,530 138,844 670,374
Kitchen equipment — Right-of-use assets (i) BEZME - ERAREEE
The Group leases certain kitchen equipment under leases expiring from 3 AEBERBERNOHES THERE - HIRA

years. None of the leases includes variable lease payments.
Leasehold land - Right-of-use assets

The Group's land-use rights on leasehold land are located in Mainland China.
Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
respective periods of the land-use rights, which are 20 to 50 years (2023: 20
to 50 years).
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(iii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

..vT\ 7T ﬁ&-‘F&TE NT

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5= BE1 85N + AAREZTR)

12 B EE

Software Brand name Total
B4 e A #Et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR%TET
Cost: R
At 1 January 2023 M2023F1 A1H 35419 6,417 41,836
Purchases BE 10,321 - 10,321
Transferred from construction in progress ERaERTRE 68 - 68
Disposals & (20) - (20)
Exchange adjustments ME R - 286 286
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 M2023F 124318 &
20241 A H 45,788 6,703 52,491
Purchases BE 12,921 - 12,921
Transferred from construction in progress ERaTEEIRE 1,214 - 1214
Disposals R 211 - 211
Exchange adjustments TE H 7% - (397) (397)
At 31 December 2024 2024128310 59,712 6,306 66,018
Accumulated amortisation: Rty -
At 1 January 2023 R2023F1 A1 H 14,279 2,995 17,274
Charge for the year FRMER 8,076 1,308 9,384
Written back on disposals B H 5 RO ] @) - 7)
Exchange adjustments ME B - 166 166
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 K2023F 128318 K
20241 H1H 22,348 4,469 26,817
Charge for the year FRMk 12,026 1,302 13,328
Written back on disposals & B Bl (208) - (208)
Exchange adjustments P 5 - (305) (305)
At 31 December 2024 HR2024F12 8318 34,166 5,466 39,632
Net book value: FRIENEE :
At 31 December 2024 72024512 A31H 25,546 840 26,386
At 31 December 2023 7202312 A31H 23,440 2,234 25,674

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “depreciation and

amortisation of other assets” in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss.

RERNBIEFAX DT AREES
tEETEREH]A -

SRETHE

ZZZMFFEHR ANNUAL REPORT 2024 o 177



NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

13 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 13 R BRAANKRE
(a) List of subsidiaries ORGIENGEIES
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which THREBREHARENER  BEEHAR
principally and significantly affected the results, assets or liabilities of the EEEAREZZENNERAINFE -
Group.
Proportion of
ownership interest
FrEZRRLA
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation and issued and effective  Held by the Held by a
Company name operation paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
EMRILR BEAR F5E HE
DRER EEn HREAFHE  EEBE LFORKE  LARE  IEEH
Jiumaojiu (Guangzhou) Holdings Limited (i)(ii) The PRC RMB 298,715,700 100% - 100%  Investment holding
NEMBMNERERDA, M) Holdings”) (i)(”)
REABM) ERERAR (TAEAERD () PE ARB RARR
298,715,7007C
Guangzhou Jiumaojiu Catering Chain Co,, Ltd. (i The PRC RMB 198,347,500 100% - 100%  Restaurant operations and
(EMAENEHERBRAF, Guangzhou relevant delivery business
Jiumaojiu’) (i)
BMNENEREEARAA(BMNAEAD () E AR EEES AR ELH
198,347,5007C
Foshan Maidian Food Co, Ltd. (ii) The PRC RMB 50,000,000 100% - 100%  Food processing and
(BBl %@ﬁﬁuu RA) (i) central kitchens
fELTERRRAD T (i B ARE RRNIRFRER
50,000,0007C
Mi Liang Ren Liang (Wuhan) Supply Chain Co, Ltd. (ii) The PRC Nil 100% - 100%  Food processing and
CRRAR () BEEERAR) () central kitchens
REAR (HE) REERRAF T Z RRMIRFRER
Nanjing Jiumaojiu Restaurant Management The PRC RMB 30,000,000 100% - 100%  Restaurant operations and
Co, Ltd. (i) BRAENERERBR L) (i) relevant delivery business
ARNENERERERAF T AEH ZEELLAMNERY
30,000,0007C
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..vT\ 7T ﬁ&-‘F&T—l‘% NT

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5= BE1 85N + AAREZTR)

13 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) List of subsidiaries (continued)

13 RBATINKRE (&)
a) MEBARSIXK (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest
FrEERELA
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation and issued and effective  Held by the Held by a
Company name operation paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
EMA LR BEAR rEE WE
DRER B2 HREAFE  BEEE ALAKE  LEBE  IEXH
Guangzhou Tai Er Catering Chain Co,, Ltd. (ii) The PRC RMB 140,376,028 91.24% - 91.24%  Restaurant operations and
(EMA=EREHEERAR, Tai br relevant delivery business
Catering’) (i)
BMAZEREHERAF ([ KZERK) ) M ARB EBEERABINELRR
140376028 7T
Shanghai Er You Catering Management The PRC RMB 30,000,000 91.24% - 91.24%  Restaurant operations and
Co, Ltd. (i) (EE-BERERERAR relevant delivery business
“Shanghai Er You") (ii)
FECRERERERAR ([ EE=A]M E ARE ZEESAMNEEH
30,000,0007C
Tai Er (Guangzhou) Investment Co,, Ltd. (ii) The PRC RMB 10,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(RZ(BMREBRAA) (i)
A= (BM) REBRAR) B ARE RAER
10,000,0007C
Guangzhou Pin Xin Yue Gu Enterprise Management  The PRC RMB 99,800,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Co, Ltd. (i) (BM@EHACEERERAR) ()
BEMRTHACEERARAA ) B ARE REAER
99,800,0007T
Guangzhou O Ye Catering Co,, Ltd. (i The PRC RMB 10,000,000 90.61% - 9061%  Restaurant operations and
(BMEBEHBRAT) (i) relevant delivery business
BMREEERBRAR HE AR ZEEL LM ERH
10,000,0007C
Notes: ks
(i)  This entity is wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC. The official name of () ZEBATTEMN/IEBEELE ZEBH
this entity is in Chinese. The English translation of the name is for reference BEHABRTX - HEEENE B EE N
only. 8%
(i) These entities are PRC limited liability companies. The official names of these () FSHEAREFRATAR - ZEH B

entities are in Chinese. The English translation of the names is for reference
only.

BEIBRATX - R E R EM
2%z -
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MF

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & &% BFS)

B SRR MIEE

13 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) The following table lists out the information relating to the subsidiaries
of the Group which has a material NCI. The summarised financial

information presented below represents the amounts before any inter-

company elimination.

F UABRHEST)

13 AMBATRNKRE &)

Tai Er Catering

(b) TRINMABREEREAFIERERNARE
BMEARER - TXEINMBEERR
ERARIFEMBHATOERER o

Shanghai Er You

A& t/s=8
2024 2023 2024 2023
20244 20234 20244 20235
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARBTT AR®BTR ARETR
NCI percentage ESe g £
(note 27(c)(vii), note 30(b)) (WEIN () vii) »

Ki3E30(0)) 8.76% 8.76% 8.76% 8.76%
Current assets MEVEE 353,619 306,572 56,658 44,867
Non-current assets FREEE 816,769 877,945 202,291 236,775
Current liabilities mEAR 420,430 315,381 91,175 54,160
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 595,470 643,355 161,578 184,628
Net assets FEE 154,488 225,781 6,196 42,854
Carrying amount of NCI R REE 13,533 19,778 (2,085) 1,126
Revenue WA 2,195,545 2,308,515 478,851 529,261
Profit/(loss) for the year FERF(BE) 40,706 232,462 (22,659) 34,258
Total comprehensive income ZHEMNEEE 40,706 232,462 (22,659) 34,258
Profit allocated to NCI DB R IR AR A 2,339 25215 (1,985) 4,062
Dividend paid to NCI ST IR ERRE (9,811) (27,000) = -

Cash flows generated from operating REEEMEHRSRE
activities 373,690 411,059 99,886 83,808
Cash flows used in investing activities RETEMABRERE (29,995) (35,969) (16,501) (3,882)
Cash flows used in financing activities BMEEEMARSRE (354,081) (384,830) (83,704) (85,009)
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n{R 2Tﬁ$qu§;§E:BfT

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5= BE1 85N + AAREZTR)

14 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 14 REEE AT RERS
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBET T

Interests in associates (note) REE A R AR (FEE) 28,745 7,869
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2024, loans to associates of Mk REZE2024F 12831 BILEFE - (A8
RMB24,500,000 were converted into to Interests in associates. BARIRHEME AR 24,500,0007T

ELFJEA B A B

The following list contains the particulars of associates, which are TREINEERRINFE - ZFHERNT
unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market price is not available: BERREMSRENELTRAAES
Form of Place of Particulars of  Proportion of ownership
business incorporation issuedand interest and voting rights
Name of associate structure and business paid-up capital  held by the Groupasat  Principal activities
EMAILR BEAR ARERUTEHEEN
L INGEA EBERYS  SEnE BREAHE RERERRREENH IEER
2024 2023
20245 2023
Guangzhou Hun Fan Chi Catering Incorporated The PRC RMB827,129 13% 13%  Restaurant operations and relevant
Management Co, Ltd. (EM BRI B ER delivery business, mainly providing
BBR/AF], "Hun Fan Chi") (note (1)) Chaoshan flavour cuisine
BMERCARERERAR (NRAE)) Bl HE AR#827,1207T B RRENEEY
(FirzE i) IEREDLERER

Guangdong Tai Er Agricultural Science and Incorporated The PRC RMB13,000,000 49% 49%  Trading
Technology Co, Ltd. (BERA = R ERHE
BR/AF], "Guangdong Tai Er Agricultural’)
(note (i)

BRAZREMBERAR A i AR#13,0000007T 5
(TBRRZRE]) (HE)
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14 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

14 REEE N TINER (&)

Form of Place of Particulars of  Proportion of ownership
business incorporation issuedand interest and voting rights
Name of associate structure and business paid-up capital ~ held by the Groupasat  Principal activities
AMAILR BER AEERUTERREN
BENTER EBRBYS  SEnE HREARE BEERRERREENH IEXER
2024 2023
20245 2023F
Heyuan Tai Er Agricultural Science and Incorporated The PRC RMB10,000,000 49% 49%  Fish farming
Technology Co, Ltd. (TRAZ BERHR
BPRAR], "Heyuan Tai Er Agricultural’)
(note (i))
ARR - RERRERLA Eaalifzava M ABRH100000007T 1
(DRRZBZ 1) (M)
Jiangmen Tai Niu Agricultural Technology Incorporated The PRC RMB500,000 49% 49%  Cattle farming
Co, Ltd. CLFIRFRERRBRAR
“Jiangmen Tai Niu Agricultural’) (note (i)
TFAFRENBERAA EEalifavE M AR 5000007 BT
(DIFARFER ) (W)
Guangzhou Zhenjiu Food Co,, Ltd Incorporated The PRC RMB1,000,000 30% Nil - Processing and sales of agricultural
(EMTZAERED products

‘Guangzhou Zhenijiu’) (note (i)
BT NRmERAR ([BMNEA) Bl ik ARE1,0000007C
(Ft)

2 NIRHERER

The above associates are accounted for using the equity method in the

financial statements.

Notes:

(i)  The official names of these entities are in Chinese.The English translation of
the names is for identification only.

(i) The Group has nominated one director out of a total of five directors on
the board of the entity, and in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group can exercise significant influence on the financial and operating
policy decision of the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 & 3% 855

14 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material:

MF

BTSRRI

C UAABREST)

14 REEE NTINER (&)

18 511

SUFBEANBE RRIELER

2024 2023
2024 % 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Aggregate carrying amount of individually FEaPBEmAPERNIEEX
immaterial associates in the consolidated H tE N F R EREBE
financial statements 28,745 7,869
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of those 75 B JE (R B & A R A9 48 58
associates’
— Losses from continuing operations — BEREEBSER (3,924) (2,197)
15 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 15 HitERBemERE
2024 2023
2024 % 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFTT
Equity securities designated at FVOCI EEARATEFAHEMEZE
(non-recycling) WK BRARFES (FAEE)
— Unlisted equity securities (note (a)) — I EHRAEH (Mﬁf )) 68,570 48,541
— Listed equity securities (note (b)(c)) — EmRARES (MisE b)) 6,695 6,716
75,265 55,257
Financial assets measured at FVPL BRAFEFABRTENESREE
— Investments in limited partnership enterprises ~ — RARABLENKRE
(note (d)) (M) 27,498 26,639
~ Investments in funds (note (e)) —RESHIRE (Mixe) 51,345 55,413
~ Key management insurance contracts (note (f)) — EZ2ERERBRE X (D) 246,394 -
325,237 82,052
400,502 137,309
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B SRR MIEE

15 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Group held unlisted equity investments in several entities. The entities
are incorporated in the PRC and mainly engaged in catering industry. The
Group designated its investments in unlisted equity securities at FVOCI
(non-recycling), as the investments are held for strategic purposes. Fair
value of each unlisted equity securities is determined by the directors of
the Company with reference to the valuation performed, using the price-
to-earnings ratios or price-to-sales ratios of comparable listed companies
adjusted for lack of marketability discount if no market information of recent
transactions is available, such as recent fund-raising transactions undertaken
by the investees. Otherwise, the costs are used as approximation of fair value
if the initial investment date is relatively close to the measurement date, or
the investees are start-up entities when there is no catalyst for a change in
fair value.

The Group held equity securities listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group designated its investments
in the listed equity securities at FVOCI (non-recycling), as the investments
are held for long-term investment purpose. Fair value of the listed equity
securities is measured by referencing to the stock price.

Dividends of RMB979,000 were received on these investments during the
year ended 31 December 2024.

The Group held investments in limited partnership enterprises (the
“Partnership Enterprise(s)”). These Partnership Enterprises are specialised in
equity investment. The Group has an intention of holding such investments
as long-term investments. According to the Partnership Enterprises
agreements, the Partnership Enterprises are managed by their general
partner. The Group participates in the Partnership Enterprise as one of the
limited partners who does not have power on selection nor removal of assets
manager or general partner of the Partnership Enterprise. In addition, the
Group does not have any right on making operating, investing and financing
decision of the Partnership Enterprise. The directors are of the opinion that
the Group does not have any control nor significant influence to affect the
variable returns through its investment in the Partnership Enterprise and
therefore these investments are accounted for at fair value. Fair value of
the investments in such Partnership Enterprises is measured by referencing
to the fair value of underlying investments. Fair value of each underlying
investment is determined by the directors of the Company with reference
to the valuation performed, using the price-to-sales ratios of comparable
listed companies adjusted for lack of marketability discount if no market
information of recent transactions is available, such as recent fund-raising
transactions undertaken by the investees. Otherwise, the costs are used as
approximation of fair value if the initial investment date is relatively close to
the measurement date, or the investees are start-up entities when there is
no catalyst for a change in fair value.

The Group held investments in funds operated by a fund management
company. The investments are accounted for at fair value. Since the units
in the funds are redeemable at the net asset value of the funds, fair value
of such investments is measured according to the net asset value as at 31
December 2024 and 2023.

The policy holder and beneficiary of the key management insurance
contracts is the Company. The fair values of key management insurance
contracts is determined by reference to the cash surrender value of the
insurance policies at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an\ 7f ﬁ%#&%ﬁﬁ?

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5= BE1 85N + AAREZTR)
16 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 16 HLERBEE

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBTT

Advances for investment BEEK 103,343 99,902
Prepayment for purchase of other property, HBEHMYZE BER

plant and equipment HEBHEER 16,865 6,993

Amounts due from related parties (note 30(c)) FE UL BB 5 3B (MT5E30()) 28,000 70,120

Others A, 7,188 -

155,396 177,015

17 INVENTORIES

(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial

position comprise:

17 78

) FEVBRRRANEFE

B

2024 2023

2024F 20234F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%T T AREFTT

Food ingredients B 69,304 83,877
Condiment product EEl N 29,105 29,331
Beverage gkt 2,494 4,445
Other materials H AR} 14,553 14,421
115,456 132,074
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17 INVENTORIES (continued) 17 EE (&)
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an ERARAMIIFTABRNTFESE
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: DHAT :
2024 2023
2024F 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREEF T
Carrying amount of inventories sold (note) EEFERAEE (M) 2,239,903 2,205,901

Note: Carrying amount of inventories sold includes RMB77,799,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (for the year ended 31 December 2023:
RMB63,742,000), relating to “staff costs’, “depreciation and amortisation

M5t B ZE2024F 12 ANBLEFE BEFER
HEESREE B TR R[5 R #H5H
X BB AR 77,799,0007T (B E2023

expenses”. F12A31BLEFE + AR¥63,742,000
JT) °
18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 EZ R HEMEWFIR

2024 2023
2024%F 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T
Trade debtors B 5 EWGRIE 56,542 37,562
Input value-added tax recoverable AT U (B3 TR IR E R 435,173 345,245
Deposits itk 82,981 71,531
Other receivables H R GRIE 40,174 37,065
Prepayments to vendors ME 7 ELTERR 54,954 71,025

Prepayments to an associate (note 30(c)) A — B 8 A RIYE L TR 3K
(Ffi3E30(0)) 223 7,864
Amounts due from related parties (note 30(c)) FE UL B8 5 7B (MT3E30(0)) 99,918 73,552
769,965 643,844

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered or

recognised as expense within one year or are recovered on demand.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5= BE1 85N + AAREZTR)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 18
Ageing analysis:

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
debtors (which are included in trade and other receivables), based on
the revenue recognition date, is as follows:

ESREMEWFIE &)
BREA DA -

RB|EBMR  REBRAEZBEHE2IINE
WA (FEAE 5 K E KRR /)
FREc DT

2024 2023
20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARETT

Within 1 month RIEAR
1to 2 months TEI2{E A A
2 to 3 months 2F3ME AWK

44,530 37,562
10,635 -
1,377 -

Trade debtors are due within 30 to 45 days from the date of revenue
recognition. Further details on the Group's credit policy are set out in
note 28(a).

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19
CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a

B RNGRIE S WAERAHEFI0RE
4SHAEIMH - BRAAKEEEBRNE—
BN E28()

BeRREEEYURAEME

) BRERREEBYEE

2024 2023
20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBET T

Cash on hand FHERS 35 34
Cash at bank IRITIR® 1,423,798 2,029,955
Less: restricted bank deposits (note (i) W RERSIRI TR (MEEWD) (306,504) (231,456)
Less: deposits with banks with original maturity & : REIEFE BB =185 &
date over three months RITIFR (510,355) (471,631)
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated FAEVBRARREERE
statement of financial position and the MERNRSRKRCEED
consolidated cash flow statement (note (i) (B=EG)) 606,974 1,326,902
(i) As at 31 December 2024, the deposits with bank of RMB11,062,000 (31 () M2024F12A318 RITHFERARK
December 2023: RMB10,679,000) were pledged as securities for a currency 11,062,0007T (2023%1 2A31H : AR
forward contract and the deposits with bank of RMB295,442,000 were 10,679 OOOE)?% ﬁf’ﬁi%*ﬁ%’i%}aﬁlﬂ@@
pledged as securities for bank loans (2023: RMB220,777,000). BRI - R ARTT IR A R 205, 42,0007T
LR ERIEITERMER (2023F + AR
220,777,0007T) ©

(i) As at 31 December 2024, cash and cash equivalents placed with banks in
Mainland China amounted to RMB408,605,000 (2023: RMB692,327,000).
Remittance of funds out of Mainland China is subject to the relevant rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

(i) M2024F12A318H  FHRAPRABIEIT
M5 e MRS S EYAARK4086050007T
(20234 : AR#692,327,0007T) © ES[E H
FR B ) 4 2B 38 ST R B IR AT AR A B0 B R SNEE B
B3R A KA o
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CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER

F UABRHEST)

19 BERBEEEEBYUREME

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated ) BB AR AR L EHFAEREMNE
from operations: ik -
Note 2024 2023
Kzt 20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Profit before taxation R BT 7 74,008 636,384
Adjustments for: LTS IEEL TR
Interest income and dividend income  FI B UL A K AZ B YA 4 (57,706) (66,060)
Depreciation e 5(e) 855,112 711,561
Amortisation of intangible assets mEERE 5(e) 13,328 9,384
Finance costs AN 5() 110,962 92,868
Losses/(gains) on disposal of HEWE - BE MK
property, plant and equipment EREEERE (W)
and right-of-use assets 5(c) 23,063 (2,731)
Share of losses of associates FEfGHE = N ElE R 14 3,924 2,197
Impairment loss on property, plant YIEE - RS e aR i LA I (5 R A
and equipment and right-of-use EERBEEBE
assets 11(a) 111,564 21,819
Equity-settled share-based payment AR A B DA () A AT Y
expenses B 5b) 18,227 21,153
Change in fair value of other HiheREEN QT EEY
financial asset 5(c) 4,345 7,214
Change in fair value of derivative MEeHaEN A TEE
financial liabilities 5(c) 15,472 8,846
Changes in working capital: HEELNEE) -
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TFERD /(EM) 16,618 (13,975)
Increase in trade and other Z 5 I FoAth FE WK IE DA &2
receivables and rental deposits He MM (94,822) (203,483)
Increase in trade and other E 5 R E A FET I A K
payables and accruals FEETE RN 45,320 111,569
Increase in contract liabilities AHEEEN 11,858 3,695
Increase in restricted bank deposits R GIERITEFRIE N (75,048) (220,893)
Cash generated from operations KEEEMBES 1,076,225 1,119,548
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WRERBSEEYUAREME

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER

(0)

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated cash flow

statement as cash flows from financing activities.

(0)

EREER )
RMETHELENEENEER
TRFAJNAEEREMEGTHNAELEY
(REHReMIERSEE) - mEFHME
EHEEAREREELIRKAESRE

HERAEEGARERERSTBREA
MEETHNRLRENEE -
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19 BERBEEEEBYUREME

) MEFBEENEENHER (&)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

(continued)
Amounts due to
a NCl holder
controlled by
Finance costs a director of Lease
Bank loans payable the Group liabilities Total
ERfARE
—BESEH
MR ES
RITER  ENRERET BEANRE HEEE o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARET R ARETR ARET R ARBTR
note 24 note 30(c) note 22
GE HiEE30() Htit22
At 1 January 2024 R2024E1518 244,162 - 70,894 2,084,523 2,399,579
Changes from financing cash flows: HEREMERD:
Proceeds from bank loans RITEFAMETE 284,008 - - = 284,008
Repayment of bank loans BRETER (148,745) - - - (148,745)
Interest of bank loans paid BERRTERAE - (10,314) - - (10,314)
Payment of capital element and HERBEAHS R
interest element of lease liabilities MEHARH - - - (631,284) (631,284)
Dividends paid to NC! holders BRFEARERSEANRS - - (9,811) - (9,811)
Payment for acquisition of NCI of subsidiaries  REEFH B A B FEE RN - - (69,494) - (69,494)
Total changes from financing cash flows RERSNELHET 135,263 (10,314) (79,305) (631,284) (585,640)
Other changes: Hit#a
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) FER (HFE56e) - 5,366 - 103,376 108,742
Capitalised borrowing costs ERMeEA = 4,948 = - 4,948
Addition NE = = - 766,528 766,528
Disposal HE = = = (140,072) (140,072)
Dividends approved to NCI holders BHIOETHB L RIFEER
in a subsidiary ERBFEANRE - - 9,811 S 9,811
Acquisition of NCI (note 27(c)(vii), note 30(b))  KEEIEFMRER (M 27(0)vi)
fzE300)) - - - - =
Total other changes EnEaas - 10,314 9,811 729,832 749,957
At 31 December 2024 R2024F12A31A 379,425 - 1,400 2,183,071 2,563,896
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CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

an\

C UAABREST)

19 BERBEEEEBYUREME
EREER &)

) MEFBEENEENHER (&)

(continued)
Amounts due to
a NCl holder
controlled by
Finance costs a director of
Bank loans payable the Group  Lease liabilities Total
EREAEE
—ZEEI
HIEE R ER
FTER  ENRERE  REANFE RERR Feb
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETFT ARETTT AREFT ARETTT ARETT
note 24 note 30(c) note 22
Ftstoa Ft300 fit22
At 1 January 2023 R2023E1818 30,000 - 27,600 1,650,351 1,707,951
Changes from financing cash flows: HEREMERD:
Proceeds from bank loans RITEFAMETE 286,789 - - - 286,789
Repayment of bank loans BRETER (72627) - - - (72,627)
Interest of bank loans paid BERROERANE - (4,734) - - (4,734)
Payment of capital element and HERBEAHS R
interest element of lease liabilities HERBARR - - - (531,530) (531,530)
Dividends paid to NC! holders BNFEARERSEANRS - - (53,200 - (53,200
Payment for acquisition of NCI of subsidiaries  REEFH B A B FER IR - - (130,000) - (130,000)
Total changes from financing cash flows RERSNELHET 214,162 (4,734) (183,200) (531,530) (505,302)
Other changes: Hit#a
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) FER (HiEs56e) - 1615 - 89,319 90934
Capitalised borrowing costs BRCETAA - 3119 - - 3119
Addition HE - - - 891,124 891,124
Disposal HE - - - (14,741) (14,741)
Dividends approved to NCI holders in BIOETHB AR FEERE
a subsidiary BBEANRE - - 27,000 - 27,000
Acquisition of NCI (note 27(c)(vi), WEg e 2 (B3 27(0 il
note 30(b) FiE3000) - - 199,494 - 199,494
Total other changes EnEaas - 4734 206,49 965,702 1,196,930
At 31 December 2023 ®2023F12A31A 244,162 - 70,894 2,084,523 2,399,579
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VRERREEEYUAREME

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) EREER )
(d) Total cash out flow for leases: ) HEWEESREE

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBET T ARBT T
Within operating cash flows REEREBREN 133,213 138,844
Within investing cash flows RIEERESREN - 22,660
Within financing cash flows REEREREA 631,284 531,530
764,497 693,034

These amounts relate to the following: IS M T YA -
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T AREEF T
Lease rentals settled g AERS 764,497 670,374
Purchase of leasehold land BEAELH = 22,660
764,497 693,034
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20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

liﬁ

BTSRRI

C UAABREST)

20 BEF REMENRE

2024 2023

20245 20234

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTT

Trade payables B M HRIE 213,116 209,310
Construction fee payables B TEE 120,268 123,986
Staff cost payable FEfT B TR 130,027 142,657
Accrued charges FEETERA 76,850 75,718
Other taxes payables Hb ERHIE 8,534 8,280
Other payables H A e FIE 68,462 61,856
Amounts due to related parties (note 30(c)) FEA B8 5 3B (M9 5E30(c)) 1,510 71,094
Dividends payable FERT AR S 3,830 4,070
622,597 696,971

All trade and other payables (including amounts due to related parties) FiEE 5 KEAMENFIE (BIEENERN A

are expected to be settled or recognised as income within one year or

are repayable on demand.

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade

payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

HIR) RHRR —FRE B LR RK K

RERKEE -

RBEHMR  REZZAH2IINEZE

NRIBORE DT

2024 2023
2024 20234

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T AREFT

Within 1 year R—FR 213,116 209,310
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21 CONTRACT LIABILITIES

21 BHERE

2024 2023

20245 20234

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R AREFT

Customer loyalty scheme (note) BER AR S (FEE) 14,038 6,201
Advanced payment received Bk 5,729 1,708
19,767 7,909

Note: The estimated loyalty points which can be used in future consumptions in Mk REHR - BRAREMEENTA

the restaurants arising from the customer loyalty scheme at the end of the
reporting period represented the transaction price allocated to unsatisfied

performance obligation.

Movements in contract liabilities:

BHARENES :

RAREEBENGET BB - BOEK
REITRHOBRBOZHER -

Contract

liabilities

EHEaE

RMB'000

AREFIT

Balance at 1 January 2023 M2023F1 A1 B 4214
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of HAFEAERBAMEHENEERLD

recognising revenue during the year (4,214)

Increase in contract liabilities AHEEEM 7,909

Balance at 31 December 2023 M2023F 12 A31 B EE & 7,909
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of AFNERRAMEHEHEBERD

recognising revenue during the year (7,909)

Increase in contract liabilities EHEEEM 19,767

Balance at 31 December 2024 R20244F12 A31 BH AR 19,767
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5= BE1 85N + AAREZTR)

22 LEASE LIABILITIES 22 HEEE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the THRENNBEHREEBEEEE BN
Group's lease liabilities at the end of the reporting period: TEHEIEE -
2024 2023
2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARETT

Within 1 year —FKN 612,643 548,260
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA 558,749 503,350
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZBERAFR 1,030,164 1,011,908
After 5 years hFE 235,623 280,071
2,437,179 2,343,589
Less: total future interest expenses T ARRF B BEE 254,108 259,066
Present value of lease liabilities HEsBERE 2,183,071 2,084,523
Lease liabilities included in the consolidated AR EFBARRNEEG R
statement of financial position
~ Within 1 year - —FR 601,523 539,473
— After 1 year but within 2 years - —FRERFEA 520,806 471,039
— After 2 years but within 5 years - WMERERFEA 883,488 868,690
— After 5 years — RFE 177,254 205,321
1,581,548 1,545,050
2,183,071 2,084,523
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23 PROVISIONS

F UABRHEST)

23 B

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R ARETT

Provisions for restoration costs 1BIERR A RE 51,531 47,293
The movements of provisions during the year were as follows: RERBEZLEOT

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETT

Balance at 1 January M1 A1THMNE 47,293 37,949
Additional provisions HANEHE 6,517 7,804
Interest on provisions BAERA R 2,220 1,934
Provisions utilised EEARRE (4,499) (394)
Balance at 31 December R12 831 B 51,531 47,293

Pursuant to the terms of the respective tenancy agreements entered
into by the Group, the Group is required to return its leased properties
to the conditions as stipulated in the tenancy agreements at the
expiration of the corresponding lease term as appropriate. The provision
for reinstatement costs was estimated based on certain assumptions
and estimates made by the Group’s management with reference to
historical reinstatement costs and/or other available market information.

The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised where

appropriate.
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BTSRRI

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5= BE1 85N + AAREZTR)

24 BANK LOANS

The analysis of the repayment schedule of bank loans is as follows:

24 SRITER
BTERMBEEATOT

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T R ARBETT

Within one year or on demand R—FRIREREE

— unsecured and unguaranteed — IR R AR 30,000 50,000

— secured (note (i) — BHEA (FFFEG) 275,817 40,000
305,817 90,000

After one year but within two years —FREMFANEER

—~ secured (note (i) — B (FIEEG) 73,608 154,162
379,425 244,162

Notes: Bizx -

(i)  Secured bank loans as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 were secured by
certain of the Group's pledged deposits (note 19).

(i) All of the Group's banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of covenants
relating to the Group's financial metrics which are tested periodically, as
are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If
the Group were to breach the covenants the related loans would become
payable on demand. The Group did not identify any difficulties complying
with the covenants. Further details of the covenants and the Group's
management of liquidity risk are set out in note 28(b). As at 31 December
2024, none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been
breached (2023: Nil).

(i)

2024 20234512 A31 B A KR
BRI HETAEEEERERER (W
19) °

AEEMMARTRENARTTRASEE
HET AR N BB HEENRZN - ma
RN FERRES BRI TWERTHE -
fHANEEERRY - HEEREARERE
o REEE B THEZL A EI AR BB
RE - FRZARASEEERDE SRR
K — SR IBE IR M FE28(b) ° 2024 4F
12A318 @ fEERENCIRNEE L
(20234 : ) o
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25INCOME TAX

IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial

position represents:

F UABRHEST)

25 HRE MR R A FTEB

) FRE BT RAENEBIES

2024 2023

20245 20234

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T AREFT

At 1 January M®1A1H 68,223 17,467
Provisions for PRC income tax R FTIS B 60,920 150,286
Provisions for income tax of other jurisdictions FE M RERE R TS B B B 13,901 7,924
Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years BEFENBETR (GBEREE) 231 (342)
Income tax paid BB (100,243) (107,112)
At 31 December M®12A318 43,032 68,223
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25INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

(b)
(i)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

Movement of each component of deferred tax assets and
liabilities

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during

the year are as follows:

Deferred tax (assets)/ EILHE (EE)/ Unused tax ~ Right-of-use Lease
liabilties arising from: BEEER: losses assets  liabilities  Provisions
B

HEER [ARRE  RERR
RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO

L
RMB000

25 FEMBARRROFER @)

) CHERELERAEERER
() BEHRBEERBBESBINED

RAFEHE BN RN HERELEN
H(EE)/ AENHIREBHMT

Fairvalue  Fairvalue
adjustment  adjustment

Impairment  from business from financial

losses acquisition assets Others Total
REEE  RELA
{1 BEMN

HEFE AVESR ATE3E it it
RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOWO

ARBTL ARMTR ARBTR ARMTT ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTL AR%TR

AtT January 203 R0BE1A1A (57,28) 36037 (394,386) (9227) (9,805) 1127 6468 (4S5t (107420)
Charged/(credited) to BEENR/

profitor loss () ABR) 10,144 69,245 (71615) (2061) (3519) (354) - (3322) (1482)
Charge to reserves BRENR - - - - - - (1367) - (1367)
Exchange adjustments EiA% - 19 (29 - - 3 - - ]
At 31 December 203 RN3%ENAA (47039) 429501  (466,030)  (11,288)  (13324) 776 5,101 (7873)  (110.276)
(Credlited)/charged to (FFAB%)/

profit or loss BERTR (23,353) (8,634) 7467 (514) (17,761) (352) - (2,697) (45,844)
Charge to reserves BRENR - - - - - - 5,008 - 5,008
Bichange adjustments EiAE - (136) 179 - - (36) - 5 7
At 31 December 2024 #0145 128318 (70492) 420731 (458384)  (11,802)  (31,085) 388 10,109 (10570)  (151,105)
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25INCOME TAX

B SRR MIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K55 5 &% 8H5h

IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued)

(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial

F UABRHEST)

25 IREMBRRRBOFAEH @)
) ERBELHBEEREME (4)

(i) AREBBARR RE IR

position

2024 2023
2024 % 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT

Net deferred tax asset in the consolidated RERE B SRR R ARIER 18
statements of financial position BAEFE (161,602) (116,153)

Net deferred tax liability in the consolidated RERE R R AEETR 18
statement of financial position BEFE 10,497 5,877
(151,105) (110,276)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised ) REFDELERBEEE

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(t), the BB (O SEFETER - BRTKA

Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative
tax losses of RMB100,740,000 (2023: RMB42,928,000) and temporary

differences of RMB16,279,000 (2023: RMB16,225,000) of certain

subsidiaries, respectively, as it is not probable that future taxable profits

against which the losses or temporary differences can be utilised will be

available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.
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25INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

(0)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
Deferred tax assets not recognised (continued)

The expiration information of the Group's unrecognised deferred tax

assets in respect of cumulative tax losses is set out below:

25 FEMBARRROFER @)

*EEWL,\ uﬁTEIEEE (/é%-iF

REE AR R HIAE R KRR
HEEMZHENEIIMT

2024 2023
20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ETR ARBT T

2024 20244 - 7311
2026 20264F 4,812 4,812
2027 20274 33,115 12,189
2028 20284 28,661 18,616
2029 20294 34,152 -
Total “Et 100,740 42,928

All the tax losses of subsidiaries of the Group in PRC can be carried
forward for a maximum period of five years. Pursuant to the Notice
No. 8 issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration
of Taxation of the PRC on 6 February 2020, the maximum carried
forward period of the tax losses affected by COVID-19 in certain difficult
industries, such as catering industry, is extended from five years to eight

years.

REBMRPEMNKER AR AHRIEER
HREE SR AT o BRIEH BB RE
RIIEARN2020F 2 A6 HEMAIESIRE
Mo ETRERBENITE (PIMERE) X
2019 MRIm S AT EAMSIBMRIBEIEN
RESHAAFERE/\F °
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25INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

(d)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

According to the CIT Law and its implementation rules, dividends
receivable by non-PRC corporate residents from PRC enterprises are
subject to withholding income tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties

or arrangements, for profits earned since 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2024, deferred tax liabilities in respect of the
dividend withholding tax relating to the distributable profits of the
Company's subsidiaries were not recognised as the Company controls
the dividend policy of the subsidiaries. Based on the assessment
made by management as at 31 December 2024, it was determined
that the distributable profits of the Company’s subsidiaries would not
be distributed to the Hong Kong and overseas holding companies
in the foreseeable future. The amounts of undistributed profit of
the Company's subsidiaries in PRC as at 31 December 2024 was
RMB1,251,964,000 (2023: RMB1,057,522,000).
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has the following

share-based payment arrangements:

Restricted Stock Units Scheme

The Group's ultimate controlling party, Mr. Guan Yihong, operates a
share-based incentive scheme under which the restricted stock units
("RSUs") would be granted as share incentives to qualified directors
and employees. The RSUs granted would vest on specific dates, on
condition that employees remain in service without any performance
requirements. Once the vesting conditions underlying the respective
RSUs are met, the RSUs are considered duly and validly issued to the

holder, and free of restrictions on transfer.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recognised share-
based expenses of nil (2023: RMB518,000).

As at 31 December 2024, none of the employees (2023: none) of the
Group have been granted with any RSUs (31 December 2023: any RSUs),
and the outstanding number of RSUs that could be granted under the
Scheme was 6,218,254 (31 December 2023: 6,218,254).

Employees’ Share Option Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 6
December 2019 whereby the directors of the Company are authorised,
at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including directors
of any company in the Group, to take up options at predetermined
consideration to subscribe for shares of the Company. The options vest
after one year from the date of grant and are then exercisable within a
period of two years. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

n‘/-F

BTSRRI

C UAABREST)

26 LMEE%*%MHE@Z%E@E’JH

a’A

HE2024F12831BIFE  NEBEHEE
LA LARRD B BB e SR 2 Bk

3 BR&IAR 0 EE {51 &l

AEBNRKREHNDERBEELEETRN
HEEE > RIEZAE - XS EL
(IXBRFIRDEL]) BRTAERES
RESERKGDHE - CIROXBESRNG
BUBREERHEE  KHERERDHE
B BYBEMRBEER - EEXREHK
0 B AL ) AR B R B AR 1 — AR SE AR - KR
B BMMKERSEARBRETTHS
A B EERRE -

REZE2024F 12831 B ILFE - KEBRE
RUARBRMD AERHOREZ T (2023F : AR
#518,0007T) °

2024512 A31 0 - EALEES (2023
F | BEREMZBHIRG B (202346
12A318 : ERIZREIRMDEBEL) - RIRZ
B RE N ZREIRG B FISREE
756,218,254 (2023412 A31H : 6,218,254
@) -

(b) fEE MBI AERT &

ARABER2019F 12 A6 BIRMG— B
RS B - ARARESTERERBR
EAKEREE (BREASERNEMAARMNE
E)NBEETREESERERBERQAFR
me BRIEAEHBEE—FEREE A
BRI EANITE - BHBERER TIFE

wuaﬁzﬁ Tiﬂﬁ ﬁﬂxﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬂ IL/\HX
HiasEsEE o
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 26 URERZELURKROGEBERNNS

(continued)

(b) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (continued)

(&)
) EEEIRESTE ()

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: BRHMERRAEEDT -
Number Contractual
Tranche of options life of
Date of grant number granted Vesting period options
e BBIRBEH
KRB HH BREHE BEH BRFH
Options granted to directors and key
management personnel:
RTEERFTEZEEASNBEARE
- on 3 November 2023 2023 T1 1,238,000  One year after the date of grant 3 years
— 202311 A3H 2023 E—4t X H 8RR —F 3
Options granted to other employees:
BT H MRS HEIRAE -
—on 3 November 2023 2023 T2 5,816,000 One year after the date of grant 3 years
— 1202311 A3H 2023FE 4 RO RBR—F 3F
Total share options granted 7,054,000
ERHBREAH
Number Contractual
Tranche of options life of
Date of grant number granted Vesting period options
e BB
R BH #E BREZE HRED BHRFH
Options granted to directors and key
management personnel:
RTEZERFTZEIEASNBEAE
- on 30 October 2024 2024 T1 3,524,000  One year after the date of grant 5 years
— 12024610 A30H 2024F E—it R B8R —F 5
Options granted to other employees:
BT H MRS EIRAE -
—on 30 October 2024 2024 T2 11,431,000 One year after the date of grant 5 years
— 2024610 A30H 2024 B Ht R B e —5F 5
Total share options granted 14,955,000
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(b)
(ii)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

Employees’ Share Option Scheme (continued)

n‘/-ﬁ

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 & 3% 855

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (ii)

options are as follows:

= e
(&

) BEBRESE (8)

BTSRRI

C HARBIT)
26 UERZEURGHERNMS

BRERE REFITEENT ¢

2024 2023
20244 20234

Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options

InREFE 15 INHEF 5
TEE BREZE TEE  EREHE

HKD HKD

BT BT
Outstanding at 1 January K1 ATVEEARITE 13.44 14,071,200 17.64 9,982,500
Granted during the year FABEEL 3.44 14,955,000 835 7,054,000
Exercised during the year FRETHE - - 18.87 (299,600)
Forfeited during the year FRERI 17.89  (3,984,200) 15.12 (2,665,700)
Outstanding at 31 December W12 A31 BEERTE 6.76 25,042,000 13.44 14,071,200
Exercisable at 31 December B12 A31BAITT{E 11.68 10,087,000 17.61 7,728,200
Non vested at 31 December R12A31BREB 3.44 14,955,000 835 6,343,000
During the year ended 31 December 2024, no shares options have been HZE2024F 12A31BIEFE - HEERE

exercised.

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2024 had an exercise
price of HKD3.44, HKD8.35 or HKD16.04 (31 December 2023: HKD8.35,
HKD16.04 or HKD20.24) and a weighted-average remaining contractual
life of 3.5 years (31 December 2023: 2.1 years).

The Group recognised share option expenses of RMB18,227,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: RMB20,635,000).

ETME -

2024512 A31 A ARITEBARERNITE
B/3.447%7T ~ 8.3587L3016.04/4 7T (2023
F12A318 : 83587T » 16.04/57T5620.24
BIT) RINETFHFRBRENFHRISF
(2023%F 128318 1 214F) ©

KEBREE2024F12831HILFEER

BEAAERI X ARM18,227,000 (20234 : A
R#20,635,0007T) ©
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 26
(continued)

(b) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (continued)

(i) Fair value of share options and assumptions: (iii)

The fair value of services received in return for the share options granted
is measured by reference to the fair value of share options granted. The
estimated fair value of the share options granted is measured based on a
binomial option pricing model. The contractual life of the share options
is used as an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are

incorporated into the binomial tree model.

Fair value of share options and inputs

DESEEURGAERNA
(&)

b) EEBREE (&)
BREQSFERRBR

N HBRERBRAEREHAFES
ZEREBRENLTFEAFE -EREE
NG AFELRE B HEEE
BAGHE - BRENSOFHAIELEL
B ABIE - REITEMNEHEMAZ
AAGER -

Tranche number

BREATERREARIE B
2024 T1 2024 T2
2024F E—Ht 2024FF E
Fair value at measurement date RetE2A 8 (AEREBEE) &

(being the date of grant) (HKD) AFE (BT 5,845,000 17,025,000
Share price (HKD) A AD B (B IT) 343 343
Exercise price (HKD) TEfE (BT) 3.44 3.44
Expected volatility TEHRR IR 66.49% 66.49%
Expected option life T AR i AR 5 years 5 years

5 54F
Early exercise level FETTREAR R 2.8 22
Dividend yield fx B E = 1.79% 1.79%
Risk-free rate A [ o ) 2 2.9297% 2.9297%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated
based on the weighted average remaining life of the share options),
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility based on publicly
available information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. The fair values calculated are inherently subjective and
uncertain due to the assumptions made and limitations of the model
used. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially

affect the fair value estimate.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 & 3% 855

26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(continued)

(b) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (continued)

(i) Fair value of share options and assumptions: (continued)

Share options were granted under a service condition. This condition has
not been taken into account in the grant date fair value measurement
of the services received. Where share options are forfeited due to a
failure by the employee to satisfy the service conditions, any expenses
previously recognised in relation to such share options are reversed

effective the date of the forfeiture. There were no market conditions

n‘/-ﬁ

BTSRRI

C UAABREST)

26 UEBEEURGARERNS

(b)
(iii)

(&)
EEBRESTE ()
BREATERMES  (8)

B TR IR AR IS IR IR o BZARMEFIE R
ETARERBRZLBHENATERTE -
fint B & B SRR 2 RTE R 1 B BB IR
BU - EABA S U EEREE RN X
FOZUCHE R A BRI Rl - BEARER HF 1A
E TSR

associated with the share option grants.

27 EX - RERRKRE
) B
BRTRA

2024
2024

Nominal value of Nominal value of

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(@) Share capital

(i) Issued share capital (i)

No. of shares fully paid shares fully paid shares

M BE
RHEE IR T B IR R E B
USD RMB equivalent
EPH ARMEE
Ordinary shares, issued and ERTRARZEER
fully paid:
At 1 January 2024 R2024F1 F1H 1,436,567,700 143.66 973
Shares repurchased BRI, (BFE27()(i))
(note 27(a)(iii)) (38,934,000) (3.89) (28)
At 31 December 2024 2024512 A31 18 1,397,633,700 139.77 945

The ordinary share of the Company has a par value of USD0.0000001 KA R) BRI {E 4 0.0000001 T ©

each.

B AT B B R MR 8 ¢
CEREARAAE EASR—FHTH
B - AEBREAARNHBEESE
=B RS -

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard

to the Company's residual assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR R R M

n‘/-F

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(a)
(ii)

(iii)

Share capital (continued)
Shares issued under Share Option Scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no share options were

exercised to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, share options were exercised
to subscribe for a total of 299,600 ordinary shares in the Company
at a consideration of HKD5,652,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB4,940,000), of which RMB0.2 and RMB5,974,000 were credited to

share capital and the share premium account respectively. RMB1,034,000

C UARMZR)
27
(a)

(ii)

BR - HEERE &)
PR (42)
R B IRETE R 1THRG

REZ2024F12H31H JtEJE
R BE AR R ARRBE AR

 BEITE

ik e

REZE2023F12A31HIEFE - BRES
BEITE - DARARES,652,0008 7T (FHERY
AR H4,940,0007T) SREAR QR FE $£299,600
BREBR ERPARBI2TIREARE
5,974,0007T 9 RlET AR R AR s Bk o A

was transferred from the share-based payments reserve to the share R ¥#1,034,0007T B LA A Z T 601~ SRR
premium account. ERERORER -
Purchase of own shares (i) BEIB S KRHD
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company repurchased REZE2024F12831BIEFE - ARFR
its own ordinary shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as EEBMERSMAERAGIERLRE & LB
follows: PORNE
Number of
shares Highest price Lowest price Aggregate Aggregate
Month/year /8 repurchased paid per share paid per share price paid price paid
EBERG BRENES BRENBE
#E Bt B B AER BAERE
HKD HKD HKD RMB equivalent
BT BT BT N
May 2024 202458 2,795,000 547 4.79 14,058,000 12,794,000
June 2024 2024%6 A 18,664,000 499 391 79,125,000 72,121,000
July 2024 2024%7 8 4,554,000 3.96 3.04 15,020,000 13,715,000
August 2024 20248 A 2,443,000 251 242 6,011,000 5,489,000
September 2024 202449 A 10,478,000 254 2.18 24,420,000 22,260,000
38,934,000 126,379,000

During the year ended 31 December 2024, 38,934,000 shares were
repurchased and cancelled (2023: 17,944,000 shares).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 & 3% 855

(b) Movements in components of equity

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components of

n‘/-ﬁ

BTSRRI

C UAABREST)

27 EX - ERRKRE &)

b) #EzmAH R ED D HY

AR EVE RIS D B B B R BT

equity are set out below: PR
The Company P NN
Share-based Fair value
Share Share Treasury payment Exchange reserve  Accumulated
Note capital premium shares reserve reserve  (non-recycling) losses Total
Py
RERN AVERE
il s RHEE ERR BT EXGfE  (FUER) ESy - @
RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
At T January 2023 RABEIAIR 1 2,780454 - 17,501 (4941) (9,176) (25071) 2,758768
Profit for the year R - - - - - - 0 0
Other comprehensive income £t 2ENE - - - - 39,188 (4827) - 34,361
Purchase of own shares BEEFRA 276)(i) - - (137,259) - - - - (137,25)
Cancelation of shares RS 2760 & i) —* (137,05) 137,255 - - - - -
Fuity-settled sharebased —— MUEREE MR A
transactions ERNRS % - - - 20635 - - - 20635
Sharesissued under Share RIEEETRE: T
Option Scheme E0RA 7)) -* 5974 - (1034 - - - 4,940
Share options forfeited ERRRNERE
during the year 2% - - - (3826) - - 3826 -
Dividends declared in BEFEHE
respect of previous year BERE 270) - (1279) - - - - - (12799)
At31 December 2023 and ROBENANA
1 January 2024 R04%1 818 1 2636378 - 33276 34247 (14.003) (21,043) 2,668,856
Loss for the year EEFR - - - - - - (22,541) (22,541)
Other comprehensive income (12 E 5 - - - - 49516 (220) - 499
Purchase of own shares BEBZRN 7)) - - (126379) - - - - (126379)
Cancelation of shares HERD 2760
& (i) - (126379) 126379 - - - - -
Fquity-settled sharebased ~ INEREE IR A
ransactions ERERS % - - - 18207 - - - 18227
Share options forfeited ERgRRERE
during the year 2% - - - (12072) - - 12072 -
Dividends declared in respect  BAEEHE
of previous year EIRRE 27 - (192678) - - - - - (192678)
At 31 December 2024 R204%E12R318 [ 231732 - 39431 83,763 (14.223) (31512) 2394781

* The amount represents amount less than RMB1,000.

*

BRALEIRARE,0007T °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K55 5 &% 8H5h

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(c) Nature and purposes of reserves

(i) Capital reserve

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group disposed 20% and
0.1% equity interest of Xi Qin Catering to non-controlling shareholders
at consideration of RMB10,000 in aggregate and retain 79.9% equity
interests after disposal. The capital reserve of the Group as at 31
December 2024 and 31 December 2023 represented the difference

between the consideration obtained and the disposed proportionate

interests in identifiable net assets of the above subsidiary.

(ii) Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the par value of

the shares of the Company and proceeds received from the issuance of

the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company are distributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.

(iii) Share-based payments reserve

The share-based payments reserve represents the portion of the grant
date fair value of RSUs and unexercised share options granted to
the directors and employees of the Group that has been recognised

in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based

payments in note 1(s)(ii).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k55 % &% B95h

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Nature and purposes of reserves (continued)

(iv) Statutory reserve

(vi

=

According to the PRC Company Law, the Company's PRC subsidiaries
are required to transfer 10% of their profit after taxation, as determined
under the PRC accounting regulations, to statutory reserve until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. For the purpose
of calculating the transfer to reserve, the profit after taxation shall be
the amount determined based on the statutory financial statements
prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards. The transfer
to this reserve must be made before distribution of dividend to

shareholders.

Statutory reserve fund can be used to cover previous years' losses, if
any, and may be converted into share capital by the issue of new shares
to shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholdings or by
increasing the par value of the shares currently held by them, provided
that the balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the registered

capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprise all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial information of operations with

functional currency other than RMB.

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) include post-tax accumulated
gains or losses arising from the remeasurement of the unlisted equity

securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling).

n‘/-F

27

B IR R R

AN RESR)
BR - HEERE &)

o RENEERMAREE)

(iv)

(vi)

HEIE R

REBPERRNE - AR EMERQ R
AERBEARTRENN10% (RIEHBE S
EREE) BAERE  EERBRRESR
A EARAS0% o Rt HE HEOEE - &
T 1% a8 M e A3 B X AR B P Bl & 51 2 B A
SUEEMBHRRMEEHSHE - HULFE
EVEERE AR M BCR 0 IRAL S AT R -

EEREBAIRERABATEENER (0
A - A S AR IR A AR R e AR L 1 A R
RETHRIENERERFENROEE
WA RERRAR - M L BITENER
TMER L& AR E25% ©

BE 5 &1

EXRFEEEEMAERREAARE LI
DEREBAEXHOMBERELINE
EE e

DERERE (R ATEE)

DT AERE (TAER) BiEETAE AT
Erf AHMEmEKENIELETRAES COF
AR L) EFFTEEAMNBR RETER -
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n‘/-F

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(c) Nature and purposes of reserves (continued)
(vii) Acquisition of NCI

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group acquired
additional 3.24% equity interests in Tai Er Catering for RMB199,494,000
and held 91.24% equity interests of Tai Er Catering in aggregate upon
completion of the acquisition (Note 30(b)).

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group acquired
additional 20.1% equity interests in Guangzhou Xi Qin Catering
("Xi Qin Catering”) for RMB10,000 and held 100%

equity interests of Xi Qin Catering in aggregate upon completion of

Management Co., Ltd.*

the acquisition. The carrying amount of Xi Qin Catering’s net assets on
the date of the acquisition was RMB5,954,000. The Group recognised a
decrease in non-controlling interests of RMB1,197,000 and an increase in
retained earnings of RMB1,187,000.

*  The official name of this entity is in Chinese. The English translation of the
name is for identification only.

(d) Dividends

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

F UABRHEST)

27 B - HERRE (&)
o REENMERBEE)
(vii) Y BB FE s AR A S

REZE2023F12A31BLEFEE  AEE
LA A R #5199,494,000 7T W i K = & &R EE 51
3.24% 8% - WHRWEETREE KFERZ
BEERE91.24% M8 4E (FIFE30(b)) ©

REZE2024F12A31BIEFE - AEB I
AREE10,000 T EEMNEFERER QA
([PEAEER ) 02010 B4 - WU 52
RiEERFAERAFERMNI00%KRE - FAF
EHRWERRNFEERTMERARYE
5,954,0007T © 7N 5 [ 7 3R FE 12 AR i 0R
AR1,197,00070 RARE B FIIE DA R
1,187,0007T °©

* ZEBNEIREADX - HEEEMEX
B EHER -

d) RE

(i)

FRERARDBERERRRTHIRE

2024 2023
20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREBTFT
Final dividend proposed after the end of FEEREERORIRE
the year of HKDO0.02 per ordinary share B Ei@EAR0.028 T
(2023: HKDO0.15 per ordinary share) (2023F : BRREBAR0.15ETT) 25,813 195,600
Special dividend proposed after the end of the FEEREEZZNFIRETR
year of HKD0.02 per ordinary share (2023: nil) L mAR0.028 7T (20234 - M%) 25,813 -
51,626 195,600

Final dividend and special dividend proposed after the end of the year

have not been recognised as liabilities as at the end of the year.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5= BE1 85N + AAREZTR)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 27 EX - HERRE (&)

(d) Dividends (continued) d) RE (&)

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company (i) £E—BMFEROARL T ERRFIK
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid HHRE  ERFEAHERIKA
during the year

2024 2023
2024 % 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBET T

Final dividend in respect of the previous BELE—UBRFENRARE
financial year of HKD0.15 per ordinary BREBAR0.158 T
share (2023: HKDO0.01) (20234 : 0.01/7T) 192,678 12,795
Dividends of RMB9,811,000 (31 December 2023: RMB27,000,000) was FRARZBERAEFERERFTEATIK
declared by Tai Er Catering to their NCI holders during the year. Dividend &S AR#9,811,0007T (2023512 A31H -
of RMB9,811,000 (31 December 2023: RMB25,600,000) were paid during AR #27,000,0007T) BB AR9,811,000
the year and unpaid dividends of RMB1,400,000 (2023: RMB1,400,000) 70 (2023F 12 A31H « AR#25,600,0007T)
were accrued and presented in “Trade and other payables” as at 31 ERERIRS - RIEARE AR 1,400,000
December 2024 7 (20234 © ARM1,400,0007T) B 72024
F12A31 B RIIRR B 5 K H A ER
FIEIA -
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27 EX - HERRE (@)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(e) Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2024, the aggregate amount of distributable
reserves of the Company, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Act of the Cayman Islands, amounted to RMB2,394,780,000 (2023:

RMB2,668,855,000).

(f) Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders, by pricing products and services commensurately with the

level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes

adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in economic

conditions.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. The Group monitors its capital
structure with reference to its debt position. The Group's strategy is to
maintain the equity and debt in a balanced position and ensure there
are adequate working capital to service its debt obligations. The Group's

debt to asset ratio, being the Group's total liabilities over its total assets,

as at 31 December 2024 was 51.4% (31 December 2023: 48.5%).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally

imposed capital requirements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k55 % &% B95h

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the

normal course of the Group's business.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are

described below.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The
Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other receivables.
The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents and restricted deposits is limited because the counterparties
are banks and financial institutions with high-credit-quality, for which
the Group considers to have low credit risk. The Group's exposure
to credit risk arising from refundable rental deposits is considered to
be low, taking into account (i) the landlords’ credit rating and (i) the

remaining lease term and the period covered by the rental deposits.

The Group's trade receivables mainly due from payment platforms
such as Unionpay, Alipay or WeChat Pay, and the shopping malls in
cooperation with the Group are with high credit rating and no past due

history.

The management of the Group considers these assets are short-term in
nature and the probability of default is negligible on the basis of high-
credit-rating issuers during the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023, and accordingly, no provision for impairment of trade receivables
is considered necessary by management for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.

n‘/-F
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(a)

VALUES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

We have concentration of credit risk on amounts due from related
parties as of each reporting period with details set out in note 30. Our
management has made periodic assessments as well as individual
assessment on recoverability based on historical settlement records and
adjusts for forward-looking information. In view of the strong financial
capability of these related parties and considered the future prospects
of the industry these related parties operate, our management does
not consider there is a risk of default and does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these related parties, and accordingly, no
impairment was recognised in respect of the amounts due from related

parties.

In determining the ECL for other receivables (excluding rental deposits
and amounts due from related parties), the management of the Group
has taken into account the historical default experience and forward-
looking information, as appropriate. The management of the Group has
assessed that other receivables have not had a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition and risk of default is insignificant, and
therefore, no provision for impairment of other receivables is considered
necessary by management for the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023.

The expected credit loss rate is insignificant and close to zero.

The Group does not provide any guarantee which would expose the

Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In management of liquidity risk, the Group's policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash, readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short

and longer term.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B & 855) -

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(b)

VALUES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period of the Group's financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contracted rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the

Group can be required to pay.

n‘/-ﬁ
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TRETAESESRABRHRERROFR
BANIHR  UaHRTRRERE (B
REMRGSHM RN (HEFEHX) RER
BERROE BIFRETEOF BN A
SEAREANNER ANSER -

More than More than Carrying

Within 1yearbut 2 years but amount at

1 year or less than less than More than 31 December

on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2024

#2024

15A5 1N E 260k 1283181

REX =PRI B5FR S5ENLE @t BEE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRL ARBTR AR%TR AR®Tz ARBTRT ARWT:R

Trade and other payables BH R EMENTIE 622,597 - - - 622,597 622,597
Bank loans RITER 309,138 74,823 - - 383,961 379,425
Lease liabilities HEaE 612,643 558,749 1,030,164 235623 2,437,179 2,183,071
1,544,378 633,572 1,030,164 235,623 3,443,737 3,185,093

More than More than Carrying

Within 1 year but 2 years but amount at

1 year or less than less than More than 31 December

on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2023

720235

1FR 1E 0 E 2ELE 1283188

BEX B2 R B5FX SENE st REE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTFT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTR ARET:T

Trade and other payables B REMENFIE 696,971 - - - 696,971 696,971
Bank loans RITER 95,033 155,638 - - 250,671 244,162
Lease liabilities HERRE 548,260 503,350 1,011,908 280,071 2,343,589 2,084,523
1,340,264 658,988 1,011,908 280,071 3,291,231 3,025,656
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

" AN RESR)
28 SRIEREERAFE &)

) FZRE

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from bank loans. Borrowings

issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group's interest rate profile as mentioned by management is set out

AREBO M ERE R ERREIRT o A
FEF R IETT E’U1a¢@$§%@@ﬁﬁﬁﬁm
ENERR - EREMERNANEBH

n (i) below. TIRELER A T 3L() °
(i) Interest rate profile (i) F=EER
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group's TEREF PR B R AR S B B A R R
borrowings at the end of the reporting period: M
2024 2023
20245 20235
Effective Effective
interest rates Amount interest rates Amount
BRF=E £8 B E &8
% RMB'000 % RMB'000
% AR¥TR %  ARETFT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEER:
Bank loans RITER 1.00% - 1.30% 140,000  1.25% - 2.60% 60,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 2.69% - 8.52% 2,183,071  2.69% - 8.50% 2,084,523
2,323,071 2,144,523
Variable rate borrowings: BEEN
Bank loans RITER 2.35% - 2.70% 239,425  23%-3.0% 184,162
Total borrowings BT 4EEE 2,562,496 2,328,685
Fixed rate borrowings as a percentage EETIEERETER
of total borrowings EJJ t 91% 92%
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(0)
(ii)

VALUES (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2024, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease
of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variable held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group's profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately RMB1,796,000 (31 December 2023:
RMB1,381,000) in response to the general increase/decrease in interest

rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group's profit after tax and retained profits that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period. In respect of the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group at the end of the reporting
period, the impact on the Group's profit after tax and retained profits
is estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense or income of

such a change in interest rates.

Currency risk

As the Group's principal activities are carried out in the PRC, the Group's
transactions are mainly denominated in RMB, which is not freely
convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign exchange transactions
involving RMB must take place through the People’s Bank of China or
other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The
exchange rates adopted for the foreign exchange transactions are
the rates of exchange quoted by the People’'s Bank of China that are
determined largely by supply and demand.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily from cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables
that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the transactions relate.
The Group's currency risk mainly arises from transactions denominated
in RMB and United States Dollars ("USD") that are entered by operations
with a functional currency risk of HKD. As HKD is currently pegged
to USD, it is assumed that there would be no material currency risk
exposure of HKD to USD.

MF

B IR R R

C UAABREST)

28 SREREERAYE#®)

) FZRE
) BREDH

M2024F 128318 » (et FIREE EF
TEEI00MEES - MAAEMEERET
B REBBIRRT &R T 2R B &8 M AR
I AR 1,796,0007T (2023412 B
318+ AR1,381,0007T) @ AEHF| =
BEEA T -

Y (#)

FBRESTBERAEERBEREN R
REBEF A GEEENAIEESE - EhER
FEEHERBEHREE YEARE
MrEAKEMBALRRE ARFELRS
EEEATFENEARNESHMIA - gt
EERREBRAFAE I EIITET
BEELRNBERENXREARNS  A5H
BREEBNRREBEANAZTENLRER
MEBHEFEAFEZHRWANTE
(EE

B Rk

HRAEENEI2RBETBEET Nk
BN SETEZUAAREE ARETA
BHEBRRINE - AT RARBHINE
%MMLL¢EAEﬁﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬁ%
BEEIMNENKBET - INEXZRANE
%E¢IAE$H%%%E$'%E$I
BIRHRETE -

AEBAZNEEER T EEL A NUIINE
(MERXZHEBEHENODEEE AT
B)FHENRERASEFEY BEHRHE
fi EUYRIBIA S B 5 E A B /IR » K
SENENRERIERENARERET
(IZTDFENRS  ZREXHBWER
KRR RETNEBIL - ARETE A
BT MEBRBTARTAEER
BEER o
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28 SREREERAYE#®)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)
(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of reporting
period to currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts
of the exposure are shown in RMB translated using the spot rate at
the period end date. Differences resulting from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations into the Group's presentation

currency are excluded.

(i)

) A (4)
W AR

TRFARNEER & RTAZ AR
ERNEEEUIINERFTENECHEREE
KBEMEENEERR - REHRE L
P B R B & B RIS B4 B 9 B
EXRME[ARE - ETEERBIER
MM BHREBRERAREN2IEHE
EHERE -

Exposure to foreign currencies

SRR
(expressed in Renminbi)
(MARH5IR)
2024 2023
20245 20234
Renminbi Renminbi
AR® AR
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARETT

Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREFEY 218,907 720,955
Trade and other receivables & 5 I B Ath JE YR IE 44 3,885
Intercompany receivables A A E YR IR 974,964 913,867
Trade and other payables fﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬂﬂgﬁ?ﬁllﬁ (7,488) (6,245)
Intercompany payables A Rl ST R IE (469,154) (282,129)
Gross and net exposure arising from EHRREERAENERATE

recognised assets and liabilities KF5E 717,273 1,350,333
Notional amounts of a forward exchange BHNESG B E TR

contract 46,300 45,310
Net exposure arising from recognised assets EHEREE LA G ERFE

and liabilities 763,573 1,395,643
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(d)
(ii)

VALUES (continued)
Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's
profit after tax and retained profits that would arise if foreign exchange
rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the end of the
reporting period had changed at that date, assuming all other risk

variables remained constant.

n‘/-ﬁ

C UAABREST)

28 SREREERAYE#®)

) E¥E R ()
(i) BUREDHT

Ti’%ﬁllﬂ’ﬂ?]?&/\ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬂ

S 8 (R4 T

o WRRSHEASAKRERNRSHR
BEARBMEXRTRES  NEEKHK
&M R AR B E NPT g HER A ANES 22 8P -

2024
20245
Effect on
Increase in profit after
foreign tax and

exchange rate

retained profit

2023
20234
Effect on
Increase in profit after
foreign tax and

exchange rate

retained profit

HRBRBEEAR HBRBEHFR

Bxt#H REEANE ExtA REBEFHTE

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT AREFT

Renminbi AR 1% 7,733 1% 14,017
(1)% (7,733) (1% (14,017)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an
aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group entities’
profit after tax measured in the respective functional currencies, and
then translated into RMB at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the

reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange
rates had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period, including inter-company payables and
receivables within the Group which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations into the Group's presentation

currency. The analysis is performed on the same basis as 2023.

EREFNOTHERTIRRE A EBEEZE
BHOBRBREEN (REENEERTE -

HigR2RMmz
BARE) FTERHE

BEHRRNEREZBRE
LS

i B 488
S

GRESMBREZNEHDTER - A

i%ﬁu EEA

LA BN IS IR E R

BKRBHASEMFERIAE  BEMU
ERALBERANDGEEE AN E R

ENAEERNIDA
He ZOoMTBRIERRE
RS

B %N

&) 5 JE 1< SR T % JE UK

HBINER B 15

BAASEZIEEMmS BEE
A TR EL2023 G AR A A ELAEHEST o

ZZZNFF R ANNUAL REPORT 2024 @ 221



(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K55 5 &% 8H5h

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR R R M

n‘/-F

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(e)
(i)

VALUES (continued)

Fair value measurement

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e.
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities at the measurement date

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for

which market data are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant

unobservable inputs

The Group has a team headed by the finance manager performing
valuations for the financial instruments, including unlisted equity
securities and limited partnership enterprises which are categorised
into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The team reports directly to the
chief financial officer. A valuation report with analysis of changes in fair
value measurement is prepared by the team at each interim and annual
reporting date, and is reviewed and approved by the chief financial

officer.
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(e)
(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5 G &850 + UA RBEZITR)

VALUES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

28 SREREERAYE#®)

) RVEFTE (&)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued) (i)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are

measured at fair value at the end of the reporting date:

Fair value at

31 December

UAFEFFENERMEERERE (B)
RFPEZERE)

TRINRAEERRERRIZRFEFE
S REE

Fair value measurements as at

2024 31 December 2024 categorised into
2024 F
12A31H
HAFE R2024512 A31 BN A FEFESEA
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
B—& et 1 E=R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT AR¥Tn AR®TR AR®Tx
Recurring fair value measurement REMATEFE
Financial assets: EMEE
Other non-current financial assets: BEfEREemEAE
- Unlisted equity securities and investments — 3E_EMRAZEH K
in limited partnership enterprises RAEREBLER
RE 96,068 - - 96,068
- Listed equity securities — FRARE 6,695 6,695 - =
- Investments in funds —RESHKRE 51,345 - 51,345 -
- Key management insurance contracts - IEEEERRELN 246,394 - 246,394 =
Financial liabilities: SHAE
Derivative financial liabilities TEeRARE
- Forward exchange contracts —RHINEESH 27,551 - 27,551 =
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 2RiERBETELRAYE &)

VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued) (i)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Fair value at

31 December

) RVEFTE (&)

UAFEFFENERMEERERE (B)
RFPEZERE)

Fair value measurements as at

2023 31 December 2023 categorised into
720234
12H31H
B AFE R2023F12 431 B R FEFTED B
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
F— B B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Recurring fair value measurement REMATEFE
Financial assets: CHMEE
Other non-current financial assets: HtbFnehemEsE
—EETRAZS K
- Unlisted equity securities and investments ~ REMRABEE
in limited partnership enterprises WA 75,180 - - 75,180
— Listed equity securities — ERAE S 6,716 6,716 - -
- Investments in funds —REENRE 55413 - 55413 -
Financial liabilities: SHAE
Derivative financial liabilities TEERBE
- Forward exchange contracts — REPMES L 8,905 - 8,905 -

The listed equity securities are accounted for at fair value in level 1 and

measured by referencing to the stock price.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, there were no

transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level 3.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k55 % &% B95h

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued)
Information about Level 2 fair value measurements

The Group held investments in funds operated by the fund management
companies. The investments are accounted for at fair value in level 2.
Since the units in the funds are redeemable at the net asset value of the
funds, fair value of such investments is measured according to the net

asset value as at 31 December 2024.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts in Level 2 is determined by
the prevailing market rates of different parameters reflecting the market
conditions at the end of the reporting period, as well as the remaining

terms and tenor of the transaction.

The fair values of key management insurance contracts in Level 2 is
determined by reference to the cash surrender value of the insurance

policies at the end of each reporting period.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The Group invested in unlisted equities in several entities and limited

partnership enterprises as its strategic investments.

n‘/-F

B IR R R

C UAABREST)

28 SREREERAYE#®)

(i)

) RVEFTE (&)

DAFEFENESREERERE (&)
BHE_—RLFETEHNES
AREBEEHESBTEATKLLHNESH
BE - ZERERE_LLFEAE - &
RESBUAIRESHEEFEED
IWRZ SR EN AT EL2024F12 83188
BEZFEE -

£ _REHINES NN R FETIRERBR
BEHRTANTRALSHNBRITH SN X
AR R 5 R RIER S B I HARR BB 5E

E_RTEEEERRAONAFEZ
REGEPRRENRSEREBEETE -

BHEE=RLFEAENEH

AEBBRERNETERBRERABEEN
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 2RiERBETELRAYE &)

VALUES (continued)

) RF{EFE (E)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued) (i) UAFEFENESREERERE (&)
BEBE=RL-FHETEHNEL (&)

AFEHETHRBIIBREEANSEH
ABIE BRI -

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

The quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs

used in the fair value measurement are as follows:

Fair value at

31 December

Significant unobservable

2024 Valuation techniques inputs Range
2024 F
128318 TABEGINEZEHA
WAFE (AERID 2z &E
RMB’000
ARBTR
Unlisted equity securities 66,654  Market approach-market Price-to-earning ratios 16.64 t0 26.04
comparable companies (2023: N/A)
I ETRAE T5E — M ELR mEE 16.642226.04
NG| (2023% : Ti@F)
Discount for lack of 27.7%
marketability (2023: 27.7%)
R ST E 27.7%
(20234 : 27.7%)
1,916  Market approach-market Price-to-sales ratios 0.39to0 237
comparable companies (2023: N/A)
5% — M ELR [iz:c B 039%237
Gl (2023% : @A)
Discount for lack of 27.7%
marketability (2023: N/A)
RZ TSR B LT 27.7%
(20235 : TNERA)
Investments in limited 27,498  Market approach-market Price-to-sales ratios 1.29 10 6.68
partnership enterprises comparable companies (2023: 1.56 to 4.85)
REREBLENRE MigE — MG A B LR [B)ES 1.29%6.68
NS (2023%F : 1.5654.85)
Discount for lack of 27.7%
marketability (2023: 27.7%)
R SRR 27.7%

(20234 = 27.7%)
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

The fair value of unlisted equity securities is determined using the price-
to-earnings ratios or price-to-sales ratios of comparable listed companies
adjusted for lack of marketability discount. The fair value measurement
is positively correlated to the price-to-earnings ratios or price-to-sales
ratios of comparable listed companies and negatively correlated to the
discount for lack of marketability. As at 31 December 2024, it is estimated
that with all other variables held constant, an increase/decrease in the
price-to-earnings ratios or price-to-sales ratios of comparable listed
companies by 1% would have increased/decreased the Group's other
comprehensive income by RMB514,000, while a decrease/increase in the
discount for lack of marketability by 1% would have increased/decreased

the Group's other comprehensive income by RMB711,000.

The fair value of investments in limited partnership enterprises is
determined using the price-to-sales ratios of comparable listed
companies adjusted for lack of marketability discount. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the price-to-sales ratios of
comparable listed companies and negatively correlated to the discount
for lack of marketability. As at 31 December 2024, it is estimated that
with all other variables held constant, an increase/decrease in the
price-to-sales ratios of comparable listed companies by 1% would
have increased/decreased the Group's profit by RMB269,000, while a
decrease/increase in the discount for lack of marketability by 1% would
have increased/decreased the Group's profit by RMB371,000.

n‘/-F

B IR R R

C UAABREST)

28 SREREERAYE#®)
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) RVEFTE (&)
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(e)
(i)

VALUES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

The movement during the period in the balance of Level 3 fair value

measurements is as follows:

F UABRHEST)

28 SREREERAYE#®)

(i)

) RVEFTE (&)

UAFEFFENERMEERERE (B)
BEHE=RL-FEGEBHER ()
HANE=RATEFTBEHROEBOT

At 31 December At 31 December

2024 2023
R2024%F 20235
128318 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT
Unlisted equity securities and investments in FEEMIRAFZ KR BER
limited partnership enterprises: ERTENRE
At 1 January ®1A1B 75,180 83,610
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss  F AR IEE R A FEZ S
during the year 859 (2,962)
Net unrealised gains/(losses) recognised in other ~ F RN EAM 2 EIRFZHERE
comprehensive income during the year KRB (FIB) FHE 20,029 (5,468)
At 31 December M12A31H 96,068 75,180

Any gains or losses arising from the remeasurement of the Group's
unlisted equity securities held for strategic purposes are recognised in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) in other comprehensive income.
Upon disposal of the equity securities, the amount accumulated in other

comprehensive income is transferred directly to retained earnings.

Any gains or losses arising from the remeasurement of the Group's
investment in limited partnership enterprises held for strategic purposes

are recognised in the profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5= BE1 85N + AAREZTR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at other than
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments carried at
amortised cost are not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 because of the short-term maturities of all

these financial instruments.

29 COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments of the Group outstanding at 31 December 2024

not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

28 SREREERAYE#®)

) RVEFTE (&)
(i) FRAFEIRNEHEEREEN

AFE
HATEZESmITAMIEBEEE W
AEEREHENATENSR T ARTE
2024 202312 A31 B A FEL
BERER -

29 &iE

R2024F 128318 - WAREITEW KRR
MR AELHBEHREERNE AW
T

2024 2023
20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBET T

Contracted for acquisition of property, plant and BEIRBEME  BE X

equipment and right-of-use assets REAREREEE 327,235 265,978
Authorised but not contracted for acquisition of CHOER M ARETNBEDE

property, plant and equipment and right-of-use WE REBEARGRAEEE

assets = 68
Total #Et 327,235 266,046
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 EXBHMAE RS
In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the MR mEEMEAE S BEO@E T ER
financial statements, the Group entered into the following material SN REBERMATEXRBEE RS

related party transactions.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (@) TEEEAESHM

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including AEEBFEEEASNGHH (BEME7ET
amounts paid to the Company's directors as disclosed in note 7 and BERARAREETI NN ERM AT

certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as BRaTaaiMEEXNHNSE) WT -

follows.

2024 2023
20245 2023
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARETT

Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREAMER 8,466 8,419
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plan & 28t FUR KT 2 (3 152 157
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses AR 4 B AR (D R AT
DEGE3 5,624 7,228
14,242 15,804
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)). EEINE R B T | (RMIsEs5(D)) ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5= BE1 85N + AAREZTR)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(b)

(continued)

Related parties transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following material related

party transactions:

30 EREHARS (&)

) BBARS

RERN - REBETATERBH TS

2024 2023
20245 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Provision of services to associates M & D AR AR 480 240
Loans to associates ERTHE AT 22,000 52,440
Repayment from associates R EIER 15,950 49,000
Conversion of loans to associates to long-term G E QR ERE AR HRE
equity investments wE 24,500 -
Interest income from associates A EATHFEKRA 1,474 2,912
Purchase of materials from associates M & N RIEE B R 121,782 176,936
Variable lease payments to Mr. Guan (note) FE TR #HERNRK
(B=E) 572 884
Dividends approved to a NCI holder controlled by a AIAEE —ZE G TR
director of the Group BB AERNRE 9,811 27,000
Note: 5T

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group entered into
several lease contracts in respect of certain leasehold properties from Mr. Guan
under variable lease payment terms. The amount of rent payable by the Group
under the lease is based on sales generated from the restaurants. All of the above
lease payment amounts was determined with reference to amounts charged by

Mr. Guan to third parties.

HE2024F 202312 A3 BILFE » AEER
BAUSHENREARREELENETHEY
¥V ETHEAY - ASEREBEAERMHA
SeBIRBEEBELENIHEEEN - LFBaA
ENFEBNISEERERE - HTIRENESHEE

E o
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G &858 + AN R¥ZITR)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(0)

(continued)

Balance with related parties

30 EXBBMARS (&)
C Eg EEIJmn

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had the following balances with

R2024%F 128318 AREBE LM AL

related parties: T -
Amounts due from related parties FE UK Ba S 5 FRIR
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREFIT
Loans to associates (note (i) b A NCIRE T TOD) 60,910 53,390
Amounts due from an associate FEW e B %’& Gl ¢ 3,808 1,112
Advances to associates (note (ii) BEASVNCIEEN A ())) 63,200 89,170
127,918 143,672
Notes: BiRE -
() Included in “Trade and other receivables” (note 18) and “Other non-current () [BESREMERFRIE](HE18) RIEMIE
assets” (note 16) are the loans to the associates which bear interest rate at 5% RBEE|(MiT16) BIEREBE N FIRHEE

per annum.

(i) Included in “Trade and other receivables” (note 18) and “Other non-current
assets” (note 16) are the advances to the associates which are interest-free.

K BRFRTIRFEMES%EE o

(i [E5REMmEYKFIE] (1) k[ EMbIE
mEBEE] (MiE16) BRERE S A RRMER

K BBFIRDRE

Prepayments to an associate o — R E A AEHFEIR
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Prepayments for purchase food ingredients REERMIELTENK 223 7,864
The prepayments are included in “Trade and other receivables” (note 18). FERREATE S & H W skIE | (K

18) °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 & 3% 855

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(0)

(continued)
Balance with related parties (continued)

Amounts due to related parties

BTSRRI

AN RESR)
30 EXBBMARS (&)

n‘/-ﬁ

() EREEHETS WUARER ()
FEAS AR 75 =R IR

2024 2023
20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREBTT
Trade and other payables B 5 I B FE A 50E

— ultimate controlling shareholder BARIERRAR R 110 200

— a NClI holder controlled by a director — AEE-BESEHN
of the Group EERERFAA 1,400 70,894
1,510 71,094

The balances with these related parties are unsecured, interest-free and

have no fixed repayment terms.

Save for above related party transactions and the connected transactions
as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this
annual report, there were no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director and/or any of his/her connected entity
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, and there was
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Company’s controlling
shareholders or any of its subsidiaries, subsisted at the end of, or at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

d) REEB I ZRAFRBEZS]
—HRENEER SN REE20245F
12 431 B 1EF [E 4 R I 5k E AR5 A f] 5 R
N BEFEAQRSETATBEARR
Az — MERR/NEERBEE
ERETEESHERAEAEENEKR
XG5 RHAEH  NEFEHARAL
HAMME QR EAA AR R K EAT
WHBRARGILMEARS « &L
(2023%F : 48) o
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(Fxpressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br = B 185N + XA R BESITR)

31 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 31 A A EEM AR R &
POSITION

31 December 31 December

Note 2024 2023
720245 R20234F

B it 12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTFT ARBT T

Non-current asset REBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EH B AR RIEE 59,246 41,019
Property, plant and equipment L/ E Y 1 3
Right-of-use assets EREEE 85 166
Rental deposits HERE 32 32
Amount due from subsidiaries R NGIE e 1,577,784 1,648,357
Other non-current financial assets HMIERBemEE 58,040 62,129
Other non-current assets HEMIEmBEE 7,188 -
1,702,376 1,751,706
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H e GRIE 16,505 4534
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR BB A B FB 21,081 32,081
Deposits with banks with original maturity [REIEA A BB = & A fERTTF
date over three months 100,638 120,406
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMRSZEY 635,436 803,874
773,660 960,895
Current liabilities FBaE
Other payables H e 3R 53,616 34,670
Lease liabilities HESE 88 170
53,704 34,840
Net current assets REBEEFE 719,956 926,055
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 2,422,332 2,677,761
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Derivative financial liabilities TESBRAE 27,551 8,905
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,394,781 2,668,856
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERRHE
Share capital %N 27(a) 1 1
Reserves i 2,394,780 2,668,855
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 2,394,781 2,668,856
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5= BE1 85N + AAREZTR)

32NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed a final
dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 27(d).

33 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

As at the date of this report, the Directors consider the immediate
parent of the Group to be GYH J Limited, which is incorporated in the
BVI, and the ultimate controlling party of the Company to be Mr. Guan.

34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
ACCOUNTING YEAR BEGINNING ON OR AFTER
31 DECEMBER 2024

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued
a number of new or amended standards, which are not yet effective for
the year ended 31 December 2024 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements. These developments include the following

which may be relevant to the Group.

32 HEWRWFARSEE

WEMKS  EERBRBRE - 5
BRI 27(0) 3R -

B EHERRARERA

RAREAH  BEERRAKENEEE
NARERBEB RS FEMAILAOGYH
Limited » RARBMREZERT BELLE

34 EEMENEKRN2024F12 8
BS1HRZERFHBHNETEEE
MEEET A ~ eI EAIRRE
B Al RE S &

HEAMBRERTIEBEE - BB 2ER
BEECEMZIENG ST ER (RE
F2024F 12 A3VBIEFEHARER - B
REATERERAERMN) - BRAFFI &
TR BIE AT AT AL B AN S B ABRE & o

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

RTIEHSZ%

BB ETHEEN

Amendments to IAS 21, Lack of Exchangeability W ERE 215 2 (85] 1 January 2025

= ] s et 202561 A1H

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7, Contracts Referencing ~ BIBRBF 753k & YE I 25 957 K B BR BF 7% 1 January 2026

Nature-dependent Electricity WMEERIE7HR 21E8ET - 202651 A1 H
HRAKEERBEREE T H9E A

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7, Amendments (30 B B 7 S e ZE R 25 O 5 K B PR B 75 1 January 2026

to the Classification and Measurement of Financial WEERE7R 2GR 2B TA 20265F1 A1 H

Instruments DR ETEZIEET
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
ACCOUNTING YEAR BEGINNING ON OR AFTER HRTEER & ()

31 DECEMBER 2024 (Continued)

34 EEMENKRN2024F12 8
B1THRZEAFEBHNETEEE
MEEET A ~ eI ERAIRRE

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RT3 BAHH 2%
BRI SR AR

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards -
Volume 11, Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 7, IFRS 9,
IFRS 10 and IAS 7

IFRS 18, Presentation and disclosure in

financial statements

IFRS 19, Subsidiaries without public accountability:

BRI E R FESCE —F 111

BIRB 5 30 &5 2R R 1 3 - BIRR AT 7%
BWEERE7TE - BRI HHREER
FoIE - BRI & ERIE 105E
R BB &A1 R 75 2 15T

BRI IS EERNF 1858 - A EHX
&2 5 R B E

B IS IMEERNF 1958 TAAH

1 January 2026
20261 A1 H

1 January 2027
20271 A HE

1 January 2027

disclosures FIE RN E N E] - & 2027118
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, Sale or Contribution Bl B S s R E 105k MBI &5 Note

of Assets between an Investor and its Associate BRNE 28R 2 IBF] - KEZH P

or Joint venture ABENFl A SR BE

f/é%@?&ﬁ
Note: The effective date for these amendments was deferred indefinitely. Early 5T - ZFERTMAE M A B BRI E - DA
adoption continues to be permitted. FFERAIERAR ©

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the REE FETEZF R ST R
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of initial BEXAERHEBHEENTE - 255
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely IF - AEEE ERMZEMESEERTE
to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. BTN KATREETAR S I MR ERKEARTE o
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